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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

OVERALL RESULTS BEEEE
Key performance indicator (Financial Ratio) FEZEEER MBLEXR)
Year ended 31 March
BE=B=1+—HLEE
Notes 2021 2020
g —E—F “EBTE2F
Revenue (HK$ 000) WA (F7E5T) 85,521 393,536
Gross profit margin (%) ENE %) (i) 24.8% 16.4%
Loss for the year (HK$000) FWEE (F2E71) 140,050 184,838
Loss per share (HK cents) ERREE GBI 0.65 0.86
Net asset value per share (HK cents) BREEFE B (ii) 4.14 4.82
Notes: B 5F
0) Gross profit margin is calculated as gross profit divided by revenue and multiplying the (i) EMEZEFBRUABRTEEFTEL00%5T
resulting value by 100%. 8o
(i) Net asset value per share is calculated based on the number of 20,319,072,320 ordinary (i) SREEFELEENR_ZT_—F=B=+—H
shares issued as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: 20,319,072,320 ordinary shares). B 81720,319,072,3208% LHX (ZE-=E=H
=+—H :20,319,072,320% L EAR) s+ H o

For the current year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$85,521,000,
representing a significant drop over 70% when compared with revenue of the
preceding financial year. The revenue for the current year is mainly generated
from the property development segment in IEF03 (“Zhenghe City”) of 0 IEF]
LB EEEABRAT (Liuzhou Zhenghe Huagui Real Estate Group Company
Limited®) (“Liuzhou Zhenghe”). In 2020, due to the worldwide outhreak of the
COVID-19, the construction works in Zhenghe City were temporary suspend during
first half of 2020 and therefore delay completion of building afterwards. As a result,
the revenue of the Group for the current year decreased significantly as no building
were completed and delivered to customers.

An overall gross profit of approximately HK$21,201,000 (2020: HK$64,405,000) and
gross profit margin of 24.8% (2020: 16.4%) were recorded for the current year. The
increase in gross profit margin for the current year was mainly due to increase
in proportion of sales of commercial units over the total sales when compared
to preceding financial year, for which commercial units have a relatively higher
marking in selling.

The Group continued to incur losses of approximately HK$140,050,000 for the
current year (2020: HK$184,838,000). Such loss was mainly attributed to no newly
completed buildings being delivered to the market during the year to generate
adequate profit to cover the operating costs and impairment loss of the Group. The
basic and diluted loss per share was approximately HK$0.65 cent for the current
year.
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECT

International Business Settlement

During the year, with the electronic money institution license (“EMI License”)
obtained in Lithuania, the Group connected a number of commercial and individual
customers in both European market and China and provided fund settlement
services for commercial and individual customers on a small scale. As of March
2021, nearly 180 European customers opened digital banking accounts through
the Group’s digital banking set up via network in Lithuania, which provided credit,
remittance and settlement services to them, with transaction amount in aggregate
reaching EUR1,040 million. The average payment size has also increased due to
company’s strategy to focus on profitable corporate clients. As of 31 March 2021,
the funds placed by customers in the Group’s electronic money institution set up in
Lithuania amounted to almost EUR13 million. This shows the continuous support
and confidence from our customers.

IBS Lithuania has always been striving for the improvement of operational
efficiency via human capital and the achievement of automation through advanced
IT systems. This will not only enable the Company to provide services to more
customers and process more transactions, but will also expand the product offerings
to attract large-scale corporate customers with tailor-made product offerings.
There has been negotiating with multiple banks to establish a mutually beneficial
relationship with them and further expand the coverage of its settlement network,
while broadening the services it can offer.

Since the development of electronic money institution is not yet fully matured
and currently only basic services are available thereunder, its contribution to the
Group is thus relatively low. Despite the global pandemic, the past year have been
positive for IBS Lithuania. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the revenue of this
segment was approximately HK$7,842,000 (2020: HK$3,054,000), and the total
loss for the year was HK$39,471,000 (2020: HK$27,544,000). The major expenses
in this segment for the year were staff costs and rental expenses.

In respect of the Group’s self-developed Next Generation Settlement Network (the
“NGSN”), a speedy financial clearing channels for countries along the “Belt and
Road” in Asia, Europe, Africa and other regions, while providing convenient financial
services for multilateral trade, full impairment was made by the Group for the
NGSN platform during the financial year ended 31 March 2019 under the impact
arising from the world trade environment, changes in financial regulatory trend and
changes in political environment. The Company acknowledges that the development
of NGSN faces continues to be challenging and we will continue to work through the
challenges.

REXF O ERAIR

Ell-SEE 5
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

The Group has reorganized the management team with a view to further develop
the NGSN, and employed experts and technical staff to support the development,
seeking alternative model to develop the platform. The global business and
economic activities have been severely adversely affected by the novel coronavirus
epidemic, directly hindering the development of NGSN. During the year, the
momentum of the progress was slow down in view of the travel restrictions, social
distancing and quarantine measures implemented across the world. Although facing
such challenges, the Company continues to maintain communication with all our
existing partners, so that when business activities return to normal, the Company
will be ready to reach more in-depth and comprehensive cooperation agreements
with potential cooperative banks and financial institutions, and continues to be
committed to attracting more banks and enterprises to join NGSN, so as to bring its
advantages into full play, accelerate monetary circulation and improve economic
circulation efficiency, with a view to accelerate market liquidity, boost market
confidence and enable sustainable development. The Company successively initiated
communication and cooperation with countries in Asia, Europe, Africa and other
regions to seek further development, thus laying a foundation upon which NGSN can
be deployed globally.

Liuzhou Zhenghe (property development and hotel business segment)
Zhenghe City is a mix-used complex project located at No. 102, Xinliu Avenue,
Liudong New District, Liuzhou, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC,
which offers a wide range of properties, including villas, townhouses, commercial
buildings, office buildings, hotels and high-rise apartments developed by Liuzhou
Zhenghe.

Zhenghe City comprises two phases with Phase | providing a stack of residential
and commercial properties with gross floor area of approximately 485,000 square
meters. Phase Il will provide another stack of residential and commercial properties
with a total gross floor area of approximately 518,000 square meters. Both Phase |
and Phase Il have commenced construction and are under development. The Group
owned 100% interest in properties held for development and properties held for sale
in both Phase | and Phase I.
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

@)  Detail area of the properties under development and completed properties (@) ZEETYERCETYENEBEBNF
are as follows:

Completed area

Saleable area of properties
Approximate remaining held for self-
gross unsold operating/
Site area floor area (note 2) own use
(sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m) (sq.m)
FEEE
EARHEDN BERE®N
R4S AHE@RRE BB TYE
AR EE EEmE (Hiz#2) [
CFA2K) (CFAK) CFA2K) (CFAK)
Phase I: —HR:
Zone A A& 76,000 97,000 20,000 8,000
Zone B Bl& 94,000 130,000 29,000 =
Zone C (& 61,000 258,000 122,000 =
231,000 485,000 171,000 8,000
Phase II: -
Zone D D& 71,000 191,000 44,000 =
Zone E El& 30,000 145,000 90,000 31,000
Zone F Fl& 41,000 182,000 111,000 =
142,000 518,000 245,000 31,000
Total: wast 373,000 1,003,000 416,000 39,000
Note 1: The number of square meters (“sq.m”) are rounded to nearest thousand BizEr D FEK (ERK) BFHARERER
for illustrative purpose only. BFE EERBERR
Note 2: Representing the gross floor area under development and saleable gross K2 R 2 —F=B=+—HERHPE
floor area of completed properties that were unsold as at 31 March EEBEREE TEHAHENYENT
2021. HEREERR-
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

8

The progress of each phase in Zhenghe City are shown as follows: (b) FEHNHZIAEEERN TR
Property type Status
MERER AR
Phase I:
_lﬂﬁ :
Zone A Villas and high-rise The construction works were completed and most of the residential units

A& apartment buildings with retail outlets,
farmers market and car parking spaces

NERBBAE FETEESH

BB B REE)
Zone B Villas and high-rise apartment buildings with
Bl& retail outlets and car parking spaces
NERSEBAE BEZEEHK
(E3=K1)
Zone C Residential and commercial complexes and
(& studio/office buildings with retail outlets

and car parking spaces
FERBEFREERIEEWAKE
(BEZELHREEN

were sold in the past financial years. Farmers market attached with a total
saleable area of approximately 19,000 square meters are held for sale.
BETEEBRTEARMAOEEEUCSHBTMEEE L E - FrHi4R
A EERL 419,000 RN REH G RELE -

Approximately 8,000 square meters car parking spaces in this zone were held
for self-operating to generate stable recurring income. Hence classify as the
Group’s property, plant and equipment.
R&@A98,000°F 5 K IFEMURFEEE  UEERENKEERA -E
DR RERYIE BB KR

The construction works were completed and most of the residential units
were sold in the past financial years. Car parking spaces with a total saleable
area of approximately 17,000 square meters are held for sale.
BETEERTEAMPEETEMERNBETMREEHE BT
EEELN /17,0007 5 KA E B HIFIFHE

There are 7 blocks of residential and commercial complexes and 3 blocks of
studio/office buildings in this zone.

REAMEEEREEREBURIEIIEE HAKIE-

The construction works of 7 blocks of residential and commercial complexes
and 2 of 3 blocks of studio/office buildings in this zone were completed and
most of the units were sold in the past financial years.
A&7MEFERBELRSIEURIBILEE PAKIEFI2ENE
RTIRBBETEARDEMBENBETHRFEELE -

The construction works of the remaining 1 block of studio/office building is
in progress. The pre-sale permits were granted and acceptance certificates of
completion are expected to be granted in second half of 2021.
BRTIMETEE MAKENREIRNENERSP -FEEHAIH
EREMIRBETIRBEERRN 2 —F TH¥FERE-

International Business Settlement Holdings Limited El@E2EEZERARAT



Management’s Statement

BIEERS

Property type Status
MEER AR
Phase II:
—HA:
Zone D1 Villas The construction works of the villas were completed. 16 villas with a total
D1& llE= saleable area of approximately 8,000 square meters were sold to the
customers and revenue was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2020 (the “last financial year”).
RIEEMEE TIZE 14 T o 4870 & E AR 47 738,000°F 75 K BY161E B
FEHEFEFERAEBEREBEE _Z_SE=-A=1+—HLEE
(TE—FEEFE]) BT e
Zone D1 High-rise apartment buildings with retail There are 5 blocks of high-rise apartment buildings in this zone.
D1& outlets and car parking spaces KaBsESEAS -
SEAE BHETEEHKEFEN)
The construction works of these 5 blocks of high-rise apartment buildings
were completed and most of the units were sold in the past financial years.
Car parking spaces with a total saleable area of approximately 43,000 square
meters are held for sale.
ZEMEEEABNERTIEEE T BEABHEMCSNBERBE
EHE o 487 K& mRAA 443,000 5 KW EEA HIFEHE -
Zone D2 Villas The construction works of 36 villas are completed and were sold in the past
D2& pillEd financial years.

eiERBENERTIEERTEENBTHMHREEHE -
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

Property type Status
MEER AR
Zone E Hotel and high-rise apartment buildings with  The construction works of high-rise apartment buildings were completed
E& retail outlets and car parking spaces and most of the units were sold in the past financial years. Retail
BEREEAE GESEETHK outlets attached to this apartment building with a total saleable area of
{SE A1) approximately 36,000 square meters are held for sale.

SEABNEREIRERIAREDEMUECNBEMBREEL
€ o RA B4R R E ETRAY36,000°F 75 KB T EE & FEL

o
=

The construction works of the hotel building were completed during the
year and the pre-sale permit was granted. The acceptance certificate of
completion is expected to be obtained in second half of 2021. Previously,
the Group changed its intention to operate the hotel under franchising
arrangement instead of held for sale. Constructing area of approximately
31,000 square meters of the hotel building are included in property, plant
and equipment.
BEEFHNERTITEENFTFRNB I RBESIHEEE T c TRET
BWEERARN S —F THFERIS o bAT > AEREHEt
BRI R E LS BIEMIERFER & BIEBF T EERE
#931,000°F 75 K E 5T A ZE BB sk o

Zone F Residential and commercial complexes with ~ There are 6 blocks of residential and commercial complexes in this zone.
Fl& retail outlets and car parking spaces KaFoEFEREELGGIE
FERBEEGEEE FETEEHR
1EE(1) The construction works of 3 blocks of residential and commercial complexes

were completed and most of the units were sold in the past financial years.
SEAEERFELRSENERIECET AR EMCSBER
HEEHE-

The construction works of the remaining 3 blocks of residential and
commercial complexes are in progress and pre-sale permits were granted.
The acceptance certificates of completion are expected to be obtained in
second half of 2021.

R TMEFEREEGREIENRRTRRNENRERPEEESHFIHE
ERE - TRETRWEERRN S —F FTHFRS-

Retail outlets attached to 3 blocks of building with area of approximately
5,000 square meters was sold to customers and revenue was recognised in
the last financial year.

MEEF P EEA5,000FE F KN ZEEHEHETERHARAR
R E—R B E ERESS
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

(it

For property development segment in Liuzhou Zhenghe, an area of
approximately 7,000 square meters (2020: 34,000 square meters) was sold and
generated a segment revenue of approximately HK$75,733,000 for the current
year (2020: HK$386,487,000). A segment loss of approximately HK$8,925,000
was recorded for the current year (2020: segment profit of HK$9,453,000).
The significant drop in sales figures and segment loss recorded in the current
year was mainly due to no buildings were completed and delivered to the
customers due to temporary suspend of construction works by outhreak of
COVID-19 in 2020 and delay delivery afterwards.

An external expert was engaged to help to assess the fair value of the
properties development project as at 31 March 2021. For those properties
which had completed the construction work and were held for sale, a market
comparison method by making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market was used. For those properties still under
construction, the value was derived by using a market comparison method
with the assumption that the construction works of the properties would have
been completed at the date of valuation and have taken into account the
construction costs expected and costs that will be expended to complete the
development. No impairment loss is required for the year ended 31 March
2021 as the net realisable value is higher than carrying amount.

Liuzhou Zhenghe will continue to develop the Phase Il of Zhenghe City and
the Group is actively looking for other property development opportunities in
Guangxi or other provinces in the PRC.

The hotel business is located in Zone E1 of Zhenghe City with gross floor area
of approximately 31,000 square meters. In 2018, the Group entered into a
franchising agreement with a well-known international hotel franchisee to
operate the hotel under the franchising requested standards. The construction
and renovation works of the hotel building are still in progress and no
revenue will be generated until commencement of operation of the hotel.
Based on the latest estimation, the commencement of operation of the hotel
is expected to be in 2022.

(it

HNEF 23 B D58 E & 477,000 75 K
(ZZB T4 34,000 5 3K) WEE TR
AN FE E A D FEW A #975,733,00058 7T (ZF
T E4F 1 386,487,000/87T) c RAEERREFD
FER518498,925,000/8 7T CEZEF ( pfEE
#119,453,000787T) o AEFE IS IHE TR KR
THREDEEEFIFEZECRHN-ZEZZSFE
ZEHCOVID-19B IERFERETEE = #r
EEFEITRXNFTFERAEZEBNRIMNEA
TR o

SN EBEREEZELUGI T EDEREIR
BR_E_—F=A=+—HHNAREB
MERTRFENYEELRZ2ERBATHE
LR RHELERIHER ZHNHHB LB A&
BYENEBENDERTHLEBERH  EF
BRYENERIZESNGEAREI I
5t R TR ET I R AN A Ko 7% 52 Al 7 38 i S H Y
A AN AR FESNREE &EZ
T —FR=+—HLEFEBRELHRE
(EUEE

WOINIEA A 4 /B R 38 IEM I — A E A& E
ERBEAXNTEAEMEHDEGESHEMY)
FUERKEo

BEEXEFMANRENBOE BEEENS
31,000 5K - R 22— N\F > AEEHE
A B RS s I R R E e
RIS TS R E R ELE A  BIFIETF
HNERREETREDETETFEE ARG E
FMABERBEFIBEER L - RIBREMG
o BIETEHRE N S _FRREE
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

Financing Business

A wholly foreign owned enterprise (the “WFOE”) in the China (Shanghai) Pilot Free
Trade Zone was established by the Group to carry out financing business in China
with a total registered capital of USD35 million (approximately RMB225 million). The
scope of business of the WFOE includes finance leasing, leasing, purchasing of leased
assets in domestic and foreign markets, disposal of residual value and maintenance
of leased assets, provision of consultation and guarantees for lease transactions and
engaging in commercial factoring business.

Starting from 2018, the financial services business was affected significantly in view
of the challenging business environment in China. In the factoring business, our
clients experienced a severe adversity in this tough business environment in China
and have failed to pay interest payment since 2018, the debts were matured and
past due in July 2019 with no progress for recover of any amount in arrears from
these receivables. In the last financial year, after assessment of the recoverability
of the debt, including the borrowers not responding to our demand notice of
repayment, no further updated financial information were provided by the
borrowers, and also the Company notice that one of the borrowers was deregistered
in 2019 and another borrower is in the process of deregistration through searching
corporate status. In light of above indicators, the factoring receivables have been
fully impaired by the Company in the last financial year. As at the year ended 31
March 2021, three out of six borrowers were deregistered and after seeking for
legal advice and assessing the quality of collaterals, the Group balanced between
the resources required to further pursue for recovery and the possibility of actual
recovery, it is decided that nothing can be recovered by the Company. As such,
amounted to HK$63,110,000 receivables from these three deregistered borrowers
were derecognised during the year.

12
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Management’s Statement

BIEERS

In respect of the loan receivables (of which a plantation in Shanghai was pledged as
security of repayment of the loan amount) from finance leasing of the Group which
agreements were entered into in 2017. The borrower started to miss payments since
December 2018 due to lack of cashflow caused by the adverse business environment
in China which leaded to significant drop in purchase orders for the borrower’s
greeneries products from customers (which include property developers, property
management companies). As economic situation in China slowed down in 2018,
and, particularly, the property sector, some of the customers of the plantation began
to either delayed in payment or significantly reduced their purchases. With the
outhreak of COVID-19 since January 2020, economy in China (and worldwide) has
slowed down further. The Company believes that the recoverability of the pledged
assets in connection with the finance leasing business would be adversely impacted.
As such impairment loss of HK$58,227,000 on loan receivables was made in last
financial year ended 2020.

During the year, there had been no progress of repayment from receivable and the
adverse impact brought by economic downturn still exist. In order to safeguard
the interest of the Company, the Company visit the plantation site twice a year
and perform stock take of the collaterals to make sure the collaterals are in good
condition.

A PRC independent qualified valuer, Zhongnan Assets Appraisal and Real Estate
Appraisal (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd* (‘PRI & EFHEEEGE (BN BREA
3]”), was engaged by the Group to assess the fair value of the plantation collaterals
as at 31 March 2021.

The valuation methodology adopted was market comparable method with reference
to comparable market price of similar items in the relevant market. Key assumptions
adopted include: (1) the products are to be sold in open market; (2) there will be
a continuous demand of the products; and (3) the products are free of restrictions
to sell. The fair value of the plantation collaterals as at 31 March 2021 was
approximately RMB109,259,000 (2020: RMB134,096,000).
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As the Company does not have the expertise in running and operating the
plantation, the Company does not plan to take possession of the plantation. During
the year, the Company has been discussing with the borrower the settlement
schedule of the receivables and has been issuing notices of repayment to the
borrower each month after due date of the receivables. The Company has also
engaged PRC legal advisers to issue demand letters of repayment to the borrowers.
However, the Company has not received any settlement from the borrower. The
Company has obtained the selling record of the plantation of the borrower and
noted that the total sales for the year ended 2020 was a few hundred thousand
renminbi only. The Company will continue to monitor the situation and, if necessary,
take possible legal action to recover the loan.

An independent qualified valuer, also engaged by the Group to help to assess
the recoverability of loan receivable. After assessment, in addition to impairment
loss of HK$58,227,000 was made in last financial year, further impairment loss of
HK$57,397,000 on loan receivables was made in the year after considering the credit
risk of the borrower.

The Company adopted the model of expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9
Financial Instrument (‘HKFRS 97) in determining the amount of the impairments
of loan receivables (‘Impairments”). HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for
impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition summarized

AR ABFAREEHEEFNEERERNEREMN
#Ho AR ERFZEEE -FR> ARF
—BEHEERANREURENGERER I8
BERWIRIEZIIAH B M ERA S HERE
AR E) TR B P EDEA R R R B AR S
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RE - ARAREBEAES B WELE &
PREXA] BEBY A RITEI AR IR [E &R -

KEBTIEEE LS ESGERN BT UL
BRI U B s B bR E— B FE(E
R E A5 1858,227,00058 7o EE EERANE
ERREZ ERNFRERERGHRE T RE
1854857,397,00078 7T ©

FATEBEEBBERAE (TRE)) SERXA
EBMBREERBREMITAE (EBMBR
HERESE) BTHREAGEERRE ((TRREE
BiE) B BN B nEILEREEERNE
16> BEBMBHREERBSTIEH T —E =4 B

below:
B Jn T

a. Stage 1: As soon as a financial instrument is originated or purchased, 12-month expected credit losses are recognized in profit or loss

a. —#k: and a loss allowance is established. This serves as a proxy for the initial expectations of credit losses. For financial assets, interest
revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount (i.e. without adjustment for expected credit losses).
—BE4SFBETMTE 2ER 2 BREEFENIBEaNET B FLEIREE HETRBEEEHBNIRTE
Ho-mEeMBEEMS  MEWAREREESNE QIRMBEREEHBELAR) o

b. Stage 2: If the credit risk increases significantly and the resulting credit quality is not considered to be low credit risk, full lifetime

b. —4k . expected credit losses are recognized. Lifetime expected credit losses are only recognized if the credit risk increases significantly
from when the entity originates or purchases the financial instrument. The calculation of interest revenue on financial assets
remains the same as for stage 1.
HEERBARENMERLEEREEERTHIAASEBEERRE BB HBEREEHE 2HBRAEES
EEEEERESNBESR T ALUREERBABIEME 5 FTURD - EMEENSRAZFER 8 —
“hA8ME e

c. Stage 3: If the credit risk of a financial asset increases to the point that it is considered credit-impaired, interest revenue is calculated

= based on the amortized cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowance). Financial assets in this stage will

14

generally be individually assessed. Lifetime expected credit losses are still recognized on these financial assets.
ETMBEEZ EERBIENEERGAEERENRE M EWAREREHEN A QI BEEERAEBNERE
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As the borrowers failed to pay any of the receivables due a year ago and without any
future repayment schedule, the ECL was measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

The Company has engaged Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited to issue valuation
report on the Impairments. The model of ECL under HKFRS 9 was used by the valuer
as the valuation methodology. The formula of calculating the ECL is as follows:

ECL = EAD x PD x LGD x Discount Factor
“EAD” being exposure at default;

“PD” being probability of default;

“LGD” being loss given default; and

“Discount Factor” being factor to discount the expected credit loss to present value.

Key assumption applied for the valuation includes categorising the loan receivables
as Stage 3. As the borrowers failed to pay any of the receivables as at the valuation
date and without any future repayment schedule, PD is set to be 100%. Based on the
financial information of the borrower provided and follow up action carried out by
the Company, credit assessment has been performed and specific recovery has been
applied. As such, LGD of approximately 91% has been assigned. The Discount Factor
is approximately 0.97.

The Board is of the view that the further impairment loss of HK$57,397,000 on loan
receivables for current year is fair and reasonable.

This segment recorded approximately HK$117,000 interest income (2020:
HK$3,995,000) as revenue and the segment loss was approximately HK$60,509,000
for the year (2020: HK$98,182,000). The substantial segment loss in previously
financial year was mainly due to the impairment loss of HK$36,969,000 being made
for the factoring receivables after credit evaluations.

The carrying amount of loan receivables arising from financing segment were
at HK$17,632,000 after deducting accumulated allowance of impairment loss of
HK$129,489,000 for the year. The carrying amount of factoring receivables were at
nil after deducting derecognition of HK$63,110,000 and accumulated allowance of
impairment of HK$71,979,000 for the year.
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The Group did not make any new loan during the year. The Group adhered to a
prudent risk management policy, with this segment continuously carrying out
rigorous and regular review of credit risk over all the existing and new finance
leasing clients. The Group will continue to adopt a careful and prudent credit risk
management strategy and closely monitored recoverability to ensure prompt follow-
up action is taken to receive any overdue debt.

Contact Lens Business
Fujian Unicon Optical Co., Ltd (“Fujian Unicon”), jointly established by the Group and
Taiwan Unicon Optical Co., Ltd. (“TW Unicon”, a company incorporated in Taiwan
with limited liability and listed on the Emerging Stock Board of Taipei Exchange
& EET15) (Stock code: 4150)) acquired a land parcel with a site area
of 80 mu in Mawei District, Fuzhou for the construction of the plant in January
2020. The construction works of the plant was commenced and the main structure
construction of the civil engineering completed at the end of March 2021. The
construction of GMP clean room and electrical engineering were under progress.
The completion-based check procedure is expected to completed at mid-2021 and
start obtained approval from public security and civil air defense, departments of
planning, municipal government and environmental protection, etc. In regard to
the procurement of production equipment, deposit for equipment of approximately
HK$263,810,000 has been paid as at the end of the year. The first batch of 2
production lines with 22 sets of equipment has arrived. At present, the equipment
is being installed and customised, and it is expected to be put into operation in July
2021. The remaining 5 production lines are scheduled to be in place by the end of
2021, and strive to form full production capacity by June 2022.

During the year, according to the Catalogue for Class Ill Medical Devices Exempt
from Clinical Trials, issued by the China Food and Drug Administration (%X &
M MEEBEIR4EE), Fujian Unicon is exempt from clinical trials for its soft
contact lens by ways of comparison. Fujian Unicon has selected six products in line
with the market of Mainland China from the 28 products of TW Unicon which have
obtained licenses in the PRC for development and production. The registration of
the six products is now in progress and the registration certificates of products are
expected to be obtained at the end of 2021. In addition, as for the new products,
Fujian Unicon has obtained the authorization for six major product categories with
the latest technologies in the market from TW Unicon, and conducted document
verification on the development progress of these six major product categories and
the establishment of documentation and experimental data required for future
product verification, so as to prepare in advance for the document and data required
by the PRC drug administration and examining authority. The registration certificates
of products are expected to be obtained in 2023 and the application for invention
patents of relevant products is under progress at the same time.
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Fujian Unicon has successfully obtained the domestic medical device sales permit
in 2020 and to ensure smooth application, relevant warehouse and quality control
personnel have been arranged and relevant software suitable for medical equipment
has been developed. The re-export business of contact lenses has commenced
during the year, and recorded a relatively low sales revenue of HK$1,829,000 as it
was still in its initial stage (2020: nil). The sales business may help us to enter the
domestic market, establish sales channels and better understand the PRC market,
thus laying a solid foundation for the successive release of production capacity
in future. This segment recorded a loss of HK$13,752,000 during current year
(2020: HK$3,801,000). The major expenses in this segment were staff costs, sample
research and development expenses and registration fees incurred for obtaining the
products registration certificates.

Other Operations

Gold mine

The 27% effective equity interest in the gold mine in the Republic of Kyrgyz was
fully impaired in previous years. The Company’s shareholding in the gold mine had
been pledged to secure a bank loan borrowed by the mining company to finance
its operation. On 14 May 2021, the equity interest of the gold mine was sold for a
consideration of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,400,000). Details
of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 14 May 2021.

Satellite Business

In July 2019, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with independent
parties pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed to subscribe
approximately 5.56% of the enlarged issued share capital of Bronzelink Holding
Limited, which is principally engaged in providing high capacity Ka-band satellite-
enabled internet network services, exclusively dedicated to the emerging markets
in Sub-Saharan Africa, for a subscription price of USD50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$392,805,000).

In view of the condition precedents cannot be fulfilled or waived by 31 December
2020 and the subscription was lapsed thereafter. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2020.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the current year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Finance position, liquidity and gearing

As at 31 March 2021, the total assets and liabilities of the Group were at
approximately HK$3,363,492,000 (31 March 2020: HK$2,973,927,000) and
approximately HK$2,521,991,000 (31 March 2020: HK$1,994,601,000) respectively.
The Group recorded a total equity of approximately HK$841,501,000 as at 31 March
2021 (31 March 2020: HK$979,326,000).

The Group recorded net current assets of approximately HK$289,728,000 as at 31
March 2021 (31 March 2020: HK$480,100,000). The bank balances and cash as at 31
March 2021 was approximately HK$632,707,000 (31 March 2020: HK$710,845,000),
of which most were denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The Group’s current ratio (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.12 (31 March 2020: 1.25).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total borrowing amounted to approximately
HK$875,898,000 (31 March 2020: HK$699,173,000) which were denominated in
Renminbi. The breakdowns are as follows:

(i) Secured bank and other borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$337,298,000 (31 March 2020: HK$612,773,000) with effective interest
rates in the ranges of 5% to 7.6%;

(ii) Unsecured other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$454,227,000
(31 March 2020: HK$7,703,000) with fixed interest rate ranges from 3% to
18%;
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(i) Interest free loan due to third parties, non-controlling interests and
ultimate holding company amounted to approximately HK$10,000 (31
March 2020: HK$745,000), approximately HK$58,737,000 (31 March
2020: HK$53,949,000) and approximately HK$1,666,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$1,675,000) respectively; and

(iv) Interest bearing loan from non-controlling interests amounted to
approximately HK$23,960,000 (31 March 2020: HK$22,328,000) with floating
interest rate.

As at 31 March 2021, committed borrowing facilities available to the Group
but not drawn amounted to approximately HK$168,288,000 (31 March 2020:
HK$205,036,000).

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings to total equity, as at 31 March 2021
was 1.04 (31 March 2020: 0.71).

Financial resources

During the year, the Group’s operations continued to be mainly financed by internal
resources, borrowings as well as proceeds raised from equity financing exercise in
December 2016. The management believes that the Group will generate its liquidity
from business operations and will consider making use of further equity financing
when necessary.

Use of proceeds from fund raising activities

In December 2016, the Company placed up to 1,280,000,000 new ordinary shares at
a price of HK$1.25 per ordinary share (the “Placing”). The net proceeds raised were
approximately HK$1,587,200,000 and as at 31 March 2021, the total unutilised net
proceeds were approximately HK$628,000,000.

Due to the development of NGSN is slower than expected, the Group believed it
would be in the interests of the Company and its shareholders to re-allocate the
intended use of the un-utilised proceeds from the Placing to segments where
revenue can be generated sooner.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of use of proceeds up to 31 March 2021 FXRFIEE_E_—F=H=+—HWNERFT
and the reallocation of the proceeds: BRIE RIS RIERN B D -

Utilised amount

Net proceeds BBARE
from the Placing Up to Un-utilised
in December Reallocation 31 March During Up to proceeds as at
2016 of the proceeds 2020 the year 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
RZEZ—fF
RIZ—RE BEE HE =B=+-H
+ZREE&ME FRiGRIAR ZEIZE ZEI-F HARE AN
TIERE EXiipiv =B=+-H RER =B=+-H FR{§TIE
HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million HKS million Notes
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET  ME
Development of the Next HET—RBEEEEL .
Generation Settlement Network:
(i) Hardware and software (i) B Rt 11110 (952.5) (49.0) (143) (63.3) 95.2 @)
(ii) Research and development (ii) B 2% 3175 (284.5) (9.7) - (9.7) 233 (b)
Expand the settlement services BIBEMIFF ] RR
through EMI license EEIRS - 300 - - - 300 ©
Set up subsidiaries in Mid-Asia for HERERINEAR
application of payment licenses MEREL [Them - 20.0 - - - 200 (d)
General working capital —REEES 158.7 1349 (2023) (347) (237.0) 56.6 ()
Potential investment opportunity in SRNEREMEEN
the Fintech and other industry BERERE = 567.6 (164.7) = (164.7) 4029 )
Use in financing husiness REXBERR - 177 (117.9) = 17.9) =
Repayment of loan related to the BERAMERBEER
property development business BENER - 366.8 (366.9) = (366.8) =
15872 - 9102) (49.0) (9590 6280

The current expected timeframe and detailed breakdown for the un-utilised 758 & >k Eh 3 PR 18 R TE AY 2R B3 78 HA B3 A5 2% R BA A
proceeds is as follows: SEBWR

@  Approximately HK$95,200,000 is to be applied to the hardware and software #995,200,0008 TN _E - "= Br1H
for the NGSN platform by March 2022; FANGSNF & BUFE 4 Re 8 14

—
Y
=

(b)  Approximately HK$23,300,000 is to be applied to the research and (b)  #923,300,000B TN —_E - _F=Fr A
development on the technical side of the NGSN by March 2022; FANGSNFZ T 75 B YA 2% 5

(©  Approximately HK$30,000,000 is to be applied to further expand the (0  #930,000,0008 TN —_E - _F=FrHA

settlement services for commercial and individual customers through EMI RBRIMIFAIBE—FTHEBEREAR
license by March 2022; BPEER ;
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Approximately HK$20,000,000 is to be applied to set up subsidiaries in
Mid-Asia for the application of EMI license or payment licenses to provide
settlement or payment services for commercial and individual customers by
March 2022;

Approximately HK$56,600,000 is to be applied to general working capital of
the Group and it's expected utilised by March 2022; and

Approximately HK$402,900,000 is to be applied for potential investment
opportunity in the Fintech and other industry to generate revenue for the
Group.

During the preceding financial year, the Board has decided to re-allocate
approximately HK$164,700,000 to establishment of contact lenses business.
The Group believed that it would be in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders to re-allocate the un-utilised proceeds to segments where
revenue can be generated sooner.

Share capital
As at 31 March 2021, the Company had 20,319,072,320 shares of ordinary shares in
issue and the total equity of the Group was approximately HK$841,501,000.

Charges on assets

As at 31 March 2021, certain property, plant and equipment with carrying amount
of approximately HK$248,265,000 (31 March 2020: HK$134,540,000) and certain
properties held for sale with carrying amount of approximately HK $146,246,000 (31
March 2020: HK $626,787,000) respectively, were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group.
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Contingent liabilities

The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers
of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is any
default of the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage loans together with accrued interests thereon
and any penalty owed by the defaulted purchaser to banks, the Group is then
entitled to take over the legal title of the related properties. The guarantee period
commences from the dates of granting the relevant mortgage loans and ends after
the buyer obtains the individual property ownership certificate. As at 31 March 2021,
the guarantee given to banks for the above-mentioned mortgage facilities amounted
to approximately HK$489,776,000 (31 March 2020: HK$1,074,002,000).

Foreign exchange exposure

As part of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, US dollars,
Hong Kong dollars and Euro, in order to minimise the foreign exchange risk, the
Group aims to utilise the fund for transactions that are denominated in the same

currency.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had approximately 170 employees. The employees’
salaries are reviewed and adjusted annually based on their performance and
experience. The Group’s employee benefits include performance bonus, medical
insurance, mandatory provident fund scheme, local municipal government
retirement scheme and education subsidy to encourage continuous professional
development of staff.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses and prospects
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. Key risks and uncertainties
affecting the Group are set out as below.
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Property market and operation risk

The business of the Group as a property developer in the PRC is subject to extensive
governmental regulations. The Group must comply with various requirements
mandated by the PRC laws and regulations, including the policies and procedures
established by local authorities. Policies and measures introduced or which may
be introduced by the PRC government and local authorities may lead to changes
in market condition and sentiment, including price instability and an imbalance
between supply of, and demand for, properties in Liuzhou City. The PRC government
implemented a series of regulations and policies on the property market to exert
direct and indirect influence to control the supply of land for property development,
raise the benchmark interest rates of commercial banks, place limitations for
commercial banks to give out loans to property developers and mortgage loans to
purchasers, impose additional restriction on foreign direct investment, increase taxes
and levies on property sales, slow down inflation of property prices, and dampen
property speculation.

A series of governmental policies and regulation measures on the real estate market
may tamper the Group’s ability to finance, acquire land for new development,
generate sufficient operating cash flows and positive profit. Further, the
implementation of the laws and regulations introduced by the PRC government
may lead to changes in market condition and sentiment, price instability and lack
of demand in the properties market of Liuzhou City. Any such changes could have a
material and adverse effect on the revenue, business operation and profitability of
the Group. The Group actively monitor changes of laws and regulations associated
with the business of the Group and consult legal staff or legal advisors to ensure the
Group’s compliance with policy, regulatory and governing requirements in order to
minimize the risks.

Interest rate risk

The Group relied on interest bearing debt as one of the important financing sources
to fund its operations and all of the loans are Renminbi denominated, thus any
changes in interest rate in the PRC will affect the costs of capital of the Group.
The Group has implemented certain interest rate management which includes,
among the others, close monitoring of interest rate movements and refinancing on
existing banking facilities or entering into new banking facilities when good pricing
opportunities arise.
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Credit risk or counterparty default risk

The main revenue generated from the Group’s financing business was interest
income from leasing parties. There are risks related to these counterparties unable
to fulfill their contractual obligations under lease agreements, financing agreements,
other financial and relevant transaction agreements. The Group assesses its
counterparty default risk prior to entering into any agreement through a rigorous
selection process and only deal with those counterparties that meet its internal
selection criteria and its initial due diligence check. Besides the Group will ongoing
monitoring the receivable collection status for taking necessary actions if needed.

Foreign investment risk

The Group’s settlement business covers different overseas countries. The Group
needs to face different political landscape and may expose to risks likes political and
economic instability, foreign exchange controls and change in regulations on local
business operations in certain countries. The Group closely monitors possible risks
and environment changes and implement immediate measures to minimise any
potential impact.

Information security and data privacy risk

The Group’s settlement business involves handling a large amount of personal
data and commercial and/or operational data. The Group failure to maintain
control over customer, commercial and/or operational data leads to a loss of data,
including a failure to prevent or detect a malicious attack on our system, may result
in reputational harm, regulatory investigations and potential fines. The Group
continues review our data privacy policies and practices with reference to changes in
privacy laws and regulation in the places we operate in; strengthened due diligence
and controls with respect to third party data processors; and taking compliance
assessments by data privacy teams across operations of the Group. In addition,
Information security is ensured through effective management systems, encryption,
access restrictions and process protocols.

Financial crime risk

The Group’s failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations relating to
International Sanctions, Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Bribery and Corruption
may result in legal or regulatory penalties, material financial loss or reputational
damage. The Group has implemented certain financial crime risk management
activities, which include adherence to anti-money laundering and sanctions policies
and the application of core controls such as client due-diligence screening and
monitoring.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICES AND PERFORMANCE

Environment protection is critical to the long term development of the Group. The
Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations regarding environment
protection and adopted effective measures to ensure that the construction sites
meet the applicable local standards and ethics in respect of environment protection.
Sustainability initiatives were held in construction sites by implementing internal
energy saving and recycling activities for the community to promote and educate
awareness of environment protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has on-going review the changes in enacted laws and regulations
affecting the operations and changes are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operating units when necessary. During the year ended 31
March 2021, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations which are significant to the operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS, CONTRACTORS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of suppliers
and contractors after years of cooperation. The Group will conduct appraisal of the
performance of suppliers and contractors regularly to ensure the product quality.

The Group has committed to provide satisfactory services to each customer in order
to maintain our brand competitiveness. The Group maintains close contact with the
customers and had regular review the requirements of customers and complaint.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to the shareholders
of the Company and business associates for their continued support, and extend
our sincere appreciation to all management and staff for their ongoing dedication,
commitments and contributions throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board
International Business Settlement Holdings Limited

Yuen Leong
DIRECTOR

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

YUEN LEONG

Executive Director

Mr. Yuen Leong, aged 63, was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on
1 January 2008. Mr. Yuen holds a master degree in mechanical engineering from the
Shanghai Jiao Tong University and was a senior research analyst of 1272 & B} 2T 2%
JB=.0) (Fujian Provincial Research and Development Center*) from 1985 to 1991.
Mr. Yuen has over ten years of experience in corporate management and operation.

CHAN SIU TAT

Executive Director

Mr. Chan Siu Tat, aged 50, has been re-designated from independent non-executive
Director to executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 September
2020. Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive Director of the Company
from September 2016 to August 2020. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1994 with a major in Accounting. He is
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of The Association Chartered of
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan possesses over 20 years of experience in corporate
restructuring, financial capital planning and corporate management. He is the
partner of a private equity company, which is mainly engaged in private equity
funds focusing on industries such as medical and financial internet platform
services. He was an assistant to the chairman from 2011 to 2015 and an executive
director and chief financial officer from April 2002 to August 2006 of CIMC-TianDa
Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited) (stock code: 445) listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) where he was mainly responsible for corporate
strategy, restructuring and financial planning. Mr. Chan was a non-executive director
of Tongguan Gold Group Limited (formerly known as China Mining Resources Group
Limited) (stock code: 340) listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
November 2006 to May 2008. From 2007 to 2010, Mr. Chan was a partner and chief
investment officer in an international private equity fund. From 1999 to 2002, Mr.
Chan was a financial controller of a trading and manufacturing group. Prior to
working in corporations, Mr. Chan had around five years of audit experience with an
international accounting firm.

* The English name is for identification purpose only.
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Biographical Details of Directors

YAP YUNG

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Yap Yung, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company on 20 August 2009. Mr. Yap graduated from the University of Hong
Kong in 1995 with a Bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering. He became a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999. He
has also completed an advanced management course held by the London Business
School and the University of Cambridge in 2003. Mr. Yap has over 10 years of
corporate finance and audit experience gained from his previous employment. Mr.
Yap was employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers as an audit manager from 1995 to
2002.

CHEN LANRAN

Independent non-executive Director

Ms. Chen Lanran, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 1 August 2019. Ms. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in finance from Fuzhou University in July 2002, and graduated in marketing from
School of Journalism and Communication, Peking University in July 2011. Ms.
Chen has over 15 years of experience in the marketing industry. Upon graduation,
Ms. Chen worked as a brand manager from 2002 to 2005 in Fujian Mobile
Communications Co., Ltd.. From 2005 to 2017, Ms. Chen worked as a brand manager
in China Mobile Communications Group Co., Ltd.. From February 2017 to present,
Ms. Chen is the principal of Fujian Yuyue Education Training Centre, and is in
charge of the overall planning, promotion and development of the campus, and its
expansion.

WONG KIN PING

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Kin Ping, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 September 2020. Mr. Wong has substantial experience
in the business of trading and merchandising. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Wong was a founder of a trading company which was principally engaged in general
trading business in Hong Kong. He was also the executive director of Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd (formerly known as Goldigit Atom-Tech Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 2362) listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from
2003 to 2005.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the

Company and to the enhancement of shareholder value. The Company is committed

to building and maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Board and

the management of the Company have been continually reviewing and enhancing

its corporate governance practices with reference to the principles and the code

provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Listing Rules”) to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has complied with the CG Code
save for the deviation mentioned below:

(@)

28

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1, the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should not be performed by the same individual.
However, the Company did not officially appoint a Chairman or a CEO during
the year. The responsibilities of the Chairman and daily management of
the Group’s business is handled by the executive Directors collectively and
supported by a team of senior management, which is in turn supported by
staff with relevant expertise and experience.

The Board considers that this arrangement allows for contributions from all
executive Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity
of the Company’s policies and strategies and the interest of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. Depending on the future development of the
business of the Company, the Board will review the existing structure and
consider the issue of nominating appropriate candidate to fill up the role of
Chairman and CEO.

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the Chairman should at least annually
hold meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other directors. Since the Company has not appointed a new
Chairman and no meeting was held between the Chairman and the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without
the executive Directors present during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman should attend the annual
general meeting. The Company does not at present have any officer with the
title Chairman. However, one of the Directors presents at the annual general
meeting held on 31 August 2020 was elected as chairman thereof to ensure an
effective communication with the shareholders thereat.
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(d)  Code provision F.1.3 stipulates that the company secretary should report to
the Chairman and/or the CEO. As the Company did not officially appoint a
Chairman or a CEO, the company secretary reported to the executive Directors
during the year.

Set out below are the details of the Company’s compliance with the CG Code for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ dealing in the securities of the Company. The
Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and received confirmation from
all Directors that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board during the year and up to the date of this annual report comprises the
following executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Leong

Mr. Chan Siu Tat (re-designated from independent non-executive Director
to executive Director on 1 September 2020)

Mr. Hu Jianjun (retired on 31 August 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yap Yung

Ms. Chen Lanran

Mr. Wong Kin Ping (appointed on 1 September 2020)

The Company believes that the current Board composition is well-balanced and of
a diverse mix appropriate for the business of the Company. The hiographical details
of the Board members are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors” of this annual report.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, are expressly
identified in all corporate communications where Directors have been mentioned
pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board at all the times had at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director has appropriate professional qualifications on accounting or related
financial management expertise. The total number of independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board maintain a strong independent
element on the Board in order to exercise independent judgment.

The Company received, from each independent non-executive Director of the
Company, an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is satisfied with the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

There is no relationship among the members of the Board.

Board Diversity policy

In order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
considers the enhancement of diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
facilitating the achievement of its strategic objectives and sustainable development.
The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules with effect from 26 November 2018 in view of enhancing the
combination of competencies and diversity of perspectives in the boardroom. The
summary of the Board Diversity Policy is disclosed as below:

- the Company acknowledge the Board should have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business;

- the Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all aspects of its
business and does not discriminate on the grounds of race, gender, disability,
nationality, religious or philosophical belief, age, sexual orientation, family
status or any other factor;

- in deciding the Board composition, board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge;

- in forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take into
account factors based on its own business model and specific needs from time
to time;
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- all Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity to the board. The selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diverse perspectives, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge;

- the ultimate decision will be based upon the merits and contribution the
selected candidates will bring to the Board; and

- the Nomination Committee will report on the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, review the Board Diversity Policy to ensure effectiveness and
recommend for any revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for formulating the business plans and strategies,
monitoring the business performance and internal control, approving investment
proposals and reviewing the finance performance of the Group. The daily operations
of the Group and execution of the business plans are delegated to the management
of the Group. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, Board approval
should be obtained. In addition, the Board has established Board Committees and
has delegated to these Board Committees various responsibilities set out in their
terms of reference respectively.

The Company has established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the guidelines was
noted.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times. In addition, every director should ensure sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company. Directors have satisfactory attendance
rates at both Board meetings and Committee meetings.
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Board meetings and general meetings

Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly with additional meetings if and when required. During
the year ended 31 March 2021, six Board meetings and one annual general meeting
(“AGM”) of the Company were held. Details of the Directors” attendance records are

as follows:

EFRTEERRRRE

EFRHECER

NERBE EXTCTHERAEZ -NBE_"T
T —E=ZA=+—HLEFEER > FRFABETN
REFEERN—ARRBFARE (REBFKX
) EFHFETHZFEUT

Attended/Eligible to attend

HEAERLUFRE
AGM held on
Board 31 August
Meetings 2020
RITZEHE
NB=+—H
BITZKRE
EETEE BHEXREG
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yuen Leong =t anas 6/6 11
Mr. Chan Siu Tat (Note (1)) PR/ (EE()) 6/6 11
Mr. Hu Jianjun (Note (2)) HHRE S (EEQ)) 2/2 N/A 38 A
Independent non-executive Directors B IEPITESE
Mr. Yap Yung BEEEE 6/6 11
Ms. Chen Lanran fREABZ LT 6/6 11
Mr. Wong Kin Ping (Note (3)) FEFRE (5E0)) 212 N/A 74 B
Notes: (1) re-designated from independent non-executive Director to executive  FizE: (1) WIS FNA—HEBIULIFNTE

Director on 1 September 2020
@) retired on 31 August 2020
3) appointed on 1 September 2020

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

All Directors have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for a regular
Board meeting. Notices of regular Board meetings are sent to Directors at least 14
days before the meeting date. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable

time is generally given.

The Directors have to declare their interests in the subject matters to be considered
in the relevant meeting and the director, who or whose associates have any interest
in any proposed resolution, must abstain from voting and will not be counted in

quorum.
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The agenda together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information were
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management when necessary.

Directors can, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the expenses of the Company. The Board shall resolve
to provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties to the Company.

Minutes of each Board meeting will be drafted by the company secretary of the
Company (‘Company Secretary”) to record the matters discussed and decision
resolved at the Board meetings and circulated to the Board for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting. The final Board minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection by Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles and responsibilities of chairman
and CEO should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
The Company did not officially have Chairman and CEO up to the date of this annual
report. The responsibilities of the Chairman and daily management of the Group’s
business is handled by the executive Directors collectively and being supported by
a team of senior management which is in turn supported by staff with relevant
expertise and experience.

The Board considers that this arrangement allows for contributions from all
executive Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of
the Company’s policies and strategies and the interest of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole. Depending on the future development of the business of the
Company, the Board will review the existing structure and consider the issue of
nominating an appropriate candidate to fill up the role of Chairman and CEO.

Appointment, Re-election and removal of Directors
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
are laid down in the Company’s bye-laws.

The Nomination Committee is to be responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. In selecting
and approving candidate for directorship, the Board will consider various criteria
such as education, qualification, experience, integrity and the potential contribution
to the Group.

EEREERMEREE TEKRIFEZERER

PREBEEEEFRMN=-KAEBESEL > UFE

TB?#T’FH&'%W RE-BEGRZESNAELE
BN N DR B EES AR EIEE

EXTRGEERNBEBFR ISRBULEER
B BERHARAAXN BEFERBZRABINDE
SREBUEXERR UM ERESEITEY
TABZEE

BEFETERCHRALTATARIWE (REMW
B EEUCHEFE TR LAREERFHZ
AR URNER—RAENERNERESZEE
RUBEARR EFTTRLHERERFHA
ANEREFUBRERER-

I,ﬁ& E&ll‘lh\d&
RIFEEEATRZTRUFEA 21 £/F A
THRRZABKBERDH BFRERE—A

BE-BEEFXFRAP AR TLELENZEE
BRITH@H EFZBERTERXEFZAE
EEAPTESEREE BEOEREEEEK
XFomehEEERBHEREEBEENHK
ez BT HEE -

EEEAR LLHEREETRAEENH# 2
RATESIEFEER BANREEEAT
ZHRRERE TRERRATRRZEREMN e
ENAABHBEBZER EFTRBHRA
RRBLE BiIRB e BAERRE TR RITEAB R
BERZEH o

ERZEE-EERER
EXZE EEREREFABREENELTZ
/L\\T,\\EHQ‘J"

RYZEEREAERNEFTERN BREFE
EREETEIURFEBIIFATET B
M- BRERMESERBAER EZTRSZR
ZRER ANBEEE BE &8 miTUR
HAEEZ BT

33

Annual Report 2020/2021 £



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has a service contract with a
term of service for one year and the contract will be renewed automatically for a
successive term of one year, each commencing from the next day after the expiry of
the current appointment term, unless terminated by either the independent non-
executive Director or the Company.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, one-third of the directors of the
Company for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
in every three years. If an independent non-executive Director serves more than
nine years, his/her further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. Any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction which includes provision of key guidelines, documents and publications
relevant to their roles, responsibilities and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the
Company’s structure, businesses, risk management and other governance practices
and meeting with other fellow Directors so as to help the newly appointed Directors
familiarise with the management, business and governance policies and practices of
the Company, and ensure that they have a proper understanding of the operations
and businesses of the Company.

The Company encourages its Directors to participate in continuous professional
development courses and seminars organized by professional institutions
or professional firms and read materials on relevant topics so that they can
continuously update and further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

On 29 June 2020, the Company provided an in-house training seminar
which seminar was conducted by an external counsel covering the company’
responsibilities and compliance issues as regard to the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange. All existing Directors attended
this seminar. In addition to this in-house training seminar and reading materials,
the Directors were provided with other materials in relation to the regular updates
to corporate governance practices, statutory requirements, listing rules and other
relevant topics related to listed company to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees with defined roles and responsibilities
for each committee. Such committees are the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and audit committee (the “Audit Committee”). All committees were
set up with a written terms of reference, which are in line with the relevant CG
Code and available to shareholders on the Company’s website, to deal clearly with
its authority and duties. The committees will report their findings and decisions
and make necessary recommendations to the Board. Minutes of the committee
meetings will be drafted by the Company Secretary and circulated for the comment
to the members of the committee within a reasonable time. The final version of
the committee minutes will be kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection by any Director. All committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Details of each committee and works performed during the year are as follows:

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is comprised of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors and the members are as follows:

Mr. Wong Kin Ping
(Chairman of Nomination Committee, appointed on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Siu Tat
Mr. Yap Yung
Ms. Chen Lanran

EFXZLET

ExgmiReEae ((RREET)) HFWNEE
g (FMEEg) hEXZET ((BXEET))
—EEEEXF MEZEERAHEHRB WUE
H:AREZBELE BELEOTSARE
FEATH LRARBBIEA I HARREH N
RERAEEENIRBE - ZEZEGRONEFS
BEHBEGERIORE  WIRXVBEZ -Z8
EERCHRARANEEE TN GERBA
FETEEENEUEHAER ZTEE G &R
ZRRERBHADWERT JHENESEE
R-FrEZEgHNERSTEE RUEITHERE
RRGEER IREEBERN TSRKBIEXR
RoBRBARTZe

FRREEERATIEZFBENT

RBZEEE
RYLZEEH—RATEFR=LBUIFNTE
S HREWT

TRV RE BBEEEL/E
RIE-FEFNAF—HAEZT
RS E

REXE

REHARL
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the size,
structure and composition of the Board, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of Directors with reference to the
Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) with effect from 26 November 2018 on the recommendation of
the Nomination Committee, which describes the procedure by which the Company
will select candidate(s) for possible inclusion in the Board. The Board considers
the Nomination Policy could strengthen the transparency and accountability of
the Board and Nomination Committee and election of Directors. In assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate before recommending to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies, the Nomination
Committee will consider: (i) character and integrity of the proposed candidate;
(i) qualifications of the proposed candidate including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy; (iii) accomplishment and experience of the proposed
candidate in the business from time to time conducted, engaged in or invested
in by any member of the Group; (iv) commitment of the proposed candidate in
respect of available time and relevant interest; (v) requirement for the Board to
have independent directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; (vi) Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board; and (vii) such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee also ensures the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are in line with the CG Code and are accessible through the
Company's website.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2021, amongst other matters, to review the size, structure and composition of
the Board, review the suitability of the candidates to be nominated to the Board
and to consider the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors.
Individual attendance of each member of Nomination Committee is set out below:

REZEENBE_T_—F=A=+—HL
FEBRTMAERH U EIERE BESFE
RE-REREN RAROEFTRE ZIRE
ABNBEEE TERERBIUIFATEFTZEY
M- REZEEEMEZER HEBREIWMT

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Nomination Committee Members REZEERE HEAERURE
Mr. Wong Kin Ping (appointed on 1 September 2020) FEFAEE (RE2FNA—H

BEE) N/A B

Mr. Chan Siu Tat PR/ E St 2/2

Mr. Yap Yung BEELY 212

Ms. Chen Lanran PRE BT 2/2

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is comprised of one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors and the members are as follows:

Mr. Wong Kin Ping

(Chairman of Remuneration Committee, appointed on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Chan Siu Tat

Mr. Yap Yung

Ms. Chen Lanran

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board regarding the Group’s policies and structure for remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Group; determining the remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management of the Group; and reviewing and approving
incentive schemes and performance-based remuneration. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are in line with the CG Code and are accessible
through the Company’s website.

#HINESE
HMEZEER—RRITESR=RBIUIFATE
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March ¥l ZEg@RNEBEE_S _—F=-HA=+—H1t
2021, amongst other matters, to review and determine the remuneration packages FE BRBITM AN D% L/( HAaa) EIRETE
of the Directors of the Company and make recommendations to the Board. The ZAATEZZ#HNETB T HBESIELIEREE
individual attendance of each member of Remuneration Committee is set out HoFHINEESTEHME ZER L BB REFTIAT :
below:

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Remuneration Committee Members HFINEEERE HEAERURE
Mr. Wong Kin Ping (appointed on 1 September 2020) FEFAEE RWEEFNE—HEZD N/A 78 FB
Mr. Chan Siu Tat BR/DESE 2/2
Mr. Yap Yung ERAE 2/2
Ms. Chen Lanran REBZ LT 212

Audit Committee BE%EZEE
The Audit Committee is comprised of independent non-executive Directors and the EZEE BB IFNTEEHEMN HEW T
members are as follows:

Mr. Yap Yung (Chairman of Audit Committee) BERYE ERZEZTE)

Ms. Chen Lanran PREBZ LT

Mr. Chan Siu Tat (re-designated from independent non-executive Director to fR/DESE (MBS FNA—H
executive Director and ceased to be member of the Audit Committee on HEIZIFRTESRAEARITES T
1 September 2020) TEABZEZEENS)

Mr. Wong Kin Ping (appointed on 1 September 2020) FTREFREE RZEZEFLBE—HEZD

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to manage the relationship between BIZEZEE 2 T EBREEZEEBANE REIMNERZ
the Company and its external auditor and monitor the audit scope and the process, — E{EN Z BIMA L R BRI BB B K2 Bt R &
to review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control system and BB FBREZ T WP IEHI R A R A E R KR
risk management and to provide advice and comments to the Board. The terms of MESEERMHERKEZ -BEREEG R
reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the (G Code and are accessible B &EEE AT ZREBIR AT HILE
through on the Company’s website. B o
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021 BWiZEZEERHEE_ZE_—F=H=+—HIEF
for considering re-appointment of auditors, reviewing the annual results of the EEZE{T=RZiH > UZEEEEZHM BRKX
Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the interim results of the Group for HEEHE _Z_—F=HA=+—HIEEEZFE
the six months ended 30 September 2020 and discussing with the auditors of the EEURAERHE_S_SFEAA=1+HIEN
Company on internal control procedures and financial reporting systems, auditors' 183 =z FHHR 245 > W B AN B IZ BN 51 56 A R P
independence, auditors’ remuneration and reviewing the risk management and  ZBIEHIFEF R FSE R AL L EEN 2 B M
internal control system of the Group. The individual attendance of each member of A% B{ET 2 Bl S Fe i 5 7 &2 [ J&\ s 5 TR % P9 B 42 61

Audit Committee is set out below: RF-BRZEZEBSHME 2B HEBERETIN
.
Attended/
Eligible to attend
Audit Committee Members BERZZEENE HE AEREE
Mr. Yap Yung BEBAE 33
Ms. Chen Lanran ERBZ T 3/3
Mr. Chan Siu Tat (re-designated from independent non-executive ~ PR/DEHRE R _BE_FF N H—H
Director to executive Director and ceased to be member of the ABIIERITESHITAPITES L
Audit Committee on 1 September 2020) TBABEZZEENE) il
Mr. Wong Kin Ping (appointed on 1 September 2020) FEFAE RWE-EFNE—HEZD 2/2
Corporate Governance Functions TEERMAE

As at 31 March 2021, no corporate governance committee has been established. W _ZE - —F=ZH=+—H > KABWELIL T
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board, with the help of the Audit EBAZEZT - RNEE_ZE_—F=B=1+—H
Committee, was responsible for determining the policy for the corporate governance It EE EEGNBEZEZEENE FTEASET

of the Company and performing the corporate governance duties below: KRB EERBERPITTIINCEERHE -

—  developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on corporate  — HIEEETAERTCEXEABRL BRI
governance and making recommendations; TEREEES;

—  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional — (ENEREEANTEEZRSHAEEREZIZ
development of the directors and senior management of the Company; IRFFBEEER;

—  reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance — (I RERAEFBEETAEEREER
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements; EEREAEZBERER;

—  developing, reviewing and monitoring any codes of conduct and compliance — HIE -GS RERAEFBEEREESBHHRZ
manuals applicable to employees and directors of the Group; and FRTATRRERFM &

—  reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure — (ENREBBETFLEESATIRNLEE
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report. ARETPIREREZIER
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Board is responsible for to prepare balanced, clear and understandable financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
statutory and regulatory requirements. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that (i) appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently, (ii)
judgements and estimates made are prudent and reasonable and (iii) the financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The responsibility of external auditor of the Company is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements prepared
by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders of the Company.
A statement by the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibility is set out under the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems of the Group to safeguard shareholders’ investment
and the Group’s assets. No risk management committee has been established and
the Board, with the help of the Audit Committee, reviews the overall effectiveness
and oversees the management of the Group in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

The Board continuously monitors the Group’s risk management framework, review
the Group significant risks and conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the
risk management system. The Board determines the nature and extent of significant
risks it is willing to take in achieving the strategic objectives of the Group.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems include, among others,
the relevant financial, operational and compliance control and risk management
procedures or policies, a well-established organizational structure with a clearly
defined line of responsibilities and authorities. Each department is accountable
for its daily operations and is required to implement the policies adopted from
the Board from time to time. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to
confirm that control policies are properly complied with by each department.
The management had reported to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

The Company does not have internal audit department. During the year ended
31 March 2021, Directors, through the Audit Committee with the help of external
consulting firm, have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. The Company has engaged an external consulting firm to conduct a review of
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the major operating subsidiaries
of the Group. Areas for improvement have been identified and appropriate measures
have been taken to provide assurance that key operational risks are identified and
managed.

The Company has an established insider information policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure
and responding to enquiries.

The Board with the help of Audit Committee and the external consulting firm, have
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021, which covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management of
the Group and deemed them effective and adequate, despite having identified areas
of improvement.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, BDO Limited (‘BDO”) was engaged as the external
auditor of the Company. The remuneration paid or payable to BDO in respect of
audit services and non-audit services are as follows:

=M =
BE-S--—#-A=+—HIEE BBIR
EERHMERAARAR (EEE) EEA
A AT L BET o FEB BRI R IR MRHT
RN I EEEOHSTT :

Fee paid/payable

et ERER

HK$'000

Nature of service R E FET
Audit services in relation to annual results BRI FEENZERTE 1,760
Review of interim financial statement EB P BHRE 520
2,280

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Yau Tong (“Mr. Chung”) was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company since 1 January 2008. Mr. Chung is a full time employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Chung had complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year and had taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training for the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by shareholders
and putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) deposited at the head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3103, 31/F, Sino Plaza, 255 —
257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition, including making proposals or moving a resolution at a special general
meeting.
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Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene a special general meeting for the purpose
of making proposals or moving a resolution at a special general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned,
his/her/their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene a special
general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the details of the business(es)
proposed to be transacted in the special general meeting, signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board has not advised the
Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves
may do so in accordance with bye-laws, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders of the Company may submit their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing by addressing them to the Board by post or delivery to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 3103, 31/F, Sino Plaza, 255 — 257
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The bye-laws of the Company are published on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company. There was no change
to the bye-laws of the Company during the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

Major channels to communicate information to Shareholders and the investors
include: the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual
general meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, publication
of all disclosed information submitted to the Stock Exchange on the websites of
the Company and Stock Exchange. The Company will continuously ensure the
effectiveness and timeliness of information disclosure to Shareholders and the
investors. The Board welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the
Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or the management directly.
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Shareholders of the Company and investors can mail any enquiries, comments,
suggestions and recommendations to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong at Unit 3103, 31/F, Sino Plaza, 255 — 257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong, the Board or their delegates will reply and response to you
promptly.

Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders of the
Company to be its goal. It is the policy of the Board, in declaring or recommending
a payment of dividends, to allow our shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. On 26
November 2018, the Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee in order to promote greater Dividend
Policy transparency. In deciding whether to recommend the payment of dividend to
the shareholders, the Board will take into account of (i) general business conditions
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company; (ii) the financial condition
and results of operations of the Group; (iii) the expected capital requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group; (iv) future prospects of the Group; (v) statutory
and regulatory restrictions; (vi) contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends
by the Group to the shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the Company to the
Company; (vii) taxation considerations; (viii) shareholders’ interests; and (ix) other
factors the Board may deem relevant. The Board may also pay half-yearly or at
other suitable intervals to be settled by it any dividend which may be payable at a
fixed rate if the Board is of the opinion that the profits of the Company justify the
payment.

Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the financial and
cash-flow position of the Group, such Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be recommend
or declared in any particular amount for any given period. The declaration of or
recommendation of declaration of dividends is subject to the absolute discretion
of the Board. Even if the Board decides to recommend and declare dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions and
other factors of and affecting the Group. The payment of dividend is also subject to
applicable laws and regulations and the Company’s constitutional documents.

4.4
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PREAMBLE

International Business Settlement Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is an enterprise with diverse businesses
including property development, hotel business, international business
settlement, financing business, contact lens business and other operations. To
create value for all in a sustainable manner while maintaining a social licence
to operate, the Group has been working on developing a robust approach to
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) management and establishing
corporate procedures to properly understand, identify, evaluate and control
the ESG-related risks it faces.

With the COVID-19 pandemic (the “pandemic”) haunting the world over
one year, the Group has persevered in adjusting its business operations and
insisting on its visions to fight for sustainability to tide over this challenging
period in the Group’s history. Leveraging its expertise and experience in its
field to help its employees and its host communities navigate through the
global disasters, the Group rapidly launched programmes and developed
processes that were needed to protect and support its stakeholders, addressing
urgent community needs in response to the governments’ calls.

Although the pandemic diverted significant resources in 2020, the Group
keeps still progressing in line with its ESG values that contributes to the
sustainable development of itself and a wider society where it operates,
thereby minimising its environmental impacts, promoting its employees’
wellbeing and enhancing the quality of its products and services.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

In strict compliance with the requirements under Appendix 27 —
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide to the Listing Rules,
the Group is pleased to present its ESG Report (‘ESG Report”) for FY2020/2021,
which demonstrates the Group’s approach and performance in terms of its
ESG management and corporate sustainable development for FY2020/2021.

Reporting boundaries

Adopting the operational control approach, this ESG report covers the
environmental and social performance within the operational boundaries of
the Group that include its major business segments of property development,
financing business, contact lens business and office operations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), Hong Kong and Lithuania. For corporate
governance section, please refer to pages 28 to 44 of the Group’s 2020/2021
Annual Report. The reporting period of this ESG report is for the financial
year 2020/2021 (“FY2020/20217), from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021, unless
specifically stated otherwise.

Reporting principles
The Group has followed the following reporting principles, namely Materiality,
Quantitative, Balance and Consistency, in its preparation of the ESG Report.

Materiality: Materiality is the threshold at which aspects become sufficiently
important that the relevant information around them should be disclosed. As
such, the Group conducted an annual materiality assessment through online
surveys with key stakeholders and reported on the boundary and significant
ESG issues that may exert a great impact on the Group’s business in the long
run.

Quantitative: The application of the reporting principle of Quantitative
was reflected in the calculation and numeric presentation of the Group’s
environmental performance such as annual greenhouse gas (‘GHG”) emissions
and the Group’s social performance including the employment structure in
terms of gender, age and position types.
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Balance: The Group ensured that a fuller picture of the Group’s sustainable
development can be delivered to its stakeholders, thereby entrusting an
external sustainability expert who provided advisory support on reporting
based on an array of balanced and fair information. The Group was
fully transparent on the critical elements including both its outstanding
achievements and rooms for improvement in comparison with its previous
performance.

Consistency: The Group adopted a consistent reporting framework and a series
of reporting techniques including the categorisation of business segments for
evaluation and the calculation methodology for GHG emissions that were in
alignment with its previous ESG Reports, aiming to add more coherence to
the entire reporting process and build a roadmap visualising its sustainable
growth to all.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS

With the global focus being increasingly shifted to the implications of climate
change and a range of sustainability-related topics, the Group has noticed the
growing emphasis of its stakeholders including authorising institutions on
sustainability leadership. As such, the Group has been speeding up its efforts
to embed sustainability into its corporate DNA by rethinking its business
processes, culture and its everyday agenda — all underpinned by its well-
developed governance structure.

To integrate sustainability into its strategic and operational decisions, the
Group reviews the way of how ESG has been governed and overseen at
the Board and executive level. The Group’s governance structure forms a
reinforcing mechanism as a top decision-making layer for ESG management
with senior management as its member has been developed. Aiming to
provide strategic guidance for the Group’s overall ESG management, the
task force is responsible for reporting relevant procedures and findings in
risk control to the Board in a timely manner, enabling the Board to have a
comprehensive and timely understanding of the Group’s ESG risks and make
more informed decisions.
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The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses and takes the
lead on and assumes ultimate responsibility for the Group’s ESG affairs and
reporting. The Board reviews and monitors the Group’s performance against
its well-defined ESG strategy and ambitions. The Audit Committee has been
set up under the Board’s leadership to review internal risk management
approach and process, and provide advice for the Board, through which the
Board can be adequately informed of the latest ESG affairs prior to making
any business decisions. As for the external ESG developments, materials in
relation to the updates to relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group’s business are prepared by the media office of the Group
including ESG Newsletter and provided to the Board for learning through
email and regular board meetings.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) management system of the Group
covers its headquarter and subsidiaries. The Board is the highest decision-
making body for CSR work. A CSR Leading Group has been established to
implement the CSR work plans, while the Investor Relations Department
and the Company Secretarial Department of the Hong Kong headquarter
are responsible for the day-to-day liaison in respect of CSR issues and for
dovetailing with the subsidiaries’ responsible departments and relevant
persons in charge. The subsidiaries have also set up their own CSR
management systems under the principle of practicality.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT Iv.
To stay competitive in the market, it is crucial to understand and meet
stakeholders’ expectations in planning business strategies. With the goal

to strengthen corporate sustainability approaches and performance while
enhancing stakeholders” awareness of ESG and sustainability issues, the Group

has put efforts into its stakeholder inclusiveness. The Group highly values

the feedback from its stakeholders and takes initiative to foster a sound and
supporting relationship with them through various communication channels,

which are listed in the table below.

Table 1. Communication with Stakeholders

FpEsH

WEFRHBNGRF N TREEIFD
ENHEERIEFRBRIEHEEERZ -
et E e FEE R HRERR RN
BEMNEHRE HEREAKRAIFELE
BRHE AEBERNEZ2RESEIFH
BH-AEESEERFKNELTHRERR
R BB TRARNZEEBRE T2
R PEREREKREBAIRF

RLAFHERE

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
FhE TEHA R BRI ERL BREERE
Government and regulatory authorities - Compliance with laws and - Supervision on complying with local
BRKREEHE regulations laws and regulations
- BTEEER - HETHEEEERBELNEE

- Sustainable development
- FAEEER

- Occupational health and safety

- BERERZE

- Supervision on complying with local
laws and regulations
- HETHAEEREIRBEINGEE

- Routine reports and taxes paid

- ERBEKEGRE
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels

FinE FEHA R BRERS BEERE

Shareholders - Return on investments - Regular reports and announcements
BEER - KELO®W -  THRERRMm

- Corporate governance

-  ©&XEAS

- Compliance with laws and

regulations
- EEEER
Employees - Employees’ remuneration and
ES benefits
- (EEFMEER

- Career development

- HEHE

- Health and safety in the workplace

- IFIRERERZR
Customers - High-quality products and services
TR - EnEELKRRT

- Customers’ rights

- EPREN

- Customers’ satisfaction

- EFRREE
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Regular general meetings

ERREARE
Official website of the Group

RERE S

Performance reviews

EE Y

Regular meetings and training

TR g ZIE

Emails, notice boards, hotline, caring
activities with the management

BN -AER R BEEERE
V)

Customer satisfaction survey
ERMEERE

Face-to-face meetings and on-site
visits

HHESRKRIRSFN

Customer service hotline and email
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
& FEHAR BRIERS BEERE

Suppliers - Fair and open procurement - Open tender
R - ATRFEEREE - REEE

General public

S

- Win-win upstream and
downstream cooperation

- EFLERTREAE

- Protection of intellectual property
rights
- IREFFERE

- Involvement in communities
- HHEZHA

- Compliance with laws and
regulations

- BYTEEER

- Environmental protection
awareness
- EREE#H

- Suppliers’ satisfactory assessment

- HEEHEEME

- Telephone conferences, Face-to-face
meetings and on-site visits

- BEER OHESRKRSES

- Media conferences and responses to
inquiries

- EREEAHETHNOE

- Public welfare activities

- RmEE

- Face-to-face interviews

- EHETH
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Materiality assessment

Since ESG risks and opportunities vary across different companies with various
backgrounds, business operation models and concerns, the Group took the
dual materiality approach and performed an annual materiality assessment
to identify matters that may impact both the society as well as the Group’s
standing and operational performance, through an outward- and inward-
looking perspective in evaluating material issues. In FY2020/2021, the Group
engaged its key stakeholders to conduct a materiality assessment survey
initiated by a third-party agency in order to guarantee the accuracy and
objectivity of the evaluation. Specifically, internal and external stakeholders
including customers, suppliers, business partners, board members and
employees from various business units of the Group were chosen and assessed
based on their respective influence and dependence on the Group with
reference to 15026000. Selected stakeholder representatives were invited to
express their concerns about various sustainability issues via a well-designed
online survey to pinpoint the ESG issues that were identified as material
to the Group’s business development and strategies. Through a science-
based materiality assessment, the Group eventually formulated a materiality
assessment matrix below, which could reflect the prioritisation relevant ESG
matters. This objective and transparent assessment acted as a powerful tool in
facilitating the Group to develop action plans for effective ESG management.
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With respect to this ESG Report, the Group identified “Preventing Child
and Forced Labour”, “Labour Practices”, “Intellectual Property Rights”,
“Product Quality” and “Customer Privacy and Data Security” as issues of high
importance to both the Group and its stakeholders. This review helped the
Group in prioritising its sustainability issues and highlighting the material and

relevant aspects, so as to align them with stakeholders’ expectations.

Progress on Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

The Group’s approach to sustainability is guided by its sense of purpose:
to create long-term value for all and manage its business in a balanced
and responsible way. Through the engagement with stakeholders, the
Group chose to focus on these the following six SDGs to which it believes
can make meaningful contributions. As a supporter of the United Nations
Global Compact, the Group has been committed to driving progress towards
achieving the global sustainability targets by playing a key role in promoting
SDGs locally and nationally.
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SDG 2: Agricultural land protection

Under the principle of sub-targets set out in Goal 2, the Group made
investments in the exploration of feasible ways for environmental protection
and the improvement of business resilience to environmental hazards,
resource scarcity and other climate-related risks in its supply chain during
business, especially in the property development sector. The Group has been
working tirelessly to adapt its business to and stay at the cutting-edge of
sustainable property development by evaluating the level of vulnerability
of its business model, setting targets on energy and resource consumption
and importantly, championing innovations in the construction, delivery and
management of its villas, townhouses, commercial buildings, office buildings,
hotels and high-rise apartments.

SDG 3: Health protection

In the past year, the pandemic led to the growing recognition of the
importance of people’s health and safety. As a top priority in business
operations, the Group took a series of measures to safeguard the safety of its
people, business partners and customers. Extending its efforts towards the
community health, the Group also donated epidemic prevention materials
such as masks and sanitisers to those in need in the society. More details
about the Group’s contribution to the health and safety of the local society
can be found in the section of Community Investment.

The Group has set up policies that respect its employees’ basic rights. The
provision of appropriate health-care options is one of the priorities to which
the Group has been sticking for remaining a robust momentum in the market.
With the provision of basic health insurance and medical care benefits to
its employees, the Group enables that the health and well-being of all its
employees can be emphasised on the group’s level. Meanwhile, the Group has
brought in multiple internal policies and measures in an effort to eliminate
occupational health and safety related risks. The Group takes the responsibility
to protect the end-users from any potentially negative health impacts by
sourcing eco-friendly building materials, monitoring the use of resources in
the building environment and improving the management service quality. In
the past three years, the Group did not find any cases of work-related injury
and will continue to implement internal policies to keep the figure at zero.
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SDG 4: Talent retention

The Group provides its employees with non-discriminative and open
access to vocational training opportunities and internship programmes.
Continuous learning, upskilling and reskilling opportunities are available for
its employees, while the Group designs special programmes for newly hired
staff and mid-career professional. Apart from in-house training programmes,
the participation in the courses held by external training organisations is
highly recommended by the Group as well. To develop an ongoing learning
culture within the organisation, the Group motivates its employees to obtain
more job-related qualifications with incentives such as reimbursements.
In FY2020/2021, a total of 146 employees of the Group attended relevant
training programmes and their average training time was around 6.80 hours
per person. The Group aims to further diversity its training courses that can
equip its employees with more capabilities and knowledge to handle difficult
tasks.

SDG 5: Diversity & equal opportunity

To ensure all females of the Group are empowered with full and effective
involvement in the Group’s activities and with equal opportunities for
leadership at all levels of decision-making, the Group strives to increase the
diversity and inclusion in its talent pool by increasing female representation.
To raise awareness about gender equality, the Group’s human resources
policies promote equal remuneration for both women and men and are
in strict compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests.

SDG 6: Water conservation

Reckoning that SDG 6 goes beyond drinking water, sanitation and hygiene that
touches on the protection and restoration of water-related ecosystems, the
Group is dedicated to the improvement of water quality by reducing water
pollution and minimising release of hazardous waste during operations.

During the year under review, the contact lens business of the Group has set
the water conservation target of reducing 50% water consumption during
its manufacturing process in the future. In addition, the production has also
adopted a series of preliminary treatment process before discharge to avoid
any contamination of natural water bodies. More information about the
water conservation targets and progress, please refer to the section A.2. Use of
resources.
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SDG 8: Decent job creation

Following the principle of responsible employment strategies, the Group
has been committed to creating a decent and cosy working environment
for its employees with fair and competitive salary and benefits packages by
benchmarking the industry level. The Group endeavours to keep optimising its
supply chain management in collaboration with its business partners, aiming
to transit to local procurement gradually that is conducive to creating more
employment opportunities for communities.

Stakeholder feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, the Group welcomes stakeholders’
feedback and advice on the improvement of corporate ESG approach and
performance, especially under the topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment. Readers are also welcomed to share their views
with us at https://www.ibsettlement.com/contact.php or via mail.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Caring for the planet is essential as a series of sustainability-related crisis
including environmental degradation and water scarcity are posing serious
threats to the well-being of all races and species that inhabit the planet.
To reduce environmental footprints and strive for positive impacts on the
environment where the Group works, the Group has put enormous efforts in
controlling its emissions and consumption of resources, and has complied
with all relevant environmental laws and regulations in the PRC and other
areas where the Group operates in its daily operations, including but not
limited to:

. Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ({5 #E

ANREMBIRIRREED);

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution ((FP 2 A R HEM B A RIS RHEED);

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of

Water Pollution ((FREE A R HAMBAISHEEED);

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ({(FRZE A R A [EBE EE
EYERIRIBIR A A >>)
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. Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving Energy ({FRZE A
REMBIEAIRETRED);

. Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

. Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong);
and

. Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

This section will primarily disclose the Group’s policies and practices on
emissions, use of resources, and environmental and natural resources during
FY2020/2021.

A.1. Emissions
In FY2020/2021, the Group complied with all relevant local
environmental laws as set out in the regions where the Group operated.
During the year under review, the Group was not in violation of any
laws or regulations relevant to exhaust gas or GHG emissions, water or
land discharging and hazardous or non-hazardous wastes.

In pursuit of minimisation of GHG emissions, the Group is dedicated
to climate protection and remains aligned with the national goal of
being carbon neutral by 2060. In FY2020/2021, the major source of
GHG emissions from the Group was from the burning of fossil fuels for
transportation and the purchase and consumption of electricity. The
Group’s total GHG emissions amounted to 152.88 tonnes COze and the
GHG intensity for the Group was 1.79 tonnes CO2¢/HK$ million. The air
pollutants included sulphur oxides (“S0x”), nitrogen oxides (NOX”) and
particulate matter (PM) that were mainly from the burning of fossil
fuels for vehicles. In addition, the Group generated a total of 1.3 tonnes
of non-hazardous solid waste. A total of 31,110 m? of non-hazardous
wastewater was generated from the Group’s operations. Meanwhile,
since the newly started up contact lens business has not been officially
commenced yet, there were no hazardous solid waste nor wastewater
being generated during the year under review. For more detailed
information about the quantitative data of the Group’s environmental
performance, please refer to Table E1 in the Appendix.
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Financing Business

Emissions from the Group’s financing business segment included
greenhouse gases (‘GHGs”), municipal solid waste and municipal
wastewater. In the financing business segment, the vast majority of GHG
emissions came from the use of electricity supporting office operations.
To reduce GHG emissions, specific measures have been taken to reduce
electricity consumption in the office, which will be further described in
A.2.Use of Resources.

To lower the amount of solid waste and drive sustainable practices
during its daily operations in the office, the Group has implemented the
following practices:

. Separate and recycle solid waste;

. Encourage employees to bring their own lunchbox so as to
reduce the use of disposable items such as plastic tableware; and

. Advocate the reuse of office stationeries.

The non-recyclable municipal solid wastes are normally collected and
disposed of by the management team of the property building.

In FY2020/2021, the wastewater generated from the office of the Group
was mainly commercial wastewater, which was directly discharged
into the municipal drainage system and handled by the property
management team. Since the amount of wastewater highly depends
on the amount of water used, to reduce the amount of wastewater
generated, the Group has taken specific measures to encourage better
practices of using water during daily operations in the office, which will
be further discussed in A.2. Use of Resources.
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Property Development

As a responsible enterprise, the Group is very cautious about all
the emissions related to the property development business. In
FY2020/2021, emissions from this business sector included air
pollutants, GHGs, wastewater, solid waste, dust and noise. The Group
has established various policies and implemented effective practices to
control and manage the amount of emissions and wastes during the
year under review.

Air Emissions and GHG Emissions

The main sources of air and GHG emissions in this business sector were
the usage of gasoline in vehicles and the purchase and consumption of
electricity. To manage the emissions related to these areas, the Group
has focused its efforts on energy conservation and implemented specific
measures, which will be further described in A.2. Use of Resources.

Wastewater

The generation of wastewater is unavoidable at the construction
sites and the concerns about the pollution problems caused by
inappropriate discharge have drawn the attention of the Group, which
has carried out the following practices in particular to manage its onsite
wastewater, such as:

. Segregate domestic sewage from construction wastewater and
remove oil and residue by filtration before discharging into the
municipal sewage network;

. Set up internal wastewater treatment plant to treat wastewater in
the self-built septic tank with three setting layers in the drainage
system before discharging the wastewater into the municipal
sewage pipe network;

. Use coagulant to enhance sedimentation efficiency;

. Perform self-monitoring on a regular basis to ensure that the
effluent meets the prescribed standards; and

. Maximise the usage efficiency of water resources at all stages,
such as recycling and reusing the wastewater for cleaning.
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Solid waste

Solid waste is inevitable during most construction & demolition
practices. The Group has classified solid wastes during its construction
practice, including land excavation waste, broken bricks, mortar,
concrete and plastic package. To reduce solid waste emissions, the
Group has enacted several policies and implemented practices in
respect of the “3R” principles (reduce, re-use and recycle), including

. Optimise site logistics to ensure that all materials are aligned
with the construction progress in the correct order so as to reduce
waste generation;

. Reuse land excavation waste to backfill;

. Store construction waste at designated locations for
transportation and disposal regularly;

. Recycle residual materials from the construction sites, including

residual steel, wood and non-hazardous solid waste;

. Sell plastic packages to recycling stations for further handling;

. Use eco-friendly materials in construction operations, such as

materials with recycled content;

. Ensure that workers on site are in good awareness of the “3R”
principles; and

. Review onsite practices through regular monitoring.

International Business Settlement Holdings Limited El@E2EEZERARAT

IE)z2 7

B B IS A BB D B R K FRiBAZ
ThEFTE#R  AEEEKERBRED
WERBENET T 2 SEZLE
B RESDEGRRIRENEEK
R BERREYNHNE  ~EE R
F3RJRR CRUADER EEERAKLE
RBEE) FIESEBRL BIMME &
&

o BEIYRLERFTE RM
FHZ ERERYIE Fr B2 i T & 1R
F—20 DURD BRI |

- EEEREZELIRBESEE,

s REEBVRBEETERIEEME
ERERNEE ;

o [EWERIMAFIEGFME B5F
I BR 8 A1 ~ AN e B E B BE s
) ;

c  RENEKRE TOWILFE—
TERiE;

«  RERZEERBEREFEME /N
BEBLESENME;

. BRIBEBIATD THRI3RIE
85 &

-  EREREBRSESBME



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR « 1B R ERHS

Dust

Dust generated from the construction site is also a threat to both
the environment and workers’ health. As such, the Group has taken
measures to control the dust, including:

. Clean vehicles’ wheels and underbody before leaving the
construction site;

. Use a sealed vehicle to transport dust;

. Set appropriate speed limits and reduce the frequency of
transportation through better planning;

. Rinse the ground or sprinkle water daily to settle the dirt and
avoid sludge accumulation; and

. Install pressurised dust reduction spray devices along the main
road of the construction site.

Noise

In FY2020/2021, the Group did not receive any complaint about noise
nuisance from its surrounding residents. As listed below, the Group has
taken effective measures to mitigate noise during operations:

. Take effective measures to lower the noise level around
construction sites, including the installation of noise enclosure,
noise barrier and vibration isolation facilities;

. Use equipment and construction methods with lower noise and
lower vibration;

. Regulate certain operating periods for the use of equipment/
machinery; and

. Strengthen real-time monitoring and the control of noise in the
construction site to ensure its compliance with the prescribed
standards.
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Contact lens business

The contact lens business was newly established by the Group since
FY2019/2020. As of the reporting date, the construction works of the plant and
the main structure construction of the civil engineering were commenced,
yet the manufacturing process has not been started yet. Considering that the
incomplete environmental data cannot provide a comprehensive picture of
the Group’s environmental performance, the quantitative environmental
data of this business segment was excluded from the data calculation and
report disclosure. Meanwhile, expecting some inevitable emissions that may
arise from the plants’ future operations, the Group has already prepared and
enacted a series of measures for future management which can being found
below. The full disclosure of more comprehensive environmental analysis will
be presented in the future reports when the contact lens business officially

commences.

Air Emissions and GHG Emissions

The main sources of air and GHG emissions in this business sector will
probably be the usage of gasoline in vehicles and machinery, and the
purchase and consumption of electricity. To manage its air emissions, the
Group will formulate and implement internal standards that meet or even
exceed all applicable regulations. The manufacturing processes may generate
different types of air emissions in the future. For instance, Nonmethane
Hydrocarbons (NMHC) will be generated in the production process, which
will be handled according to the Emission Standard of Volatile Organic
Compounds for Printing Industry (DB35/1784-2018). Specifically, NMHC will
be collected and connected to the spray tower for preliminary treatment, and
then discharged through a 15-metre exhaust pipe.

Hazardous waste

The hazardous solid waste and wastewater that will be generated in this
business segment in the future mainly will include waste ink (HW49) from
the production process, glycerol waste liquid used for the cleaning of liquid
injection machine pipeline (HW06), resin-containing experiment residue from
research and development (R&D) laboratory (HWO06), and saturated spray
tower circulation waste liquid (HW49), etc. The hazardous solid waste will be
collected in a unified manner and handed over to qualified organisations with
Hazardous Waste Business License (f& PR BE ¥4 & 7 5] 58) for handling and

disposal.

Meanwhile, the hazardous wastewater primarily containing suspended solid,
organic matters and ammonia nitrogen generated from the manufacturing
process will be collected through the production wastewater pipeline in the
factory, pre-treated in the coagulation sedimentation process and finally
discharged via the municipal sewage pipe network.
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The Group has designated a full-time environmental protection management
team, which will be responsible for the monitoring of compliance in
operations with applicable environmental laws, regulations and standards
by performing Applicability Evaluation (& FBMEEE(E) for every six months,
according to the Applicability Evaluation Form of Environmental Protection

Law Standards (RIREZRIREBAMTER) .

Emission controls
The Group plans to take various measures to manage and minimise emissions
from the contact lens plant and its operation, including:

. Reinforce the environmental awareness of employees through training
and the building of environmental management system;

. Implement the daily maintenance of equipment to prevent any
unorganised discharge of exhaust gas, wastewater and noise that may
be caused by equipment malfunction; and

. Adopt the pollution prevention and control measures as proposed
by the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) to guarantee that all
discharges meet the standards.

PROGRESS

To move towards an environmentally friendly corporation that fulfils its
responsibility in realising environmental sustainability, the Group has
put efforts in monitoring and controlling its environmental impacts in
FY2020/2021. As compared to the performance in the previous financial
year, the amount of air emissions surged primarily due to the expansion
of reporting scope that covered more subsidiaries and the renovation of
workplace. Moreover, the Group kept improving its data collation process with
reference to the ESG Reporting Guide, taking into considerations the impacts
of the use of different types of vehicles on the accounting of environmental
footprint. The enhanced data organisation techniques and disclosure scope
drove radical changes in the Group’s environmental performance. The
Group will be committed to reinforcing the monitoring of its environmental
performance and implementing more effective measures in emissions
controls and resource preservation.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR « 1B R ERHS

AEFBRIZBIRESERR HASR
BREIEREERETER 8ERE
TERAMNBUEEEEELETERR
RRRERRARERIE L

EEHIGEL
7 5 B 51 8 SR [B) 18 B LU Bl B m R R
TR R HE BB B -

- BBEFIIRFIEREEERE N’
ETHRERENEH

- BEMERE URLEERFRERET
EAABPIA N LR B RIS ;
Y

. IR B (BA) REIE
R 155 BT LU IR AR B HERUE
IPEE

&R

HEHERCLNEE FNERIEEAE
B E (T > A EE DR DB RS ER
SECE SR RENEBEYESER
PIBRBBEENERE ARFHBET
TERNBERERABEELHEAT
R TAEBFTEERE o L5k » 482 B E [
ENSEYEERIRENEE A£ES
RIS R EAR SIS ARS8
IR AL 0 {5 AV BB AR B 1 R i B
HE T AEEBERENEAR o AEE
IR NG SIS R R
e R R S R B B o

Annual Report 2020/2021 R 65



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR « t1E R ERHS

66

A.2. Use of resources

In FY2020/2021, the major resources that the Group used included
electricity, water, gasoline, paper and raw materials. During the year
under review, the Group did not consume any packaging materials and
the resources used by the Group in FY2020/2021 are illustrated in Table
E2 in the Appendix.

Electricity

The Group consumes electricity mainly for the daily operations in the
offices, construction sites and contact lens plants. In FY2020/2021,
the Group purchased and consumed 80.94 kWh'000 of electricity. To
reduce its consumption of electricity and GHG emissions, the Group has
implemented the following practices to improve operational energy
efficiency:

. Affix reminders next to the switches, computers and air
conditioners to remind employees to turn the electric appliance
off when not in use;

. Install time-controlled switches to ensure electrical appliance do
not waste energy during unused periods;

. Be flexible in adjusting the temperature of air conditioners in the
offices according to the weather;

. Replace the traditional bulbs in the offices with energy-efficient
ones such as the light-emitting diode (LED) lamps;

. Clean office equipment (such as refrigerator, air-conditioning and
shredder) regularly to maintain its effective operations;
. Procure equipment with excellent performance in energy

efficiency; and

. Hold regular education seminars and workshops about electricity
conservation among employees.
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During the year under review, the Group strengthened its efforts
in conserving the use of electricity by strictly controlling the use of
electrical appliance. In particular, according to the Group’s internal
policies, all production machines, surrounding units, power supplies
and lightings should be turned off before the close of business at
17:30. The Group assigned internal task force check and measure the
performance of energy consumption and ensure the effectiveness of
the implementation of internal policies. In the meantime, the Group
purchased eco-friendly device and facilities as a replacement of energy-
intensive ones. For instance, 100% of lightings in the contact lens plants
will be LED bulbs.

Gasoline

The Group consumes gasoline primarily for transportation. In
FY2020/2021, a total amount of 44,211 L of gasoline were consumed
by the Group. The Group has been aware that the reliance on vehicles
powered by fossil fuels will lead to poor air quality and accelerate the
level of GHG emissions that worsen the environment. As such, to control
the usage of gasoline and thus reducing the GHG emission, the Group
has encouraged the implementation of energy-saving practices in the
organisation, such as:

. Make use of telephone conferences instead of physical meetings
to avoid unnecessary travelling;

. Avoid the idling of vehicles and machinery at the construction
sites; and

. Explore the feasibility and practicality of replacing highly
polluting vehicles with electric and energy-efficient ones.
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Water

In FY2020/2021, the Group did not encounter any problem in sourcing
water. During the year under review, the Group used 31,110.00 m? of
water. As water is one of the most precious resources on earth. the
Group has set up policies and implemented practices to preserve water
resources during daily operations, including:

. Affix “Saving Water Resource” posters in prominent places to
encourage water conservation;

. Adopt water-saving equipment with water efficiency labels;

. Require employees to strictly comply with the company’s
watering saving policy;

. Carry out regular leakage tests of the water tap, water pipelines,
and water storage;

. Fix dripping taps and water mains promptly;

. Strengthen the maintenance of pipes at the construction site to
reduce the risk of unwanted leaks or bursts;

. Recycle and reuse the wastewater as greening water and road
cleaning water; and

. Harvest rainwater for operations in the construction site.

The Group endeavours to optimise its operational procedures in the
contact lens plants and targets at reducing water consumption during
productions without compromising the quality of its products. The
goal will result in the decline of water consumption for the hydration
process.
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Paper

Paper is mainly used by the Group in its offices for administrative
purposes. In FY2020/2021, a total 0.50 tonnes of paper was consumed
by the Group. The Group is committed to lowering its paper
consumption in a systematic approach and promoting the concept
of “paperless office”. The effective measures adopted by the Group
included:

. Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via email or
e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

. Promote the idea of “Think before print” by using posters and
stickers in the offices to remind the staff to avoid unnecessary
printings;

. Set double-sided printing as default setting;

. Place boxes and trays beside photocopiers as containers to collect
single-sided paper for reuse as scrap paper and used paper for
recycling; and

. Prioritise suppliers with more environmentally friendly paper
source in procurement.

Packaging materials

Packaging materials are mainly consumed by the Group in the
promotion and marketing purpose in the property development sector.
In FY2020/2021, the Group did not consume any packaging materials
during its operations. Nevertheless, to conserve the materials and
enhance the use efficiency, the Group has conducted several practices,
including:

. Strengthen the recycling of plastic and papers materials and
promote the reuse of packaging materials in various types to
lessen the burdens on landfills;

. Encourage the practice of minimal packaging; and

. Seek more environmental-friendly packaging materials.
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Construction Raw Materials

Construction raw materials are mainly consumed by the Group in the
property development business, including metal, concrete and paper
materials. To improve the utilisation efficiency of raw materials and
lower its environmental footprint, the Group has taken the following

practices:
. Choose aerated blocks to reduce the weight of the walls;
. Adopt new polymer waterproofing membrane to prevent water

penetration;

. Use hollow glass tiles for insulation;

. Develop construction plans and utilise innovative construction
techniques to improve material use efficiency; and

. Choose responsibly sourced green construction materials
and locally sustainable construction materials to reduce the
embodied impacts related to energy, waste, carbon and water.

PROGRESS

In FY2020/2021, due to the renovation project of the Group’s workplace
and the expansion of reporting scope, the amount of resources
consumed by the Group rose dramatically as compared to the
performance in the previous financial year. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to improve its management of corporate vehicles and increase
energy efficiency during operations through metrics that allow for
better monitoring.
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A.3. The environment and natural resources

In FY2020/2021, the Group’s business operations did not cause any
significant impacts on the environment considering the Group’s
business nature and plans during the year under review. Under a
thorough analysis of the environmental implications of its business,
the Group has further focused on the self-examination in terms of its
environmental performance. Even though the Group’s most significant
environmental impact by far has been from the purchase of energy
resources, the Group believes that it has a pivotal role to play in
improving its energy efficiency. Identifying the energy consumption
and corresponding GHG emissions as its major environmental impacts,
the Group’s is dedicated to furthering its reduction of electricity
consumption and thus the overall GHG emissions by setting up and
implementing effective internal policies that regulate the use of energy

resources.

The Group abides by all applicable environmental laws and regulations.
For the Group’s property development business, the Group has
established policies to protect the environment during its operations.
The Group’s Environment, Health and Safety measures (EHS) ensures
that the Group is in strict compliance with the Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the People ‘s Republic of China ({1 A R HFE
IRIB R Z5T{E %)) and the Regulations on Environmental Protection
of Construction Projects ({2 :%18 BIRIE(RE S IRIEH)).

The Group has embedded the concept of green building into its
construction projects in order to build more eco-friendly and
sustainable housing estates through its exceptional design and the
adoption of landscaping within the property boundary. For instance,
the water-source heat pump system has been applied into the Group’s
new projects.

In addition, the Group encourages its employees to join sustainability-
related activities such as tree planting and eco-tours. The Group
believes that launching various environmental protection-themed
activities, especially planting trees, can help the Group sequester
carbon in the atmosphere and further offset its GHG emissions during
operations. Since establishment, the Group has planted 580 trees
already (30 trees newly planted during the year under review). The
Group will keep on looking for more green activities and engage its
employees in learning and implementing the sustainability principles
through these activities.
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AA4.

Meanwhile, the Group advocates the “3R principles — reduce, reuse
and recycle” in the handling of used materials. For instance, the Group
paid attention to details and replaced the aluminum foil labels of the
contact lens that was originally printed with ink with the ones based on
laser engraving, so as to minimise the use of resources at source.

Climate change

Nowadays, the impacts of climate changes are increasingly apparent
and to businesses, the associated risks are gradually becoming a
systematic challenge. With more countries pledging to contribute to the
transition to the carbon-neutral future, businesses and corporations
are also taking actions to decarbonise their operations in an effort
to mitigate and adapt to climate change. Since most of the Group’s
business operations are run in the PRC, the Group believes that it is a
member of the ambitious national campaign to seek carbon neutrality
by 2060. To this end, the ESG management team of the Group has
considered the implications of the climate-related risks with reference
to the recommendations from the Task Force on Climate-related Risks
(TCFD), and identified several paths to addressing the potential risks and
navigate from the opportunities in transitioning towards low-carbon
economy.

- As a property developer, it is foreseeable that, to align with the
national goal of carbon reduction, all new development projects
of the Group in the coming years will integrate energy and
resource efficiency in project design and operations.

- As the stable supply of raw materials is essential for the Group’s
operations, delays of transportation of good and interrupted
supply chain caused by extreme weather events may increase
the Group’s operation costs and negatively affect its business
operations. Therefore, adaptation measures, such as emergency
response procedures, should be put in place in advance to
address the potential transportation and supply chain risks.

The ESG management team of the Group is mainly responsible for
monitoring and reporting the material risks in relation to climate
emergency to the Group’s management. In the near future, the Group
will further its commitment to understanding and identifying climate—
and carbon-related risks and opportunities within its operations and
developing its internal policies, metrics and goals in guiding climate
actions.
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VI. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
Employment and labour practices

B.1.

Employment

Employees are a catalyst for the Group’s continuous improvement. The
Group is committed to building a workplace that enables all employees
to feel empowered to make a difference and supports all staff to
fulfill their potential. By providing the employees with a safe working
environment, high standard benefits, exciting chances for promotion,
self-enhancement and career development, the Group ensures that its
employment policies can drive its employees to pursue their career
goals, which, in turn, can be beneficial to the sustainable development
of the corporation. As of the end of FY2020/2021, there were 171 full-
time employees and 4 part-time employee working for the Group, with
a gender ratio of 63% male to 37% female. Table S3 in the Appendix
shows the breakdown of the distribution of the Group’s employees
by gender, age, position level, employment type and geographical
location.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s human resources policies strictly adhere to the applicable
employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong, PRC and other parts
of the Group where the Group operates. In FY2020/2021, the Group
complied with all material relevant laws and regulations, including the
following:

. Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong);
. Minimum Wage Standard ((&1& TE R E ));

. Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(FPZE A R +H0
EUE5 8L ));

. Employment Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China

(FREARAMBATREREE));

. Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(FPZE A
EHNESEEREED); and

. Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FRZE A
EHMBETEZRERED)
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Recruitment and promotion

The Group has set up clear and transparent policies that instruct the
Human Resources Department in the recruitment and staff promotion
process. To better manage its employees, the Group has established
(E BB @ talent

management system. To attract a high-calibre workforce, the Group

»

a “Selection, Use, Education, Retention

offers competitive and fair remuneration and benefits based on
individuals’ past performance, personal attributes and job experiences.
The promotion is proposed according to the employee’s performance
and qualification which are examined by the Human Resources
Department and approved by the supervisors.

Compensation and dismissal

The Group is in full compliance with the regulations in relation to
minimum wages and working age in local operating regions. Relevant
policies and compensation packages are regularly reviewed by the
Human Resources Department with respect to the latest laws and
regulations. The Group constantly reviews its compensation package
and performs probationary and regular evaluations according to the
performance of its employees, salary structure in the Group, market
level and profitability of the Group to determine the adjustment of staff
salary, which are detailed in the Salary Management System (GErBiE
I2H ) . The Group also complies with the employees’ social security
schemes that are enforced by the local government and provides its
employee with various benefits, including the performance bonus,
medical scheme, mandatory provident fund for employees in Hong
Kong and social insurance packages for employees in the PRC.

Any termination of the employment contract will be based on
reasonable and lawful grounds. The Group strictly prohibits any kinds
of unfair or unreasonable dismissals. As such, stringent policies of
the dismissal of employees are in place for internal management. For
instance, the staff who has violated the Group’s employment policies
will be warned verbally before receiving a written warning. The Group
will resolutely terminate the employment contract of the employees
who have repeatedly violated the corporate regulations in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. In FY2020/2021, the turnover
rate of the Group was approximately 32.67%. More information about
the turnover of employees of the Group was disclosed in Table S4 in the
Appendix.
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Working hours and rest period

The Group has set up and implemented its policies to determine
working hours and rest periods for employees in accordance with the
relevant laws, including:

. Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FPZE A B H0
B EEL));

. Legal Protection of the Rights and Benefits of the Peasant
Workers ({&5 EN{RFEEZZEH))); and

. Rules of the State Council on Working Hours of Workers and Staff

Members (B 75 P RA R B T T/ERFREIRYFRE D).

In addition to the statutory holidays, employees may also be entitled to
additional leave benefits such as marriage leave, maternity leave and
bereavement leave.

Equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination

The Group is committed to creating a secure, diversified and inclusive
environment where all employees are treated equally and feel
respected. The Group has implemented its equal opportunity policy
in all business sectors, in which all decisions related to training,
promotion opportunities, employment and dismissal are made
irrespective of the age, gender, marital status, pregnancy, family status,
race, national or ethnic origins, nationality, religion or other non-
job related factors of the employees. The Group has zero tolerance to
any workplace discrimination, harassment or vilification. Employees
are encouraged to voice out if they encounter any discrimination and
the Human Resources Department will handle the issues fairly and
transparently in accordance with the local ordinances and regulations.
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B.2.

Other benefits and welfare

As employees are important assets of the Group, it is crucial to timely
respond to the feedback and address the concerns of its staff to meet
their expectations. Taking a holistic approach that focuses on the sense
of being connected, mental and emotional health and employability,
the well-being of the Group’s employees has been enhanced by
many of its initiatives. Apart from providing subsidies for vocational
education and medical services, a range of activities including outing,
mountaineering competition, sports matches and dinner gatherings
have been organised by the Group. During the year under review, the
Group did not hold any physical activities due to the distancing rules
under the epidemic prevention and control requirements. As mental
health was particularly important due to the uncertainty and dynamic
natures of the pandemic with “fatigue” experienced individually and
collectively, the Group actively connected with its staff using platforms
such as WeChat and internal mails.

In FY2020/2021, the Group was in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, welfare and other benefits that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Health and safety

To create a safe working environment for its staff, the Group has
implemented its policies and effective practices in line with the
material relevant laws and regulations in the operating region,
including:

. Hong Kong's Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong);

. Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China ({HZE
ARHENBEZR2EEZE)),

. Administrative Regulations on the Work Safety of Construction
Projects ({EE5% T2 Z 2B IRIKH)));

2
i

. Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance ({T{51RBE1E

BN
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. Occupational Disease Prevention Law in the People’s Republic of

China (FPZEARHEMBEBERIAZE));

. Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FRZE A R A
)% )),and

. Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Rights
and Interests of Women ({2 AR LM HIF L #Em RE
ED).

Given the business nature of the Group, it is imperative that a pervasive
health and safety culture and robust occupational health and safety
management system are in place that can equip its staff with the
right skills and knowledge to work safely and deal with any safety-
related emergency in an effective manner. To this end, the Group has
established a series of risk identification and management procedures
under the oversight and supervision of internal task forces that are in
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations and involve relevant
departments in the implementation of policies. The Social Security
Management Centre, for instance, is responsible for identifying the
hazards and risks in the working area, investigating and reporting any
accident to the local authorities and putting forward countermeasures.
The Safety Quality Department is responsible for monitoring the
classification, pinpointing the source, evaluating the impact of
occupational hazards and taking effective preventive measures. The
Project Management Department carries out tests on the hazardous
materials or components on a regular basis and optimises the
production process accordingly.

Striving for maintaining zero fatalities and zero life-threatening or
life-altering injuries and illnesses, the Group provides training about
occupational health and safety to its employees before they are on
board and prepares suitable personal protective equipment (“PPE”) in
working areas. To ensure the effectiveness of internal policies, relevant
employees perform a regular check and keep a record on the execution
of health and safety-related rules on site. Sufficient well-stocked and
unlocked first-aid boxes are provided in every working area and all
emergency exits in the workplace are unblocked.
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To enhance its employees’ awareness of occupational risks, relevant
information is posted on group chats and bulletin boards regularly.
Safety drills are conducted so as to make sure that all employees are
well equipped with the preparedness and capability in emergency
management and occupational health and safety. In addition, the
Group has taken specific measures in addressing the health and safety
issues in the workplace, including:

. Perform emergency response drills and safety inspections;
. Forbid smoking and drinking liquor in the workplace; and
. Organise health and safety training for the staff every year.

The Human Resources Department organises physical examinations
for all the staff annually and all workers in the canteen are required to
have a health certificate.

In the past three years, including FY2020/2021, the Group had zero
work-related fatalities and zero lost days due to work injury. During the
year under review, the Group was in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to providing a safe working environment
and protecting the employees from occupational hazards that have a
significant impact on the Group.

Response to the pandemic

In 2020, the pandemic caused major upheavals for society, businesses
and families. In response to guidance of local and national
governments, the Group launched a wide range of initiatives to protect
and support its employees during the pandemic.

Specifically, the Group set up a Crisis Management Team that is
responsible for performing risk assessments and supervises the
application of appropriate measures in response to any emergency. The
Group timely set up and strictly implemented the Epidemic Prevent and
Control Measures (Z1BFHEFEZE) , including but not limited to

. Allow flexible working schedules and make use of digital
communication technology to enable work from home;

. Remind employees of maintaining personal hygiene and require
staff to wear face masks properly;
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. Practise social distancing in all working areas to prevent mass
gathering; and

. Promote good ventilation in all workplaces and conduct thermal
screening at the entrances of all working areas.

For more information about the Group’s community support amid the
pandemic, please refer to the section Community investment.

Development and training

Employee development is a fundamental enabler of the Group’s long-
term success. The Group believes that training helps to enhance the
Groups' integrated competitiveness and good reputation, as well as
employees’ working capacity and professional skills, thereby setting up
the Educational Training Control Measures & sl 4R 1Z %72 %) that
guides the arrangement of training courses that best suit its staff.

For the newly hired staff, the Group provides an induction training,
giving them a better understanding of the corporate history and
culture, Group’s internal policies and its business development.
For the experienced staff, the Group has designed relevant training
programmes according to their roles and positions. For instance, the
Group has organised training courses for its directors on topics such
as internal control, risk control management and regulatory updates.
Making full use of the online video learning platform, the Group
regularly organises sharing conferences for different departments to
foster a continuous learning culture that could strengthen employees’
professional knowledge as well as benefit the Group.

In addition to internal training courses, the Group also supports its
employees to participate in professional courses held by external
organisations for enhancing their competitiveness and expanding their
capacity through continuous learning. The Group provides financial
subsidies to eligible employees for attending external seminars,
programs and courses that could directly and effectively expand their
skill set related to their current job requirements.

In FY2020/2021, 83.43% of its employees received training with a total
time of 992.9 hours. Details of the attendance and hours of training are
presented in Table S5 and Table S6 in the Appendix respectively.
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B.4. Labour standard

In FY2020/2021, the Group strictly abided by the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FRZE A REME BN %)),
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ({ZZ1EfERRE
T#37E ) and other related labour laws and regulations in operating
regions to prohibit any child and forced labour employment.

The Group has formulated internal policies such as “The Prohibition
of Child Labour Policy and Remedial Procedures” in line with the
requirements of SA8000 Standard. To combat illegal employment
on child labour, underage workers and forced labour, prior to
the confirmation of employment, the Group’s Human Resources
Department requires the job applicants to provide valid identity
documents to ensure that they are lawfully employable. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for monitoring, updating and
promoting the compliance of corporate policies with the latest relevant
laws and regulations that prohibit child labour and forced labour.
The Human Resources Department is responsible for reporting its
employment information to the relevant government department
every 6 months. To further prevent the risk of violating the laws in
the prevention of hiring child labour, underage workers and forced
labour, the Group has encouraged the staff in the Human Resource
Department to keep updated of the latest labour laws and regulations.
Once the Group finds any case against the labour standards, the
employment contract will be immediately terminated and the related
staff will be disciplined accordingly.
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Operating practices
B.5. Supply chain management

The Group extends its sustainability mindsets and approaches to the
management of its suppliers who are required to operate in a responsible,
ethical and environmentally friendly manner. As such, each of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group monitors the quality of supplied goods and its
supply chain practices on a strict and continuous basis.

Property Development

For the property development business, the Group normally outsources its
construction works to independent construction companies that specialise
in different aspects of property development. The property development
business sector of the Group has set up a specific department and team to
oversee the procurement of construction materials and is responsible for
identifying the eligible supplier/contractors through public tendering and
strategic cooperation.

In FY2020/2021, the property development business segment of the Group
had a total of 43 suppliers, with 21 located in the PRC, 12 located in
Lithuania, 4 located in the United States and 6 located in other countries, with
which the Group built sound partnerships. To maintain a good relationship
with its suppliers/contractors, the Group settles the payment punctually every
year and communicates with them via phone calls and onsite negotiations.
The Group is also committed to holding engagement meetings with its
suppliers, in which issues such as green building materials, eco-friendly
practices and analysis of the latest government policies can be discussed.
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In the selection of suppliers/contractors, the Group performs onsite
inspections of the completed projects by potential suppliers/contractors to
assess their technical capacity. The Group firmly believes that to accomplish
the project successfully, it is important to ensure that the selected
suppliers/contractors fully meet the national or industry standards and the
specifications required in each development project. The Group requires
its selected suppliers/contractors to provide relevant qualifications and
certificates that can prove their strong competency to meet the technical
requirements, a good track record and the fulfillment of environmental and
social responsibilities. The Group chooses suppliers/contractors according
to the bidding rating, industry recommendation and market reputation.
Qualified suppliers will be included in the “List of qualified suppliers” and
subject to annual qualification inspections performed by the Quality Control
Department of the Group. Once the eligible tender is selected, the relevant
department needs to work closely with the selected suppliers/contractors in
the execution of development plans as well as oversee the quality of and the
progress for the completion of each project. Once any goods and services of
selected suppliers/contractors are found to fail to meet the Group’s standards,
the corresponding suppliers/contractors will not be allowed to attend the next
bidding.

The suppliers/contractors are also subject to the Group’s ongoing quality
control procedures at different stages of the construction process, which
includes the test on the quality of supplied materials. For example, the
suppliers/contractors are required to obtain the acceptance from Electric
Power Supply Bureau as an evaluation of standard in power supply and the
acceptance from the Institute of Quality Inspection and Construction Bureau
as an evaluation of standard in construction projects.

Meanwhile, to minimise the environmental risks in the supply chain, the
Group has set forth specific environmental requirements in the business
contracts with which the suppliers should comply. As part of its green
procurement policy, the Group prioritises the engagement with suppliers
whose supplied goods/services or production process are characterised by eco-
friendly elements.
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Contact Lens Business

In FY2020/2021, this business segment of the Group cooperated with 20
key suppliers in the PRC, which mainly provided raw materials, packaging
materials and packaging chemicals for its operations.

To advance sustainability in due diligence, the Group implements a Supplier
Evaluation System and conduct Graded Evaluation on its suppliers. Onsite
inspection, supplier audits and in-field verifications are performed annually
to ensure that its suppliers can deliver on their commitments of responsible
practices.

To guarantee sound and stable partnership with its suppliers, the Group signs
Quality Agreements (B &17:%) and Long-term Strategic Cooperation (£ £
By B& 4 1E) with its core suppliers that enables stable supply and quality of
supplied goods/services. All incoming materials are all under strict inspection
as required in the Group’s Quality Assurance System (TR1REEZ).

To further promote responsible sourcing throughout its value chain, the Group
is currently planning to gradually shift towards local procurement of tools,
fixtures, raw materials, packaging materials and chemicals.

Product responsibility

International Business Settlement & Financing Business

With regard to the operational safety, advertising and labelling of the
services, the Group has been in strict compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations in the regions where it operates, such as the Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FFEEAN B HMBIESE)).

To ensure service quality, the Group has set up different steps to monitor the
information security, response quality and system stability. Operation teams
are built to run rigorous assessments such that threatening or vulnerable areas
can be effectively addressed to ensure the system is constantly operating in a
safe manner. Regular meetings are held to identify and resolve any problems
that arise during the services.

The Group pays great attention to the concerns raised by its customers and
performs customer satisfaction surveys regularly. An effective complaint-
solving mechanism is established to minimise the risk of disrupting customers’
operation. Once any complaint is received, faults will be identified and
repaired in a timely manner.
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The Group has fully abided by the Hong Kong’s Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Information collected
from customers would only be used for the purpose for which it has been
collected. The Group prohibits the provision of information to a third party
without authorisation. To enhance data security, all data collected is treated
as confidential and stored in an encrypted database to prevent unauthorised
access, collection, leakage, hacking, abuse or misuse of personal information.

Property Development
As a property developer, the Group has strictly abided by the laws and
regulations of the government including:

. Administrative Regulations on the Work Safety of Construction Projects

(ERIEZ2EEEERG)D)

. Road Traffic Safety Law of the PRC ((FZEARHMBEIERIBL S
EN;

. Construction Law of the PRC ({1 A R HFEZEZE X )); and

. Regulations on the Quality Management of Construction Projects ({7
RIZESEEEND).

The Group has set up product quality targets, formulated the technical
standards and proposed construction plans at the preliminary stage of each
project, with reference to the 1S09001:2015 Quality Management Systems.
Besides, the Operation Department regularly checks whether the progress
of the construction sticks to the project plan. Once any material deviation
is spotted, decisive measures are taken to adjust the construction plan
immediately. The Engineering Department is responsible for other quality
assurance-related issues by carrying out regular evaluations on the property
quality during all stages of projects, while relevant government agencies are
also engaged at all aspects of the construction process to guarantee that the
final products meet corresponding requirements.
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The professional team of the property development business segment of
the Group has the responsibility for safety management throughout the
whole process of construction projects and operations. The Group sets up
the reporting mechanism and contingency plan for any public emergency in
the construction site, which ensures an efficient and timely safety incident
reporting system. The project manager and professional engineers inspect
and appraise the quality of contractors’ work regularly. The safety and quality
of the Group’s properties are monitored at all stages of construction projects
to ensure that they consistently meet the high standards and stringent
requirements.

The Engineering Department is responsible for the quality assurance
acceptance of all construction projects after completion and will deliver the
properties only after the final projects meet relevant standards. After delivery,
qualified property companies are entrusted to inspect the quality of the
properties from time to time, while property facilities such as elevators are
maintained regularly by third-party elevator maintenance companies.

Customer satisfaction is of paramount importance to the Group. Aiming to
improve the customer experience, the Group’s After-Sales Services Department
in the property development business segment has been set up for collecting
the feedback from the market and responding to the inquiries received during
the satisfaction surveys. Through efficient dialogue and mutual understanding
with its clients, the Group is dedicated to continuously improving its business
performance and delivering top-notch services and products to its clients.

The Group’s privacy protection strategy is to safeguard the interests of all of
its customers though appropriate information collection, use and storage of
personal and sensitive information in accordance with legal requirements,
regulations and contractual obligations. Employees who have access to
sensitive information are strongly reminded not to disclose customer contact
information to any third parties without prior consent. The Group ensures that
no outsiders are allowed to browse, read or check the sensitive data. During
the year under review, the Group did not receive any substantial complaints
regarding the breaches of privacy laws and data leakage.
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The Group has issued an internal guideline to ensure that its Marketing
Department provides accurate descriptions and information to customers
about its products and services and conforms to the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to marketing and advertising such as the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((PZEARHEFEESE)).
Any misrepresentation or exaggeration of offerings in the Group is strictly
prohibited. The legal counsel of the Group is responsible for reviewing
the sales and marketing materials before releasing them to the public.
Meanwhile, the legal counsel provides legal advice for the protection of the
intellectual property rights of the Group.

Contact Lens Business

Upholding its Quality Policy (B= 75 #t) of “Service with quality; Win
together; Products with care” (BER - MHERH -BEEGR), the
contact lens business segment of the Group is oriented to continuously meet
customers’ expectations and regulatory requirements. From order review,
overall management planning, implementation of production, inspection
to delivery, all employees are in constant pursuit of quality improvement
in accordance with the promulgated work specifications, so as to provide
competitive and premium products and services.

To ensure that the quality of its products and the planned manufacturing
process comply with the requirements of relevant regulations, the Group is
committed to upholding its standards according to the Good Manufacturing
Practices (GMP) and the ISO 13485: 2016 (Medical devices — Quality
management systems — Requirements for regulatory purposes). The Group
applied for the domestic Medical Equipment Sales Permit and was successfully
granted this permit in March 2020. A complete quality management system
has been established in accordance with relevant laws, regulations and
standards, which were clearly listed in its internal policies “QQA001 Quality
Manual”. In case that any products failing to meet relevant standards are
delivered, the Advisory Notice (B2 14%8H]) will be published and the
product will be recalled with reference to the Product Recall Control (Z f&83

[EEFIRRRF).

To complete the construction of a new information system, the Group has
introduced a software named TIPTOP ERP. The ERP software helps the Group
to further meet the operational demand of its re-export business and enhance
the enterprise firewall and office network security, which lowers the risk of the
leakage of business information and customers’ data.
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To protect its intellectual property rights, the Group requires its employees
to keep trade secrets and other proprietary intellectual property rights
confidential, as well as actively applies for trademarks for any new innovations
developed by itself.

Given the business nature of the Group, the labelling-related issues which
were not material or relevant to the Group during the year under review are
not discussed in this section. In FY2020/2021, the Group was in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to health and safety, advertising, and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to build and maintain a strong culture that incorporates
compliance into daily operations and business principles which regulate
the individual behaviour across the Group. A strong compliance culture
empowers all employees to take positive steps to ensure that the Group
abides by applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering irrespective of the area or country where the
Group operates, in order to maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment. The material and applicable laws and regulations that
the Group strictly abided by during the year under review included:

. Anti-Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of China ({(FRZE AR
B R BHBOED);

. Law of the PRC on Anti-money Laundering ({FRZE A R M B/ 4558
7E)); and

. Hong Kong's Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

The Group’s stance on corruption and bribery is expressed through its high
value of employees’ honesty and integrity, and the strict enforcement of
the code of conduct to maintain a high standard of business ethics among
employees according to Employee Handbook. The Group will not tolerate any
form of corruption, suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within
the Group. All employees are expected to discharge their duties with integrity
and self-discipline, and required to abstain from engaging bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering activities or any activities which might exploit
their positions against the Group’s interests and affect their business decision
or independent judgment in the course of business operations.

B.7.
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Taking a strong stance against corruption and bribery, the Group extends its
anti-corruption efforts throughout its supply chain. Employees responsible for
procurement are required to sign and comply with the Integrity Responsibility
Letter (B&;2 &= 1EZ), while the Group monitors the whole procurement
process through its Monitoring System, in which the reports are formulated
and the relevant process is reviewed through external audits.

An effective grievance mechanism has been established in the Group
through which the whistle-blowers can report concerns about irregularities
or wrongdoings to directors or their immediate supervisors for any suspected
misconduct or malpractice. All reports are investigated and treated in
confidence, and the Group’s Whistleblowing Policy ensures that all employees
can raise concerns without fears of reprisals or inappropriate reactions. The
grievance scheme also applies to external stakeholders such as all parties
involved during the procurement process. Where criminality is suspected, a
report will be made to the relevant regulators or law enforcement authorities
when necessary.

To further increase the employees’ knowledge of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, in FY2020/2021, several anti-corruption-related
seminars and training courses were organised by the Group for its directors
and employees, aiming to raise their awareness and sensitivity of observing
law and discipline. For example, a 60-min Promotion and Interpretation of
“Measures for the Administration of ‘Clean’ Government” ({BEEUE R B 18
£ ) was organised for the Group’s staff to strengthen their knowledge
and awareness towards proper business ethics. There were zero legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees during
the year under review.

In FY2020/2021, the Group was not in violation of any of the relevant laws and

regulations in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that
have a significant impact on the Group.
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B.8. H&EIRE

Community
B.8. Community investment

Bringing positive impacts to the communities where the Group operates is
one of the key pillars of its sustainability strategy. As a responsible corporate
citizen with its major business segments the PRC, the Group realises that
stimulating the vitality and wellness at the local and regional levels can
improve the quality of life for local neighbourhoods. By practicing local
procurement, employment and community investment, the Group hopes
to help local communities thrive and earn the licenses to operate in these
communities. The Group has long been focusing on the areas such as hygiene,
environmental protection, education and cultural development of the
community. Due to the worldwide spread of pandemic and in response to the
anti-epidemic measures of the governments, the Group did not organise or
participate in any charitable events in FY2020/2021.

Connection with Support

In the past year, the raging pandemic has caused panic among humanity.
Although affected by the suspension of business and the unstable economic
environment, the Group still cared about the vulnerable groups in the society,
especially those suffering in the epicenter of pandemic and families with low-
income. For instance, the Group donated packages of anti-epidemic materials
such as 770 N95 face masks, 3,000 surgical masks and alcoholic sanitizers to
the people in the affected areas.

The Group understands that its long-term success cannot be sustained without
the stability and prosperity of local communities. The Group will actively
support the development of local communities through partnership in the
future.
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APPENDIX

Table E1. The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in FY2020/2021 and

FY2019/2020%°

Emission Category

713 €Yl

Air Emissions

RRHK

GHG Emissions

BEREHK

Non-hazardous Waste

BEEY
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HERERRS

Key Performance
Indicator (KPI)

PREERIER

SOx
E=Rlek]
NOx
EE=K{vt]
PM
EETEY)

Scope 1 (Direct Emissions)®

#E— (EEHER?
Scope 2 (Energy Indirect
Emissions)*

#HEZ GERBERTR
Scope 3 (Other

Indirect Emissions)®
#HE= (HMERTR°
Total (Scope 1,2 & 3)
et @E— k)
Solid wastes®

SRR

Wastewater’

£k

Unit

T

Tonnes of COze
e tREE
Tonnes of COze

Tonnes of COe

e tREE
Tonnes of COze

Mg — 10 AR
Tonnes

U7

m3

K

Vil. iR

REOAEER_ZTT "T_—WERK
TN FRERNEONE
P
Intensity’ Intensity?
(Unit/HK$ (Unit/HK$
Amount in million) in Amount in million) in
FY2020/2021  FY2020/2021 FY2019/2020>°  FY2019/2020
g rRZ-g-h/
—F——- %
RIBZE/ BHENEE RIZ-h/ HENEE
It S (B, kS (i,
MENHE BEBT) MENEE BEBT)
0.65 0.01 0.45 1.14x10-3
34.55 0.40 24.90 6.33 x10-2
2.54 0.03 1.83 4.65x10-3
91.34 = 59.36 =
51.55 = 15.22 =
9.99 - 0.34 -
152.88 1.79 74.92 0.19
13 0.02 1.6 4.07 x10-3
31,110.00 363.77 300.00 0.76
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Intensity for FY2020/2021 was calculated by dividing the amount of air, GHG
and other emissions respectively by the Group’s revenue of approximately
HK$85,521,000 in FY2020/2021;

The amount and intensity in FY2019/2020 were extracted from the data in the
ESG report set out in the Company’s ESG report for FY2019/2020;

The Group’s Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) included only the consumption of
gasoline in motor vehicles and the GHG removed by the 580 trees planted;

The Group’s Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions) included only electricity
consumption;

The Group’s Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) included other indirect emissions
from paper waste disposed at landfills, and electricity used for processing fresh
water and sewage by government departments;

The solid wastes included domestic and commercial wastes;

The total amount of wastewater generated by the Group was primarily based on
the direct measurement together with appropriate estimations assuming 100%
of the fresh water consumed by the Group will enter the sewage system in areas
where an accurate recording of the amount of wastewater was hard to obtain;

The methodology adopted for reporting on GHG emissions set out above was
based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs™ issued by the Stock Exchange, The GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard and the 2006 IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories; and

Since the contact lens manufacturing plants are still not in operation, its
environmental performance cannot be demonstrated comprehensively at this
stage. As such, the quantitative environmental data of the contact lens business
was not included in the calculation and report disclosure. More environmental
information of the contact lens business will be included in the future reports
when the contact lens business officially commences.
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ﬁ'ﬁzl&’z}j_ﬁ N/ ZEB-ZMFENIR
B HERERREMERE - HERER
WEHIE

FEENEE— ERHR ZEERANE
B B B BV BRI FE DU RE 1E 580 1R i
FREERIVEERES ;

REENEE " GEREZHR EOES
JIHFEFTELE B

AEENSEE = (HMBZEHR 281F
IR R E B URBUR BB PI 2 A
BHRERKKEKASINRERE
i@

EfSEF Y BRI B EERY

AEBELENEKESTIEZENERERNSE
MR B LI MR e R B K B IHE TR
RAEBHFENZOKE I EA TS KRR
NEEBHE ;

TR E RIS RAN S EERH
P T R (AR RIRIE - e REA
WE-MER T RIRMAREIISRERE
S RERBZERACEZEERER
EURZEERERFEREZCEME
BERARAEREEEER &

AR RRRERERNREE  RERE
FEEERRHIRRETF AL B@H/ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ
BHNEERBHFBLRMAR BT ERRK
ERE-ARMBETRREFTNESIRRE
HHi 1E R BR 83 22 75 [E 10 R4 B A AR 2R
HE-o

Annual Report 2020/2021 R 91



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR « t1E R ERHS

92

Table E2. Total Resource Consumption in FY2020/2021 and

RR_E_E/"_E_—MER_T

FY2019/2020° —h/ —E_EREERERES
Intensity’ Intensity?
(Unit/HK$ (Unit/HKS$
Key Performance Amount in million) in Amount in million) in
Use of Resources Indicator (KPI) Unit FY2020/2021  FY2020/2021 FY2019/2020>°  FY2019/2020
R=Z=%/ L
RIBEZE/ HENEE WIZ—h/ HENEE
—E-— (B, k- o (B,
BIREH RS AR B BENHE HEAT) HENEE BE#AT)
Energy Electricity kwh’'000 80.94 0.95 23.46 5.96 x 10-2
BETR BN TBTF FL.E
Gasoline L 44 211.00 516.96 30,331.00 77.07
FH Ft
TOTAL G 1,773.59 20.74 1,101.32 -
Hast B
Water Water m? 31,110.00 363.77 300.00 0.76
K K IHK
Paper Paper Kg 50 0.58 50 0.13
IR MR F
Raw materials Paper Tonnes 0.60 0.01 = =
[EA1 R I
(1) Intensity for FY2020/2021 was calculated by dividing the amount of resources M ZEIZR/CEC-UHFNEEBRBEAR
the Group has consumed in FY2020/2021 by the Group’s revenue of EERZZ2IZ /T2 —HFFHEN
approximately HK$85,521,000 in FY2020/2021; EREMBUFAERE-ST /T " —
BA B UR A #985,521,0008 018
(2)  The amount and intensity in FY2019/2020 were extracted from the data in the 2) —N/ZEZE ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’] ﬁ%ﬁ&ylﬁﬁ
ESG report set out in the Company's ESG report for FY2019/2020; and ﬁl E KNBZE—H/ZEBZZ Eﬁfﬁﬁ'ﬁa
B EREARSMEERRE e AESR
WEHE , &
(3)  Since the contact lens manufacturing plants are still not in operation, its (B) HREERE BINEEE RSRE
environmental performance cannot be demonstrated comprehensively at this /iiﬁ)f%‘rﬁfaﬁ%%fﬁ".ﬁt f‘%ﬁ/ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
stage. As such, the quantitative environmental data of the contact lens business BPHESRIEEBIAMABRTERR

was not included in the calculation and report disclosure. More environmental
information of the contact lens business will be included in the future reports
when the contact lens business officially commences.
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Table $3. Number of Employees by Age Group, Gender, RBSAEFN ST “E"—8
Employment Type, Position Type, Geographical Locations of The FREFERAR 4R EEEED B
Group in FY2020/2021' R IR B S E T AR
Unit: Number of employees Age group
Bl BTA#¥ FEAER
Aged Aged

Aged 30  between  between  Aged 51

Gender or below 31and 40 41and50 orabove Total
305% NE 1E 515%

aall FUAT 40%% 505 S E “ast
Male 22 49 28 12 111
B4
Female 14 29 21 0 64
7
Total 36 78 49 12 175
et

Employment type
R

Full time 171
£
Part time 4

FRE

Total 175
st

Position Level

B 5 4R B

General staff 95
—RET

Middle-level managers 43
PAREEE

Senior management and directors 37

SREEEREE

Total 175
st
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Geographical location

HIBf B

Number of
Locations employees
bauf BT A#
Hong Kong 1%
55
Beijing 8
b=
Liuzhou 49
PN
Shanghai 5
&
Fujian 82
bished
Taiwan 3
PANN =
=/=
Lithuania 13
A GRS
Total: 175
@

M The employment data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department based on the employment contracts entered into
between the Group and its employees. The data covered employees engaged
in a direct employment relationship with the Group according to relevant local
laws and workers whose work and/or workplace was controlled by the Group.
The methodology adopted for reporting on employment data set out above was
based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on

Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Table S4. Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group, Gender and KMZEZE TE—UFERFE
Geographical Locations in FY2020/2021' 4HB MR BB BB DB TRk
=
Unit: Number of employees Age group
Efl: BTAH FH AR
Aged Aged
Aged 30  between  between  Aged 51
Gender or below 31and 40 41and50 orabove Total
305% NE NE 515%
ill FLLTF 405% 506% B E “aE
Male 4 12 13 3 32
BMH
Employee turnover rate 22.22% 30.00% 55.32% 26.09% 34.41%
BImKRER
Female 8 4 3 2 17
e
Employee turnover rate 57.14% 16.67% 16.22%  400.00% 29.82%
BIMAKLLLX
Total 12 16 16 5 49
483t
Total employee turnover rate 37.5% 25.00% 38.10% 41.67% 32.67%
WETmAKLE=

Geographical locations

IR E

Employee Employee
Locations turnover turnover rate
buf 2 BIRRXAH BIRKLEE
Mainland China 36 29.63%
FRE Ay it
Hong Kong 1 7.14%
B5H
Taiwan 12 800.00%
25 Y&k
A=
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The turnover data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department based on the employment contracts entered into
between the Group and its employees. Turnover rate was calculated by dividing
the number of employees who resigned in FY2020/2021 by the number of
employees on average in FY2020/2021. The methodology adopted for reporting
on turnover data set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

Table S5. Number and Percentage of Employees Trained in the
Group by Gender and Position Type in FY2020/2021'

S5,

ETIRXUEBEREFEREHEEEZ
B LNERSR EAEENADER
BERF - MALEREB_ZT-T/—F

T —MENETIHRBEGRU—E-E T

T —HEMEIFHUGERE - £EX
BEBTRARBIBAIRABA AT BN
TEFEMR (N ARMIRE L ERESR

RE—M= M WRERIERERE
31)e
TEIF TR —MERER

REBHHENETHNERIFINIETAR

KRB
Unit:Number of employees Position Type
B BTA™ BRER
Middle- Senior
General level  management
Gender staff managers  and directors Total
BREEE
kbl —RET PREEE REZE a5t
Male 42 26 19 87
B
Percentage of employees trained 79.25% 86.67% 70.37% 79.09%
BRENE IR
Female 37 13 9 59
pegi
Percentage of employees trained 88.10% 100.00% 90.00% 90.77%
BRENETIEDTE
Total 79 39 28 146
st
Percentage of employees trained 83.16% 90.70% 75.68% 83.43%

BRRIENETIADMT

(1) The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human Resources

Department. Training refers to the vocational training that the Group’s
employees attended in FY2020/2021. The methodology adopted for reporting
on the number and percentage of employees trained set out above was based
on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Table S6. Training Hours Received by the Employees of the Group RSG6.“_E-E —E_—BEXREH
by Gender and Position Type in FY2020/2021" ¥ B B B FS R R B 2 RO Z B B &
Unit: Training Hours Employee Category
B ¢ ER e EELER

Senior

Middle-level ~ management

Gender General staff managers  and directors Total
SREER

145 —m|ET FREEE RES Hast

Male 188 2.7 123 582.7

B

Average training hours 448 1045 6.47 6.70

B

Female 199.6 181.6 29 410.2

pegis

Average training hours 539 1397 322 6.95

IR R

Total 387.6 4533 152 9929

st

Average training hours 491 11.62 543 6.80

B RS

(1) The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human Resources (1) BIEBEREEBNANERTES +
Department. The methodology adopted for reporting training hours set out NHREBTZIIFEMEBN A ETER
above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting BT (AR EIRIE - B REA
Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. WE-MER= . B RAREBIEEERIE

51)e
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VIII. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX

Aspects ESG Indicators
EBm ESGIEZ

VIl SRS E RS

Description
1oE 2t

Page
BR

A. Environmental IZ15
A1: Emissions General Disclosure

A1 BRI —RIREE

KPI'A1.1

KPI'A1.2

KPI'A1.3

KPI'A1.4

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

TEFER

@ BE;,&

) BEBFHETABEAZENMERZERRG REERAERKX
RERBIER MK IHNEES - EERBEEEYNESS
&K o

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated under
national laws and regulations. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and
sulphur hexafluoride. Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations

2 ERBIREEaaty MEltkEMZEZEEERE SR
SRy CRERBEEZEMLK Bk —atbTa  aRikit
M-E2aRkAABCR -AEEYIEHEREARERREZE
=R

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

B E$E R AR RAEE I B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in

tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).

Biz @EEN) REEREE EER) BEREHRE QUMETE) K W#E

) ZE USESSA - BIERME)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

PRELAEREEYRE CUIMsE) kK (WMER ZE WS ESE M-

BIERMEH) ©

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FRESREREYEE CUNE) K WER ZE WUSESE M-

BRI H) ©
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page
fEm ESGIS 1R 1BE 2t BR
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
I PRET LAV BEN R B IR A E % B AR PR EREN B 2 B o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREEEERBEEREYNG L REMPIETUINREB R R RE
FiE L B AR PR EREN Y 2 B o
A2: Use of Resources  General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other 66

A2 ERER — R R

KPI'A2.1

KPI'A2.2

KPI'A2.3

KPI'A2.4

KPI'A2.5

raw materials. Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

BMERAER (BEER  KREMEMRD) NEHR 3 BERATARE
E-RE En-BF - BErmEEo

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total (kwWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RENEDNER K, SEEER QB fIh) B2 UTET
8 REE MUSESEN  SEREHE) o

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

MEKEREE MUSESEN SERZHHE) °

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

M PRET LMBE R E AN B R R A ER ZF BRI 5 o
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

B SKREGE A ACR LI B EREE Uk LA KN @ BIE RS
EEZ L BIRFT KRR §R o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

RpmPTAEEMENEE UESE) k WER) SEEBUGE-
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page
[Em ESGHEAZ 18E 2t BR
A3: The Environment  General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and 71
and Natural Resources natural resources.
A3 I IRIBRRAEIR —RIKE BIREITAHIRRERRABREMNEATENBER
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
M EB EHHIRRERRABRNEAXERERNEEERATE
1T
A4: Climate Change General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
A4 REEAE — AR HREH R KAEEHETAEETENEARBEEREEN
B
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB RPIEEHETAELERENEARGERASESE  REHIT
&fj o
B. Social 1t &
Employment and Labour Practices {E{E K& % T &R
B1: Employment General Disclosure Information on: 73

—RRE

B1: E{&

KPI B1.1

KPI B1.2

100

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

HERERY :

@ BE;, &

) BFHVETABBEAZENERERRRL > AE AR K
RE-BEEREA TENE-RA-TERE Lo  RER
Mk EMFEFEREFNER o

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full or part-time),

age group and geographical region.

7R B EERE 2B RE) FRAER AR DNEEAR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

BitR) s Fl AR Rt E B DRI ESRREER -
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page
fEm ESGIEAZ 1BE 2t BR
B2: Health and Safety General Disclosure Information on: 76
B2 . BEKNRESE — R @  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
TEFER
@ XK
b) BFHETABEAZENERZERRF RBEMREHZ
2ITRIERREREEREBEEBENER
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year
BE=F (BREERFE) SFRTITHMABURLEE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
EITHEEEAITFEHC
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
P ERAN AV IR ZE (2 RR B 2 48 I WURARRBI I T REE R A%
B3: Development and  General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties 79

Training

B3 : & @ K iEdl

—RRIREE

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

at work. Description of training activities. Note: Training refers to vocational
training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the employer
BERARAERERITLIFHENM M AR AN ER - #iiFiliE 8 -
5T IR ZE I T EiEHE N ERNRINEERE

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management).

BHRREELERN WsREEE - FPREIER) S 0NZIINEEETD
kb

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

Rt RESLER S D SRESTMEIIN T IR -
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page
[Em ESGHEAZ 18E 2t BR
B4: Labour Standards  General Disclosure Information on: 80
B4 . 5 T 24 —RRINEE @  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
HERERY :
@ BE;,&
b)) BFHBETAFBEAXENEREIRRRG AEHRPLE
TRaab%s TRER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
TR s BRI B H N A LU R E T Kaaflss T e
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered
T B IRER BN R HERA BB P ERERY o B
Operating Practices 2 15
B5: Supply Chain General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 81

Management
B5 . (IEHEEIE

102

—RRIREE

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3

KPI B5.4

EIRMEEBAIRIE R EREBBER-

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

s o HEREEmEE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

g A RS A EEAIES MERNTEREANNHERE Uk
MR TREER G %

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

A BB R RS EIRENIRIE R S RENVIEH) LU IERT
TREZRFE-

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

T REREEREE L BIRFRERKIRBIESG > LURERNT
R BB 7% o
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page
EmE ESGIS1Z it BR
B6: Product General Disclosure Information on: 83

Responsibility
B6 : EmEE

—RRIREE

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

RS

@ BE;K

b) BFHETABEAZENEMZERRG AB B BETIRME
EmMBRBENRERAZE - EE RERMEZEURBRS
BB o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and

health reasons.

BERREXEREHPRLZ 2 HREREAMEBRKNE Db

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are

dealt with.

R RAN E R ARV SR 8B LU IR 75 0% ©

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.

3t B A B e ARPE R 8 AE A RARY B B o

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

HLE ST BEMRERLCWRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are

implemented and monitored.

EIUHEEERMRERLRER WA TRER G A
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Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page
[Em ESGIE1E 18E 2t BR
B7: Anti-corruption General Disclosure Information on: 87
B7 : R&ES —RRINEE @  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering
TEFER
@ XX
b) BEBFHETABEAZENERZERRG RB BRI
BB #R EFRTREBNER
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases
RERARNHETANEESRETLEBEENE SHAZGNHE
JeE NS
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
ML S R o U BRI TR EE R A %
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
HirmEERETIRHENRESE
Community 1t &
B8: Community General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 89

Investment

BS: ttE@EE

104

—RRIREE

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities interests.
BRUHEZERTRETAEEMTHERENRREEREH
BERMENHNBER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).

EISHERE WHE  RESE - FLIHER EE -XE-8B5) °
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

AEIHRBFABAER USRI
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2021,
including an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators, a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business
are set out under the section headed “Management’s Statement” in this annual
report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations
of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company’s environmental and social-related key performance indicators
and policies, a discussion on the compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Company and the Company’s relationship
with its employees, suppliers and customers are provided in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the Group’s affairs as
at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages 124 to 127.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 13 the consolidated financial statements.

FRAREE (EF) MAREEE_T_—F=
A=+—HILFEZEFERTHARNTZER
AR E M BT

FEXRBREBORE
FATR—BREZRAR HEEMBARZ
FEEBWNRAHHRRM 9

FEERBE_T_—F=-A=+—HILFEZ
EXHOE (BEERVFRRRRERYTER
RAEFEEXRRFZOM) AREAEEEREZRR
RABERRAR Z 5 i A B AR B E B AR A Bt
ERZET BENAFRIEEERE —Hlt
BN AEEERE -8

FEERMBFERNZEEEZBREEMRZ S
1 B R G M BRI EET ©

ARBZIRFERAGHEARRRIRIERREER
BERETHARBDRERTEZEBERERZ
S URERFRRAERE - HEBRER ZH
BEHNAFRNIRZ - HERERREI—H

FERD K
FEEBE_Z_—F=B=1+—HLEFEZ#¥
BhAEEEEZARZEHIHNF1245F127
BZEREMBRR

EETERABE_Z_—F=B=+—HLt
FEZEMRE -

(ERNEVY
BMEEEZNE BERRENEFEZEE
HERN R AR B REME3.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Details of completed properties held for sale and properties under development for
sale of the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Particular of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2021 is set out in notes 29 and
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out on
page 128 this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has no distributable reserves. However, if
necessary conditions for share premium reduction are met in accordance with
applicable laws and the bye-laws of the Company, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution will become approximately HK$772,858,000 (2020: HK$787,030,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 224 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Yuen Leong

Chan Siu Tat (re-designated from independent non-executive Director to
executive Director on 1 September 2020)

Hu Jianjun (retired on 31 August 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Yap Yung

Wong Kin Ping (appointed on 1 September 2020)
Chen Lanran

Pursuant to Bye-law 83(2) of the bye-law of the Company, any director of the
Company appointed by the board either to fill causal vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Thus Mr.
Wong Kin Ping who was appointed as director of the Company pursuant to Bye-law
83(2) of the Company shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”). Mr. Wong Kin Ping, being eligible, offered himself for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM.

In addition, pursuant to bye-law 84(1) of the bye-law of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. Pursuant
to Bye-law 84(2), any director of the Company appointed pursuant to Bye-law
83(2) shall not be taken into account in determining which particular directors of
the Company or the number of the directors of the Company who are to retire by
rotation. Accordingly, Mr. Yuen Leong and Ms. Chen Lanran will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM. Mr. Yuen Leong and Ms. Chen Lanran, being eligible, offered
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 26 to 27 of this annual report.

S
FABDERRBERERABIEEMT :

HITES
R
fRE (M -E-EFNA—H
BB TEERERRITES)
HEE (R ZFNA=1+—HEMD

BIUIFRITES:

RE

ITETF W _TE-ZTFNE—BEZED
REA

RBEARBDZABMAEBF EEFTEEE
DUBMRR ERNIEMEFEEUZERNEAT
EXREABRERAASD TERRBERSHIL
ERREEERNE LEEET AL REX
RBZABMAEBFREZERERTEEZ
FTRVPRERNAATEBERRBEFAE (KRR
BEKRG) LRE-FTRFREFSER LR
EREERRBEARSG EEEET-

IESh RIBAR B 2 ABHRIFE4( K B ER
REBFRG ER=DZ—2ZARDES @ H
EFANHUR=2EFR ARARBAERD
R=pz—2#B) AHRERET EEEFAED
BE=FRERT—R-REATMAIFE4QF R
BABMASBREZEZEMERTEET
B AEEREREZRELRADEFHERF
EFSANBN AL RREERBREBL RN
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DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to the Director’s
duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interests, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors and officers of the Company
are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance covering the potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities throughout the

year.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” in this
annual report, there was no change to any of the information required to be
disclosed in relation to any Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2020 interim report of the

Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES AND
CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their respective associates have engaged in any business that competes or may
compete with the businesses of the Group or have any other conflict of interests with
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors and the chief
executive and their associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO™) (a) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) which were required to be notified

(b) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the associated
corporation

EFNHRFEB 2GR EER
BE_T_—F=ZRA=+—HLFE FRFAE
ENEAREZBEZHMBRARELFTRLERE
BEERFUAIEFERF 2 EAEBRELE
EAEAEMF] D E

EFNR RAERRMG 2 Em

A TET—F-RA=t+—H EFERESTHA
EURBEZHMBANRERT REBEER (E
ERBSRIERM (B REEHEA) BXVER)
ZRDPER (QIREE S M ERGEXVELET
K8 B RBMAAB R PAZ Bm ke (8
EREES MR ZZS AR EREFR
BRIEFEAZBDIKA) ; WO)RFBF RGN
BIE352M% 7R 50 A Z AR P PR 2 & 50 it 2 A ki B o3k
B RORBELTRARDEFETESIZNERE
STRVRERBANAA B R 32 P 2 i Ko sk 2
T

REECEERO RBAROZHFE

Number of ordinary shares (long positions)
EERHE FR)
Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Total number of
shares held in

Name of associated associated  capital of associated
Name of Director corporation Personal interest corporation corporation
REBCEERFREZ  GHEEZEEEST
S MR B A B L 8 BAEDE R 4EE  RAZBAEIL
Yuen Leong Long Grand Limited (Note 1)  Beneficial owner 300 30%
R EEARAE (Fisk) Bm#EEA
Notes: B 5E

1) Long Grand Limited is legally and beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Yam Yu and
as to 30% by Mr. Yuen Leong. Long Grand Limited holds more than 50% of the issued
share capital of the Company. Accordingly, by virtue of the SFO, (i) Long Grand Limited
is an associated corporation of the Company and (ii) Mr. Yuen Leong is deemed to be
interested in this associated corporation of the Company.

M EEERAEDINHEFEERRELRESE
MEMBER70%R30%ED cRIEERATFELR

NE BT 2 H150% R It > BiEE S RS

BH ({RBERARAAA T Z B EBE Ki)
RESERBVANRER B ZZEHEE T ES#

Eo
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (a) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted on 5 September 2014 by the Company. The
share option scheme is designed to award employees for their performances and
details of the share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the share option scheme during the year, and there is no outstanding
share option as at 31 March 2021.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FERRZEERKE

SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital K -_ZE_—F=H=+—H BIEXATIEE

of the Company (“Share(s)”) were recorded in the register of interests required to be K HEE1&H 33657 B 2 R S MR 3

kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. ANTHABHEE KA BEETIRAS (TR51) 5%3L
DL E#ERR o
Approximate
percentage of the
Capacity in which Number of Shares issued share capital
Name interests are held interested of the Company
EEAF
BE#D B8ITRA
LSy RHE#ZZ8H) ZRH&E ZEABE AL
Long Grand Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 10,347,283,880 (L) 50.92%
EBEARRE (z1) BE#EAA
Yam Yu (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 10,347,283,880 (L) 50.92%
FF (fF5E1) N e
Power Trend Asset Holdings Ltd. (Note 2) Beneficial owner 2,540,190,000 (L) 12.50%
Power Trend Asset Holdings Ltd. (Fff5£2) EmEAA
Luo Feng (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 2,540,190,000 (L) 12.50%
ELE (MEE2) PRIEGEE 2 #m
China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interest in controlled corporation 1,280,000,000 (L) 6.30%

PEEEEETERGERAS (i)  NEBEHEE R

Interest in controlled corporation 640,000,000 (S) 3.15%
REEFEEZ #m

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Interest in controlled corporation 1,280,000,000 (L) 6.30%
Limited (Note 3) NSRS NI
HREIEE (B8 ERARAE (ME3)
Interest in controlled corporation 640,000,000 () 3.15%
PRIEGEE 2 #m
China Cinda (HK) Asset Management Interest in controlled corporation 640,000,000 (L) 3.15%
Co., Limited (Note 3) REEFEE #m
HEEE &R EEBERD
BIRAR (MF5E3) Person having a security interest in 640,000,000 (L) 3.15%
shares
RO REEFEFETR ZEA
Interest in controlled corporation 640,000,000 (S) 3.15%
RE2EGEEZ #in
()  denotes long position Ln FEEE
() denotes short position € EXE
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Notes:

(1) Long Grand Limited is legally and beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Yam Yu and as
to 30% by Mr. Yuen Leong. By virtue of Mr. Yam Yu's 70% direct interest in Long Grand
Limited, Mr. Yam Yu is deemed or taken to be interested in the 10,347,283,880 shares
held by Long Grand Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

) Power Trend Asset Holdings Ltd. is legally and beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Luo
Feng. By virtue of Mr. Luo Feng's 100% direct interest in Power Trend Asset Holdings
Ltd., Mr. Luo Feng is deemed or taken to be interested in the 2,540,190,000 shares held
by Power Trend Asset Holdings Ltd. for the purposes of the SFO.

3) China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. has 100% control of China Cinda (HK) Holdings
Company Limited, which has 100% control of China Cinda (HK) Asset Management Co.,
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March
2021.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

None of the “Related parties transactions” as disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 constituted discloseable non-
exempted connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Related parties transactions” constituted connected
transaction as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the
relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefit schemes operated by the Group are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the year, IBM (China)Co., Ltd (“IBM China”), a company who provide
computer software engineering services to the Group to develop the platform for
NGSN in international business settlement segment, filed an arbitral claim against
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group for payment of outstanding service fees of
USD2,983,000 (approximately HK$22,619,000) plus interest due to late payments and
related legal fee. The disputes was caused by disagreement of acceptance of works
between IBM (China) and the Group over the phase completion on NGSN platform.
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Having reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received,
the directors of the Company are of the view that the litigations have no significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and its operating result for the year ended
31 March 2021 as all the above payable amounts have already been recorded in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2021. Up to the date of this report,
the litigation is still in progress.

As at the date of this annual report, save as disclosed above, there was no material
outstanding or pending litigation and arbitration for the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer and five largest customers for the year ended 31 March
2021 accounted for approximately 72.44% (2020: 1.82%) and 87.94% (2020: 3.86%)
respectively of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 March
2021 accounted for approximately 64.42% (2020: 19.93%) and 92.16% (2020: 45.78%)
respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders of the Company who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the five largest customers or suppliers
at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S SHARES
The Company has not redeemed any of its securities during the year ended 31 March
2021, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or, sold any of
the Company’s securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws, or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF
The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the shareholders by
reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out under the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group are set out in
Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from
19 March 2018 and BDO Limited (“BDO”) has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from the same date to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been audited by BDO. BDO will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of BDO as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
International Business Settlement Holdings Limited

Yuen Leong
DIRECTOR

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W% DR S

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{HE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SETTLEMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(BEREEEFERARAT)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International Business
Settlement Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 124 to 223, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in

accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the

the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEATHEER 11158
JKRAHI258
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of properties held for sale

We identified the impairment assessment of properties held for sale as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the significant management estimations
involved in determining the net realisable value of properties held for sale.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had
properties held for sale amounted to HK$1,976,719,000 at 31 March 2021.

As discussed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, the properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value is the estimated selling price less estimated selling expenses and estimated
cost of completion, which are determined based on best available information and
latest market conditions. Where there is any decrease in the estimated selling price
arising from any changes to the property market conditions in the People’s republic
of China (“PRC”), there may be write-down on the properties under development for
sale and completed properties held for sale.

The management of the Group determined the net realisable value by reference to
the independent valuation report prepared by an independent qualified professional
valuer, for which significant management estimations are required in determining

forecast selling price and cost of completion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of properties held for sale (Continued)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s impairment assessment
included:

. Understanding and evaluating the appropriateness of the provision policy
adopted in relation to properties held for sale and assessing whether the
provision policy is properly and consistently implemented,;

. Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the independent
qualified professional valuer;

. Challenging with the independent qualified professional valuer on the
valuation process to understand the performance of property markets,
significant assumptions and inputs adopted in the valuation and the
management’s critical judgmental areas;

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodologies adopted in the valuation
models;

. Comparing the selling price estimated by the management of the Group to
publicly available information and checking the pre-sale agreements entered
into by the Group, on a sample basis; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of cost of completion by comparing the inputs
to signed construction contracts and entity-specific historical information, on a
sample basis.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of factoring receivables and loan receivables
We identified the impairment assessment of factoring receivables and loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the significant
management estimations involved in determining the assessment of loss allowance.

As disclosed in notes 21 and 17, the Group recognised the carrying amounts of
factoring receivables of approximately HK$nil and loan receivables of approximately
HK$17,632,000 as at 31 March 2021 respectively. Loss allowances amounting to
approximately HK$71,979,000 and HK$129,489,000 have been provided on the
factoring receivables and loan receivables respectively.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit losses. Receivables
relating to customers with known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision of impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the customers, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and applying expected credit loss rates
to the respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The expected credit loss
rates are determined based on historical credit losses and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s impairment assessment
included:

. Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the independent
qualified professional valuer;

. Challenging with the independent qualified professional valuer on the
valuation process to understand the significant assumptions and inputs
adopted in the valuation and the management’s critical judgmental areas;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of factoring receivables and loan receivables
(Continued)

Understanding and validating the credit control procedures performed by the
management, including its procedures on periodic review of aged receivables
and assessment on loss allowance of receivables;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodologies adopted in the valuation
models;

Evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions and inputs adopted,
including the historical settlement pattern, correspondence with the
customers, evidence from external sources including market research
regarding the relevant forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors;

Testing on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of factoring receivables
and loan receivables against bank receipts;

Evaluating management’s assessment of the management of the Group on
the valuation of any collateral held for receivables that are credit-impaired, by
comparison with market prices based on the location and use of the collateral
and the prices of similar products nearby. We also evaluated the timing and
means of realisation of collateral, challenged the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans and evaluated other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contract terms; and

Comparing the recoverable amount determined by the management of
the Group with the carrying amounts of factoring receivables and loan
receivables.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W% DR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR 2

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

1 zz International Business Settlement Holdings Limited El@E2EEZERARAT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W% DR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021

BRHMAME REMBRRNET @

HPIREZZE G EHRERE) FXITFR5tE
BEMRFHLAREREZER  SBERMANE
ZHEAR R R B BRI I (R AT B R EARE B ©

HPTRELZEGRIERN RARMEET
BRBIEREBERER WA K& ER
AR ERFINBIIMENRRERRAEMER U
REBRANERT BLUHREBIIEELERE
BYITEN SN ERER BB SBFE I ©

BRORHEFEBNFER  REMEFTEH A
HRaVBERENELIFRAEER  WMBEM
BRBZFE RIFEARIVEETBTFLRKE
IEFE AINBEANBERT RADAME
IEEFFEAGEARNT RBRRFBUARNE
IEFEFEM @M A B RS FIREE » DRI
SRR S PRI EER-

ERUGEREHMEBRARAR
BFEEETAT

Rk i

HEE SR P05443

&8 _E_—F,BA”-+FHH

123

Annual Report 2020/2021 R



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raiEmRkEHMEENER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BiZE —_E " —F=H=+—HILFE

2021 2020
T —F —EIEHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B s FHET TFHET
Revenue WA 6 85,521 393,536
Cost of sales and services HE RBRFE R A (64,320) (329,131)
Gross profit EF 21,201 64,405
Other income, gains and losses HAURA -~ W e 518 8 13,330 7,335
Selling expenses HEER (9,347) (5,700)
Administrative and other expenses THREME R (89,521) (80,283)
Impairment loss on property, Y- -REREZHEREEREE
plant and equipment 13 (8,177) -
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net FENE R EE1E 358 17 (57,397 (58,227)
Impairment loss on factoring receivables FEWRIBRIBR (B8 21 - (36,969)
Write-off on trade and other receivables IEEFEW S 5 R IB &
HEWARIE (5,632) =
Finance costs B E R A 9 (2,579) (39,981)
Loss before taxation FRAR AT ES 1R (138,122) (149,420)
Income tax expenses Fri8MFs 10 (1,928) (32,394)
Loss for the year from continuing operations J5 4848 & ¥ 55 2 £ N8 (140,050) (181,814)
Discontinued operation BARILEEER
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation, B 4% |F S & 25 > FEREIE
after tax (GEE) 11(0) - (3,024)
Loss for the year FAEE 1 (140,050) (184,838)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FREMEEKA B
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently EJFEF*E#E EFH FHEEIEZRZ
to profit or loss: EEH :
Exchange differences arising on translation of B BINERIEIRKREE 2
financial statements of foreign operations FERAE%R 2,225 (7,944)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FERE2EBA, %) 58
for the year (137,825) (192,782)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
trofam R EHt 2R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE _—Z —

—GZA=+—AILEE

2021 2020
& TEITEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TExT THEx
Loss for the year attributable to: FE(GEPIEIE !
Owners of the Company KRBIEE A
— Continuing operations —RHBREETS (132,284) (173,374)
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREER - 2,117)
(132,284) (175,491)
Non-controlling interests RIS S
— Continuing operations —RHBREETS (7,766) (8,440)
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREER - (907)
(7,766) 9,347)
(140,050) (184,838)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FEMEZ2mEURA (FI=2) 48%E .
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KNBIEE A (122,161) (182,901)
Non-controlling interests eSS (15,664) (9,881)
(137,825) (192,782)
Loss per share — basic and diluted (HK cents) A8 ES1E —EH A K #%E GE1L)
— Continuing and discontinued operations —FHER BRI EET 12 (0.65) (0.86)
— Continuing operations —FHEREETS 12 (0.65) (0.85)

Annual Report 2020/2021 R

125



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EREMIEINRER

As at 31 March 2021 R-_ZE_—&=8B=+—H

2021 2020
& == 2
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FasE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERITMEE

Property, plant and equipment Y BB Rk B 13 393,114 293,198
Intangible assets B EE 14 1,355 =
Prepayment SEINE R 15 278,057 213,085
Interests in associates REE QT 2w 16 = =
Loan receivables FEE =K 17 = 41,700
Deferred tax assets RIEFR TH S EE 18 38,592 31,350
711,118 579,333

CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Loan receivables R E = 17 17,632 31,470
Properties held for sale FEME 19 1,976,719 1,595,265
Inventories =8 146 =
Trade and other receivables FEUSR B 57 BR 1B K ELfth FE Uk BR 18 20 24,819 56,669
Factoring receivables FEWRIERRIE 21 - =
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIRITER 22 351 345
Bank balances and cash RITHEERIRES 22 632,707 710,845
2,652,374 2,394,594

CURRENT LIABILITIES Bt 2 =R
Trade and other payables FE(T B 5 BRIE & EL At FE (T BRIE 23 714,161 448,699
Borrowings (TN 24 636,369 546,412
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEIEEFI e T TR IE 25(h) 82,697 76,277
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE (T R AR IR A B R IE 25(c) 1,666 1,675
Tax liabilities GE=Fi| 29,830 29,137
Contract liabilities BHEE 26 891,651 807,890
Lease liabilities HESRE 27 6,272 4,404
2,362,646 1,914,494
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBBEERE 289,728 480,100
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES WEERGESHAR 1,000,846 1,059,433
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R MIBEINRER

As at 31 March 2021 R - - —F=H=+—H

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
IS FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHEE
Borrowings = 24 155,156 74,064
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 4,189 6,043
159,345 80,107
NET ASSETS EEFE 841,501 979,326
CAPITAL AND RESERVES Beas R (st
Share capital [[ZiN 28 20,319 20,319
Reserves EL 754,015 876,176
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ Z<A TR A (G 774,334 896,495
Non-controlling interests JESTEHIE 67,167 82,831
TOTAL EQUITY ENE 841,501 979,326
On behalf of the board of directors KREFT
Yuen Leong Chan Siu Tat
R= MR/ iE
Director Director
BZE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FalEmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BiZE —_E " —F=H=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AL 2PN
Capital Non-
Share Statutory Share  Contributed  redemption  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital reserve premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
BXER
BEx  EEHE  ROEE  EHRE e RERE  RHER FCECIE 3ol g e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000
TR TER FHET TR TR TR FET TR TR TR
(Note 28) (note b) (Note 29) (note a)
(HizH28) (HizED) (Hz529) (Wzka)
At 1 April 2019 as originally presented RIE-hEMB—H
(B5) 20319 1245 9009799 51,655 3781 038 (808387 10979 D5 11030
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREREEMBRSE
F16% = = = = = = (394) (394) = (394)
At 1 April 2019 (represented) RZIB-nEME—R
(E325) 20319 1,245 9,009,799 51,655 3781 21378 (8,028,781) 1,079,396 2512 1,101,908
Exchange difference arising on translation of BEBNEBMBRRELZ
financial statements of foreign operations ERER - - - - - (7410) - (7410) (534) (7944)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (175,491) (175.491) 9.347) (184,839)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year ERZEWA / (B 45 = = = = = (7.410) (175491) (182901) (9:881) (192,782)
Capital injection from a non-controlling interest ~ REMBATFEEHIERN
of a subsidiary AE - - - - - - - - 70,200 70,200
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 r 3_7E A=+-Hk
B ZENMA-A 20319 1,245 9,009,799 51,655 3781 13,968 (8,204272) 896,495 82,831 979,326
Exchange difference arising on translation of BREBNEBMBRRELZ
financial statements of foreign operations ERER - - - - - 10,123 - 10,123 (7,899) 2005
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - (132,284) (132,284) (7,766) (140,050)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year ERZEWA / (B 45 - = = = = 10,123 (132,284) (122161) (15,664) (137,829)
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-%ZA=+-H 20319 1,245 9,009,799 51,655 3781 2409 (8,336,55) 774334 67,167 841,501
Note a:  The capital redemption reserve represents amounts transferred from contributed — Fffsta: BARBRORERENBLRAATKRNTFESHE
surplus upon the repurchase of the Company’s shares. FREREE 2 FRIB 0
Note b:  According to relevant laws and regulation of the PRC, an entity established under — Ff§5Eb: RIFHFEMERE R AR RIBPBE QB AR
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the PRC Company Law is required to make an appropriation at 10 percent of the
profit for the year as shown in the PRC statutory financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the PRC, to the
statutory reserve until the balance reached 50 percent of the registered capital
of the entity. The reserve appropriated can only be used to make up losses or to
increase the registered capital of the entity and is not distributable.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nﬁF iEEEBﬁEEEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE _—Z —

—F=ZRA=1+—HLFE

2021 2020
—ET—F —ETE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M FAET THET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RZZHFFSZHER=E
Loss for the year from continuing operations FEREERE 2 FNEIE (140,050) (181,814)
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation BAR |[F4S% #5524 (N 538 = (3,024)
(140,050) (184,838)
Adjustments for: RELTIER
Income tax expenses T8 X 10 1,928 32,394
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment )2 B = KR E 13 8,541 5,594
Amortisation of intangible assets B E Y 14 74 =
(Reversal of)/impairment loss on trade FEUY B2 5 BR 18 K LAt FE UK
and other receivables, net BRIE (B[E) BB PR 20 (693) 1,837
Impairment loss on property, plant and YE BB KRR ERERE
equipment 13 8,177 -
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net FEWERURERTE  F4E 17 57,397 58,227
Impairment loss on factoring receivables FEWRIEFRIE R (B B5 18 21 = 36,969
Write-off on trade and other receivables IEEFEW B 5 BRIB K,
HAh W IRIE M 5,632 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRR 2w 37 - (4,345)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment (Wzs) /K548 1 (745) 10
Government grant recognised EEREBATEE) 8 (8,361) (130)
COVID-19-related rent concession COVID-19/ERATE 1B = 8 (287) =
Bank interest income IRITHEURA 8 (3,524) (7,554)
Exchange loss, net bE R ES1E 5 JFEE 8 904 =
Interest expenses FERE 9 2,579 39,981
(68,428) (21,855)
(Increase)/decrease in properties held for sale ~ FE#) (L) Hb (187,516) 211,748
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEWE 5 iR 1B R H h e UK AR 1B
Ve 28,298 51,852
Decrease in factoring receivables FE R RIERRIE R/ - 1,598
Increase in inventory FEEM (146) -
Decrease in loan receivables FEWEFUR 570 2,168
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FE 8 5 RIB R BT ERIE
other payables a0, el 216,109 (445,556)
Increase in contract liabilities SHEEEM 23,526 193,710
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KRS, (FrA) BRe 12,413 (6,335)
Income taxes and land appreciation BTSRRI {ER > 558
taxes paid, net (2,050) (1,768)
Government grant received BWENEL 8,361 130
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) REEBPE (FRA) 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HE P8 18,724 (7,973)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BiZE —_E " —F=H=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E—HF —EIERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bk FAET TFHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EZEFISZHER=E
Interest received BUFH E 3,524 7,554
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE#)% BB RHE (73,656) (94,430)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYE BMEKRZEMSHE
plant and equipment 1,216 -
Purchases of intangible assets BEETEE (1,364) =
Prepayment for purchase equipment BERERRHTELRIE
and software (47,493) (214,715)
Net cash outflow arising from the HENBAREENIREME
disposal of subsidiaries FRE 37 - (1,433)
Release of restricted bank deposits RREZ IR GIRITIERR 18 5,871
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM REEE FrA) FRiszZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REHEE (117,755) (297,153)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RAE EEFRISZIRERE
Interest paid BN E 30 (18,911) (17,964)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests 2% B i B /A B JEIEHI R AT E
of a subsidiary - 70,200
New borrowings raised MEERER 30 73,198 74,064
Repayment of borrowings BEER 30 (34,582) (30,528)
Advance from non-controlling interests FEIETHIHER BT 30 804 22,500
Repayment to ultimate holding company BERKER A ABNIE 30 (9) (100)
Repayment of principal portion of the BREEEaENEASH D
lease liabilities 30 (5,543) (4,589)
Repayment of advance from third parties BEE=-FEN 30 (752) =
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEESASZIRE R 14,205 113,583
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREEBYRLFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (84,826) (191,543)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNzZRERFEEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 710,845 911,602
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON REeEhREEBEMEZREH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS wE 6,688 (9,214)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBERBEEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR
represented by cash and bank balances VIR R IR1T4EFMAR 632,707 710,845
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR MTSERRMEE

31 March2021 —E2-_—F=H=+—H

1. GENERAL

International Business Settlement Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate and ultimate holding company is Long Grand Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), which is owned
by Mr. Yam Yu and Mr. Yuen Leong (a director of the Company) of 70% and 30%,
respectively. Its registered office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business is at Unit 3103, 31/F, Sino Plaza,
255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The principal activity of the
Company continues to be investment holding. Detail of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective from 1 April 2020

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, as described in those annual
financial statements, except for the adoption of the following new standards and
interpretations as of 1 April 2020 and the policies stated in below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
and HKFRS 9

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 3, none of these new or amended HKFRSs
has a material impact on the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior period. The Group has not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period except for the amendment to
HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions. Impact on the applications of these
amended HKFRSs are summarised below.

1. —RRER
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RESMMRIIZZHRRERAB ERHESH
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70%K230%89 1 7 o L EE I SS EE st hik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermudaz &
FEEEMU AT BIMEE S 118255257505
MEZBUNENBE - AR ETEBXFEBEER
KREER -HNBAS T EXBNHFTHENELS
MR M 51390
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HRELER]))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e TR R MIEE

31 March 2021 —E_-_—F=H=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective from 1 April 2020
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and introduce an optional

concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set

of activities and assets is not a business. The election to apply the concentration

test is made for each transaction. The concentration test is met if substantially all

of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable

asset or group of similar identifiable assets. If the concentration test is met, the set

of activities and assets is determined not to be a business. If the concentration test

is failed, the acquired set of activities and assets is further assessed based on the

elements of a business.

The Group elected to apply the amendments prospectively to acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient to lessees in accounting
for rent concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, by including
an additional practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to elect not to
account for rent concessions as modifications. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 pandemic and only
if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@)  the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and

() there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective from 1 April 2020
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted for in accordance with
this practical expedient, which means the lessee does not need to assess whether the
rent concession meets the definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply other
requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would have resulted in the
Group remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using a
revised discount rate, with the effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and the effect of the change in
the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient for all rent concessions that
meet the criteria. In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
applied the amendment retrospectively, and has not restated prior period figure.
As the rent concessions have arisen during the current financial period, there is no
retrospective adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2020 on
initial application of the amendment.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the

date they become effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRSs

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause’

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?
Reference to the Conceptual Framework®
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2’

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond

30 June 2021°

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

22 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

e Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

& The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or contribution of assets
occurring in annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new amendments to HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the

Company anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to

HKFRS will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statement in the

foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors” interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in any former subsidiary (that
has become an associate or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or
joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these amendments
may have an impact on the financial statements in future periods should such
transaction arise.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair vales, at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

() Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (‘RMB”), while the consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"). As the Company is
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the directors consider that it will be more appropriate to adopt Hong
Kong dollars as the Group’s and the Company’s presentation currency. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Group. Inter-company transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-
date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, if any, is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are present:
(i) power over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change
in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

() Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is
neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition change in the associates net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in associates are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable during the
year.

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
from goods sold or services provided, net of discounts and sales related taxes. The
Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below:

(i)  Sales of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of
the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the asset.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)  Sales of properties (Continued)

For property development and sales contract for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time and there is no enforceable right to payment from
the customers for performance completed to date, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has present right to payment and the collection of the consideration
is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised amount of
consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is significant.

(ii)  Sales of contact lens

Customers obtain control of the contact lens when the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers accepted
the contact lens. There is generally only one performance obligation. The credit term
granted to customer is average 90 days.

(iii) Settlement service income

Under HKFRS 15, settlement service income derived from commercial and individual
customers with the Electronic Money Institution license is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered. The Group charge a fixed amount of service provided
and recognises as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to charge
and corresponds directly with the value of performance completed.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on the initial recognition.

(e) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off their cost net of
expected residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings Over the terms of lease or 40 years,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

Machinery 10 years

Leasehold improvements Over the terms of lease or 3 years,

whichever is shorter

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised during the
periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant
and equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised
in profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance leases) are required
to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)  Leasing (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would comprise: (i)
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability should be recognised at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall use
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset during the lease
term that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable; (ii) variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees; and (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability
by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications,
e.g., a change in future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Internally generated intangible assets (research and development costs)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which it
is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development activities (or from
development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

it is technically feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefit;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible asset is the sum
of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a prorate basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Properties held for sale

Completed properties and properties under development for sale in the ordinary
course of business are included in current assets and stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land, development expenditure,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, and
other attributable expenses.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for properties held for sale
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

() Land development expenditure

Land development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
The cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the development of relevant
projects such as road construction, demolition, resettlement work.

(j)  Financial instruments

()  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirely when
determining whether their cash flows are Solely Payment of Principal and interest
(“SPPI".

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
Group only has the following type of debt instruments:
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

()  Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
the cash flows represent SPPI are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or
loss unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii)  Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount.

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other payables, borrowings,
certain preference shares and the debt element of convertible loan note issued by
the Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(v}  Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

(vi)  Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with principles of the accounting policy set out
in 4(j)(ii); and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a result
of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and measured at their fair value on
the date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and necessary to make the sale.

() Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit before tax as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

(m) Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of the group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the translation reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the translation reserve.

(n) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

(0) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivables as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related cost are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivables.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Employee benefits

()  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year when the employees render
the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(q) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of the
following assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

. property, plant and equipment;

. intangible assets;

. interests in associates;

. properties held for sale;

. prepayment; and

. investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal

and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the

carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a

revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated

as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under
that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset or CGU (see Note 4(g)), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

(r)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which will probable result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4.
(s)
(a)

F=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

0)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an

associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is
a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

(t)  Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in share option reserve.

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of option that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

()  Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash generating unit to which the asset is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
A change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will
result in an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision previously made. The
Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is an indication
that property, plant and equipment may be impaired. Details of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 13.

(ii) Impairment of properties held for sale

The Group’s properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value with aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,976,719,000 as at
31 March 2021 (2020: HK$1,595,265,000). The net realisable value is the estimated
selling price less estimated selling expenses and estimated cost of completion
(if any), which are determined by the management of the Company based on
best available information and latest market conditions. Where there is any
decrease in the estimated selling price arising from any changes to the property
market conditions in the PRC, there may be write-down on the properties under
development for sale and completed properties held for sale. Details of properties
held for sale is set out in note 19.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(iii) Net realisable value for properties for development, properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
Properties for development, properties under development and completed
properties remaining unsold at the end of each reporting period are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value for properties for
development and properties under development is determined by reference to
management estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion. Net
realisable value for completed properties held for sale is determined by reference to
management estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less applicable variable selling expenses. During the course of their assessment,
the management will also make reference to property valuations conducted by
independent qualified professional valuers based on comparable market prices. The
management are required to revise these estimates if there is a change in market
condition or demand. If actual market conditions are less favourable than those
projected by management, additional adjustments to the value of properties for
development, properties under development and completed properties held for sale
may be required. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale are HK$636,366,000 (2020:
HK$559,502,000) and HK$1,340,353,000 (2020: HK$1,035,763,000) respectively.

(iv) Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC and Hong Kong. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing
of the related payments. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will have impact on the income tax and/or
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(v}  Land appreciation taxes

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures.
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SR MTSERRMEE

31 March2021 —E2-_—F=H=+—H

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(v}  Land appreciation taxes (Continued)
Those subsidiaries of the Company which are engaged in property development
business in the PRC are subject to land appreciation taxes, which have been included
in income tax expenses in profit or loss. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various PRC cities and the Group has not finalised its LAT returns
with the relevant tax authorities in respect of certain property development projects.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based
on management’s best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax expenses and provision for land appreciation taxes in the period in
which such determination is made.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

Management estimates the amount of loss allowance for ECLs on financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost based on the credit risk of the respective
financial asset. The loss allowance amount is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
after taking into consideration of expected future credit loss of the respective
financial asset. The assessment of the credit risk of the respective financial asset
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When the actual future cash
flows are different from expected, a material impairment loss or a material reversal
of impairment loss may arise, accordingly.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies are as follows:

(b) Critical accounting judgments

Financing arrangements for hotel business

The Group has entered into certain hotel-room sales agreements whereby the Group
has determined that it retained the control of hotel. Accordingly, the Group has
recognised the hotel as property, plant and equipment (Note 13) and the deposits
received as other borrowings (Note 24(a)(i)). If the Group had determined that it
lost control of the hotel following entering into the sales agreements, then the
alternative accounting would have been to exclude the hotel from its consolidated
statement of financial position and recognise the deposits received as contract
liabilities. The determination of whether the Group has retained the control of hotel
depends on an assessment of the relevant arrangements relating to the finance
arrangements and this has involved critical judgements by management.
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

6. REVENUE

Following disposal of its property management business, the principal activities of
the Group are (1) property development; (2) hotel business; (3) international business
settlement; (4) financing business; and (5) contact lens business. Further details
regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 7.

6. WA

RUEEYLEBERE AEEANTBEHA
()DEBIEE ; QEEE ;QEEHEEE ;@R
BEY, ROBVRELE AHAIEETEL
RO — BB I 57

2021 2020
—E-—F 2=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Continuing operations: FaREE.
Revenue from contracts with customers (Note) BEREHWA (D)
Sales of properties HEYE 75,733 386,487
International business settlement services B[R = S B AR 7,842 3,054
Sales of contact lens THEREIRIR 1,829 =
85,404 389,541
Revenue from other sources H AR R
Financing service income B EARF WA 117 3,995
85,521 393,536
Discontinued operation: BRI REET
Revenue from contracts with customers (Note) BEREHWA (D)
Property management services (Note 11(c)) MESERY (T:E1100) — 4,076
85,521 397,612
Note: Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers Mzt ZREEFR SAWARNMED
2021 2020
—s-—f —s-=zf
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Continuing operations: FEEEER .
Timing of revenue recognition MR A BB R
Goods transferred at a point in time RE R, 77,562 386,487
Services transferred over time REERFE R A 7,842 3,054
85,404 389,541
Discontinued operation: BARIEEEETS
Timing of revenue recognition UL A BB [E]
Services transferred over time (Note 11(c)) PREEIRFS R (F5E11(0) - 4,076
85,404 393,617
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SR MTSERRMEE

F=A=+—H

31 March 2021 —&_——

7. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by different
business lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s executive Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following reportable segments.

The Group has the following continuing operating segments during the year ended
31 March 2021. These segments are managed separately. No operating segments
have been aggregated to the following reportable segments.

Property — Developing and selling of commercial and residential
development properties, car park spaces, including undertaking of
primary land development activities, in the PRC.
Hotel business — Hotel development and provision of hotel management

services in the PRC.

International — Providing settlement and clearing services for commercial
business and individual customers with the Electronic Money
settlement Institution license.

Financing business

Provision of finance through money lending services,
finance leases, leasing, factoring and other related
services.

Contact lens — Manufacturing and sales of disposable contact lens in the

business PRC.

The Group was involved in the following segment which was discontinued during the
year ended 31 March 2020:

Property — Provision of property management service in the PRC.
management

business
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. DERE @
(@) Segment revenue and results @) DHEBMAREE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE_T-_—F=RB=1+—HLEFE

International

Property Hotel business Financing Contact lens
development business settlement business husiness Total
Bl SEES BT BRER
MERE BIERH ] MEEH £% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FET FER FET FER FER

Revenue WA
External sales and HIMEE RDEUA

segment revenue 75,733 - 7,842 117 1,829 85,521
Segment loss DR (8,925) = (39,471) (60,509) (13,752) (122,657)
Unallocated corporate expenses XNEARER (18,989)
Bank interest income RITH BUA 3,524
Loss before taxation BREISE (138,122)
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sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

7.  SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. DERE @
(a) Segment revenue and results (Continued) @) DEWMARES @
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HEZZ - SHF-—B=1+—HIFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAIE
RELEEY -E 3
International Property
Property Hotel husiness Financing ~ Contact lens management
development husiness settlement husiness business Sub-total husiness Total
EilTEES ISR IR MEEE
MERE BIEER "E MEEH %% st % L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TART TART TAR TAR TAT TAT TART TAR

Revenue WA

External sales and segment revenue ~ $HMEE R EURA 386,487 = 3,054 3,995 = 393,536 4,076 397,612
Segment profit/(loss) NERR/ (B8 9453 (10532 (27,544) (98,182) (3,800) (130,606) (3,024) (133,630)
Unallocated corporate expenses FPEAFER (26,368) - (26,368)
Bank interest income BAREMA 7,554 > 7,554
Loss before taxation BRinAIEE (149.420) (3,024) (152,444)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the same as = E RO 2R OB Gt BREAKRER 2 &5t
the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results represent the results from each EBER— o NIEXBEIEI DB ¥4 TRzt K
segment without allocation of central administration costs including directors D ECHRRITHER (BIEE SIS RIBTH B
emoluments and bank interest income. This is the measure reported to the CODM ~ A) el AR T B &ERKE 2RE R DAL LK
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. RN =pPdsbr
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

7. RS @
b) SDIHEBERERE

2021 2020
—EZ—F “EIEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE
Property development MR 2,045,944 1,654,040
Hotel business BIEETR 188,472 201,761
International business settlement RrEELEE 19,643 23,024
Financing business e 17,689 73,758
Contact lens business S REZETS 452,949 306,576
Total segment assets DEEERDR 2,724,697 2,259,159
Unallocated assets KOEEE
Bank balances and cash IRITEFERIEE 632,707 710,845
Other assets Hih&E 6,088 3,923
Total unallocated assets RDECEELLRE 638,795 714,768
Consolidated total assets LA EERE 3,363,492 2.973,927
LIABILITIES =N
Segment liabilities AR h=NE
Property development LY EE (2,098,072) (1,684,917)
Hotel business BIEERE (139,118) (129,643)
International business settlement PR A (45,822) (73,258)
Financing business MEER (24) (1,472)
Contact lens business PR RRIR T (230,884) (97,166)
Total segment liabilities NiEEEREE (2,513,920) (1,986,456)
Unallocated liabilities RDECEE
Other liabilities Hth&aEd (8,071) (8,145)
Total unallocated liabilities FoECaEiERE (8,071) (8,145)
Consolidated total liabilities =N R CR (2,521,991) (1,994,601)
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sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources
between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than bank balances and
cash and other assets not attributable to respective segments; and

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than other payables
not attributable to respective segments.

(c) Other segment information

()  Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

7o

(b)

SEES @®
PEEERERE @

RERHEXRERHBEERAEMNS |

(i)

FIEEEENRELENE RITEFERR
EURTBRE DB HMBERIN 5 &

FIERBEEIRELENE FBEBRNEDE
ZE MRS BRIEFRID) o

Hith s 5EE k!
SRENEHNNERADPEEERTAZ

TRER

BE_E_—F=-A=+—HLFE

International Reportable
Property Hotel business Financing  Contact lens segments’
development business settlement business business total  Unallocated Total
il THES BIVRE FIZHRNHE
MR BEER &g RMEEH 3] g K 1ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TER TET THET TET
Additions to property, RENE -BRREE
plant and equipment 568 5,131 1,148 - 81,300 88,147 3,943 92,090
Depreciation of property, ME-BRREEZ
plant and equipment e (583) - (2,081) (3,400) (6,064) (2,477) (8,541)
Amortisation of intangible assets B BESH - - = (74) (74) - (74)
Reversal of impairment loss/ FEWE ZIRER A
(impairment loss) on trade and EYCRIEHEREE
other receivables, net B/ (AEssE 38 196 = = (78) 118 575 693
Impairment loss on loan M ERHEREEE
receivables, net - - - (57,397) - (57,397) - (57,397)
Impairment loss on property, ¥ -BERRENE
plant and equipment 59 - - (8,177) = (8177) = (8,177)
Write-off on trade and MEEREZRER
other receivables HthfELERE - - (5,632) - (5,632) = (5,632)
Government grant &S 163 - - 7,690 7,853 508 8,361
Finance costs BEME (1,155) - (857) (425) (2,437) (142) (2,579)
Income tax (expenses)/credit st (B /1E% (2,847) - - - (1,928) = (1,928)
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31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

7. DERE®

(c) Other segment information (Continued) (0 HthomaER @
(i)  Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment (i) FrESBEHEANFBEEXITEEERTAZ
assets: (Continued) EE (@
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_Z_ZF-HA=+—HIEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAIE
International Reportable Property
Property Hotel husiness Financing ~ Contact lens segments’ management
development husiness settlement husiness husiness total  Unallocated husiness Total
EREE ERE EE NEER
MERE  EEEH 48 HEER ¥%  0BeE KAk £% ez
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TER THET TER TER TER TER TR
Additions to property, plant and equipment  AEWE HER
&M 18 270 8,742 = 94077 103,107 = = 103,107
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #)% R RRE 2 T8 (524) = (%62) () (14) (1,544) (4,050) = (5,594)
Impairment loss on trade and FEWE RRBR AR
other receivables, net ERESETE 24 - (1,506) - ®) (1,748) (89) = (1.837)
Impairment loss on factoring and Bl RESERERETR
loan receivables, net BEE3E = - - (95,196) - (95,19) - - (95,196)
Government grant HFER - - - 130 = 130 = = 130
Finance costs EERES (28.499) (10,531) 97) = (449) (39,575) (406) = (39,981)
Income tax expenses Frigtms (30,797) = = (1,597) = (32.39%4) = = (32,394)
(i)  Information about geographical areas (i) MEBEHER

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external
customers and non-current assets other than financial instruments, prepayment and
deferred tax assets (“Specified non-current assets”).

Revenue from external customers
(by customer location)

E (&

TREFHAEERBINBELHNBARIERDE

TR BURBEMRMEERBEEE (H5ETF

RBVEE]) BRIN Do

Specified non-current assets
(by physical location)

RBEIEEFRHIUA IEEFERTEE

BRERUERSD) (RERUERSD)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E- TEIRE - TECTE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FAET FAET
Hong Kong 55 - - 3,318 1,853
PRC (domicile) FRE (i) 77,679 394,558 391,117 290,475
Others Hih 7,842 3,054 34 870
85,521 397,612 394,469 293,198
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31 March 2021 —&_——

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued)

(iii) Information about major customers

Revenue from one customer of the Group’s property development segment
accounted to approximately HK$61,952,000, which represent 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue. (2020: nil of individual customer contributed 10% or more of the
Group’s revenue).

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

7. DHEERE®

(0 HopH\EER ®

(i) TEXFER
KEXAEEYMERZSEN —ZELAHNKRABL
61,952,000/ 75 > (E AN EE BUL A BI10% A £ (=
—TFE O EERNE D HARE U A S ER10%30 L
)

8. EHfthUtA ~ Wm K E5i8

2021 2020
—E—F —BOTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Bank interest income RITHA B WA 3,524 7,554
Government grant (note(a)) B &R (H3E@) 8,361 130
Exchange loss, net bE 2 g5 1875 5R (904) (5,055)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) on trade  FEUR & 53 BR I8 K7 H fth FE W BR 1B Rl (&
and other receivables, net (Note 20) 518 CRl{EkEs18) F5a
(Ff$5E20) 693 (1,837)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HERBRARWE (HFEE37) - 4,345
Parking service income FERFBUA 280 1,369
Rental income GEE N 231 =
COVID-19 related rent concessions COVID-191ERAFE =B E 287 =
Others HAth 858 829
13,330 7,335
Note: B 5E

() The amount represents government grants to the Group in respect of foreign investment
subsidy, domestic construction subsidy, and employment support scheme subsidy.

(@ ZERERAMIIERE R BANEIREK
EEXFFTE 2B RER-
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. RMEMA
2021 2020
T T FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Interest on )=t
— bank borrowings —RITE™ 12,854 1,690
— other borrowings —HAMhEmR 66,765 93,567
— lease liabilities —MHEaR 999 503
80,618 95,760
Less: amounts capitalised in B AT BRIBEEARCEEE
— Properties held for sale —FEYE (68,120) (55,779)
— Construction in progress under property, —ME-BERREETEREILR
plant and equipment (9,919) -
2,579 39,981

Borrowing costs capitalised during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 arose MREE_ZE_—FKR_E_FEF=-HF=+—HIt

from borrowings specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets. FEZERMUEBRMATREERIFERGER
BEZERPESE-
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FRIGIERA
2021 2020
—E—F _ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Current tax in PRC > BPERR IS
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") EMER (REMERY (1,153) —
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") T ER (T ER) 7,795 24,725
6,642 24,725
Deferred tax (Note 18) IEIEFRIE (fI5E18) (4,714) 7,669
1,928 32,394
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sR e MR R MIEE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the income of the Group
neither arises in nor is derived from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

The PRC EIT is calculated on the applicable tax rate on assessable profits, if
applicable. The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries during the year

10. FRIFIRFASZ @
BE-S-—GR-F-SE=A=T—ALSE
o A S B B R A A LR A
EBRISRIELRME

PEGEMSRIZERNERN 2 BRAREAE
(WER) BE_T_—F=A=+—H1LtF
B> AEETEINB AR ZBREEMSRRE

ended 31 March 2021 is 25% (2020: 25%).

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

225% (=

TTZEF 1 25%) ©

REEZAEHRAXEGEEEm REMEE T
RFTE 2 FRIRAIRSIE Z AR T ¢

2021 2020
—E_—5F CE T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation [EY5 T i
— Continuing operations —FEREERE (138,122) (149,420
— Discontinued operation —BARIEKEER - (3,024)
(138,122) (152,444)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax rate of 25% &AM TSI FK25%s1 &~ 1R 18 (34,531) (38,111)
Effect of difference tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEZHELENHBAEN
operating in other jurisdiction MEZBIFE 1,597 2,658
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose Aol 2 M E 25,177 43,571
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RIEDRIEEIE 2 MEE 1,890 3,371
LAT THIIZER 7,795 24,725
Tax effect of LAT T IR EIR AR 7S 2 28 = (3,820)
Income tax for the year KEEZFTEH 1,928 32,394
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AR e TR R MIEE

31 March 2021 —E_-_—F=H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of certain unused tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The deductible temporary differences
can be carried forward indefinitely except for certain tax losses from PRC subsidiaries
will be expired in the coming few years. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

The Group is required to prepay LAT and EIT in accordance with the relevant PRC
tax rules in respect of pre-sale of property development projects. As at 31 March
2021, the amount of prepaid LAT and EIT in respect of contract liabilities amounted
to approximately HK$2,050,000 (2020: HK$1,768,000), which has been presented as
deduction against the tax liabilities of the respective subsidiary in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. FRIGMHEZ @

FA S AR O ) SRR B FRR) - (R E I SR LS TR
AR BB IEEIEIERIEE E  pl NiRERR £
BRI EBHIAE (RN RREFERIIFATE
B RBBETINEEEIN - B FKAIEERRE
SR e BT AR LASE 85 PI 40 AR B IS 2 28 > B0 R T
ZE P HIREER EREEERNBEE

AEEBERBEPEBARRBERR HBEEYWER
HEEEMN I HIEERREEMBR -KIT
T—F=A=+—HB BEHEHNEBENEBFNL
IS (ER K (b TSR £ E84972,050,000%8 70 (=
T TEAF 1 1,768,0005857T) 0 WINRRZ B AR R
REMBERRRZREBEEE.

11. £REE
FREBEEENR GEA) -

2021 2020

g5 2

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Directors' emoluments (Note (a)) EEZME (HEQ) 2,778 3,535
Other staff salaries, wages and allowances HtEI#Ha  TERER 37,329 32,777
Other staff retirement scheme contributions HME T 2RI 1,071 2,048
41,178 38,360

Less: staff costs capitalised in properties held for sale B FEMEERNMEZBETIRA (1,507) (3,668)
Total staff costs BT A 48%8 39,671 34,692
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

11. £AEE @

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR FEER A 59,563 326,188
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEmEN £ 2,280 2,280
Impairment loss on property, plant and M- BB KREERERE
equipment (Note 13) (MF%13) 8,177 =
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net (Note 17) ENER R EREFEE (T:317) 57,397 58,227
Impairment loss on factoring receivables (Note 21) FEWRIBRIE R ER 8
(BitzE21) - 36,969
Write-off on trade and other receivables i34 FE UK B 5 AR TE Ky HL M FE UK BR 1B 5,632 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13) )2 k= K& 2 T E (45£13) 8,541 5,594
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) mEESY (EE14) 74 -
Short term or low value lease expenses EHIEEERERY 1,521 2,127
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEY)¥ R E K& H
(Wz) k58 (745) 10
Notes: Mok -
@  Information regarding Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ BAREEARESTBRAEMEZEN

Directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

RIFER EHRARAEFREZEETRES

applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, is as follows: TBRABFANBEHEINWOT :
Salaries, Retirement
wages and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
HE-IER
biok BB BAREHEIER st
BEZZT=-—& HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

For the year ended 31 March 2021 =A=+—HLEE FHET FHET FET FET
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HiTES
Yuen Leong == - 960 - 960
Chan Siu Tat (note (vi)) PR/ 3 (PRI EE(vi)) - 700 11 711
Hu Jianjun (note (iv)) R E (EE() - 500 7 507
Sub-total INEF - 2,160 18 2,178
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FRITES
Yap Yung ] 200 - - 200
Chan Siu Tat (note (vi)) PR/ (BT EE(vi) 84 = = 84
Chen Lanran Re e £ 200 - = 200
Wong Kin Ping (note (v)) FEF (FFzEV) 116 - - 116
Sub-total /st 600 - - 600
Total “ast 600 2,160 18 2,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RIS ERRMIEE
31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

11. FRNEE ®
Wk ()

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@  Information regarding Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) @ BARAEEARSTBABMEZER (B
Salaries, Retirement
wages and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
e IER
we AL RIRETBIMERR st
BE-—TS -S4 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
For the year ended 31 March 2020 =B=1+—BLEE FAET FAT FHET FHET
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Yuen Leong ) = 960 = 960
Luan Li (note (iii)) & (B 5EGiii)) = 720 14 734
Hu Jianjun tHEE = 1,200 18 1,218
Sub-total /hEt - 2,880 32 2,912
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITES
Yap Yung =B 200 = = 200
Zhang Guangsheng (note (ii)) SR A (BREE() 90 - - 90
Chan Siu Tat Pek Iz 200 - - 200
Chen Lanran (note (i)) Pek A (BT 5E(7)) 133 - - 133
Sub-total et 623 - - 623
Total “ast 623 2,880 32 3,535
Notes: B
(i) appointed on 1 August 2019 Q) AN ENA—BESTE
(ii) retired on 12 September 2019 (i) RoZE—hEAE+_HEME
(i) resigned on 31 December 2019 i) MoE—AE+-B=+—BFI
(iv)  retired on 31 August 2020 (iv) ATE-—EENA=S+—HEME
(v) appointed on 1 September 2020 v) RoE-SEHA—HESE
(vi)  re-designated from non-executive Director to executive Director on 1 September V) ROBR-SEAB—OHFERTESHEIT

2020 RBPITES
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sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

11.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

Information regarding directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of executive directors disclosed above were mainly for services in
connection with the management of affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one director (2020: two

directors), whose remuneration are disclosed above. The remuneration of the remaining
four (2020: three) highest paid employees are as follows:

FAEE @

MisE © ()

(@)

EMEREkRSTRAEMEZER (@)

EXHBEZATESWE TESRAEERR
B RAEREEHRMERS

EXFIRZIERITERME T TS RMEER
ERBENEMBRABZEFRMHE RS

haReHES
rEBRLESHFALEE R (CEIEF:

) EE - REZFHME N E30RE - HERME
(CEIZF  =%) REHEEZHINDT

2021 2020

—E—F TETTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Salaries, wages and allowances e TERRER 5,238 4,149
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEIMERR 35 36
5,273 4,185

Their remuneration were within the following bands:

REZFHMNAFUTEER :

2021 2020

—E_—F TECEF

number of number of

employee employee

EEAH BEAH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017875 £ 1,500,00078 75 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 75 Z£2,000,00078 7T 1 1
4 3

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No director had waived
any emoluments during both years.

BE_Z_—GFR-ECZEFZA=+—HL
FE - AERTERNEFRILESTA LM
RS > FRREFIMA SR AZEE B B 2 82
B SUE R E  NZWEFENGERER
EEmEEAME-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

© Discontinued operation

During last fiscal year, the Board resolved to dispose of HIJN [EA XS EAR A
&) (Liuzhou Zhenghe Cheng Business Management Ltd*) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Property Management Group”) by disposal of the investment holding company
of the Property Management Group (together the “Disposal Group”). The Property
Management Group is principally engaged in provision of property management service

in the PRC.

The disposal were completed in December 2019 and the Disposal Group was classified

as a discontinued operation.

* The English name is for identification purpose only

The revenue, results and cash flows of the Disposal Group were as follows:

11. FRNEE ®
Wk ()

(0 DRIEKEETR

RE-—WRFE EFEZREBHENMMNEN
HEXERERABDRANB AR B MEE
BER) 2 REFRABHEYEEREDR (RTE

THEEE) - YEEERERTENENPERE
HYEEIER -

HEFHEER-_T-NAF+BRxl MHEE
HEE D EAERIEREES-

HEEBENWAZERRESREBNT !

For the eight
months ended
from the date of
incorporation to

the date of

disposal

B

RILBEE

HERH

IENEA

HK$'000

FHET

Revenue WA 4,076
Cost of services BRFS AL AN (4,176)
Administrative expenses THEREZ (2,924)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation ERIEREXHE 2 FHBE (3,024)

Loss for the year from discontinued operation BRI EX£E 2 FANEE .
attributable to:

Owner of the company FN/NEIEZZ= DN (2,117)
Non-controlling interests JEITE SR (907)
(3,024)

HK$’000

FHET

Operating cash inflows KEHEMA 623
Investing cash outflows KERERH an
Financing cash inflows MERERA 821
Total cash inflows REMALLEE 1,433
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sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

12. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the Company

12. EKEE

FREEBEANEBEESREAGEENDRUTHES

is based on the following data: HEFE !
2021 2020
—ET—fF ECE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Profit and loss taF R 518
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company FER st EEREREIEZ AR AT
for the purposes of basic loss per share BE ANELEANBE
— Continuing operations —FEREEE (132,284) (173,374)
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREET - (2,117)
(132,284) (175,491)
2021 2020
s —EmomE
Number of shares i AnE s ¢=]
Weighted average number of shares ARstEERERBIEZ
for the purposes of basic loss per share B3 nn i 398K 20,319,072,320 20,319,072,320
No diluted earnings per share were presented as there were no potential ordinary BN MEEELEEFDETEER  WITESZ
shares in issue for both years. T ERETERT] o
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. MIE - -BERRE

Furniture
and office Motor Leasehold  Construction  Right-of-use
Buildings equipment vehicles Machinery improvements in progress assets Total
& %
BF WAERME HE WE  WMEEE HRIE FRAREE “g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER TEn TEr THr FET FET TAr
(note(@) ~ (note (a),(b)
(isk@)  (E@)~ ()
€osT A
At 1 April 2019 RZZ—hnEmE—H 19,726 31,849 242 - 4370 178,797 - 237,163
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BEREREANBRE
2R 165 - - - - - - 11,734 11,734
At 1 April 2019 (Represented) RZE—-hEMNA—H
(&s]25) 19,726 31,849 2421 - 4370 178,797 11,734 248,897
Additions "B - 303 314 - - 270 102,220 103,107
Disposal HE = 23) = = = = = 23)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = ) = = = = = @)
Exchange adjustments ERBE 933) (1,350) (150) = = (8455) (792) (11,680)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RIZ-EE
ZA=t-8Bk
“ETZENE-AH 18,793 30,737 2,585 = 4,370 170,612 113,162 340,259
Additions hE o 490 775 1,537 S 84,251 5,037 92,090
Disposal HE (502) 6) = = = = (11,739) (12,47)
Write-off bz - (84) - - (4370) - - (4.454)
Exchange adjustments ERRE 1337 2,138 280 77 - 16,712 7471 28021
At31 March 2021 RIBZ—F
=A=1+—-H 19,628 33,275 3,640 1,614 - 271,575 113,937 443,669
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sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. ME -BERRE ®
Furniture
and office Motor Leasehold  Construction  Right-of-use
Buildings equipment vehicles Machinery improvements in progress assets Total
HiR i)
BF WAERE RE e MERE TEIR FREEE o
HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 1000 HK$1000
TER TR TERT TET TET TER TET TR
(note(a)) (note (a),(b))
(ffzkQ)  (HEEa)~ (b))
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT TERAE
At 1 April 2019 RZZ—hEmE—H 493 30229 2,199 - 4370 = = 37,291
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BEREREANBRE
ERF165% - - - - = = 5,704 5,704
At 1 April 2019 (Represented) RZE—-hENA—H
(BEHZF) 493 30,229 2,199 = 4370 = 5,704 42,995
Eliminated on disposal P E R - (13) - = S S = (13)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRT = (20) = = = = = (20)
Provided for the year KEERE 462 620 04 = = = 4448 5,504
Exchange adjustments ERBE @7 (1313) (139) = = = 17 (1495)
At31March2020and 1April 2020  RZE_ZE
=B=1+—-Hk
“Z-FENE-H 928 29,503 2125 = 4370 = 10,135 47,061
Eliminated on disposal R E R (37) = = = = = (11.739) (11,776)
Impairment loss HEBR - - - = = = 8,177 8,177
Provided for the year KEERE 468 743 133 7 = = 7125 8,541
Write-off s - (84) - - (4370) - = (4.454)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 89 2,063 214 4 - = 636 3,006
At 31 March 2021 R-B-—%
=ZB=1+-H 1,448 32,225 2472 76 - - 14,334 50,555
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2021 BB —
=ZB=+-H 18,180 1,050 1,168 1,538 = 271,575 99,603 393,114
At 31 March 2020 RIEZTH
=ZB=1+-H 17,865 1234 460 = = 170,612 103,027 293,198
Notes: 5T
@  Asat 31 March 2021, land use right (included in right-of-use assets) and construction ~ (a) R —F=BA=+—H > L#EH#E GtA

in progress are pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowing of HK$131,212,000
(2020: HK$74,064,000) and other borrowing of HK$139,118,000 (2020: HK$129,642,000),

respectively.

FRAEEE) RERIREDIRIBIEARERIE
1TfEFN131,212,00058 7 (ZZE = Z 4 © 74,064,000
BT) REMEFN139,118,0008 75 (B T4 ¢
129,642,000 7T) FUIELR ©
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4R .:.E?ﬁ%#ﬁi\%lfﬁ i

31 March 2021 —

—F#=B=+—~”

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The following table summarised the right-of-use assets capitalised by nature of

underlying assets:

i}
(b)

13, 4@% P& B2 R 52 1 (@)

EEa

TRBLZEHEETEENCERAREE

Right-of-use assets

FEREEE
Buildings Land use right Total
=S T fEFR e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
(i)
Carrying values, at 1 April 2019 (Represented) A _E-NENB—HZ
IREE EEHZ) 6,030 - 6,030
Additions NE 8,677 93,543 102,220
Depreciation e (4,448) = (4,448)
Exchange adjustments PE %L (65) (710) (775)
Carrying values, at 31 March 2020 ATETEE-A=+—HK
and 1 April 2020 —ETFMEA/A—HZ
REE 10,194 92,833 103,027
Additions NE 5,037 - 5,037
Depreciation TEs (4,024) (3,101) (7,125)
Exchange adjustments (E R T 212 6,629 6,841
Impairment loss (ii) BIEEE (i) (8,177) — 8,177)
Carrying values, at 31 March 2021 A _E - —F=H=+—H
ZEREAE 3,242 96,361 99,603

(i)

The carrying amount of land use right represented a parcel of land acquired by the
Group in the PRC, to operate the contact lens business which is still under construction.

The directors of the Company considered there were impairment indicators on the
property, plant and equipment used in international business settlement segment
due to unfavorable future prospect caused by the worldwide outbreak of COVID-19 in
2020. Accordingly, the directors conducted a review on impairment assessment on the
relevant CGU to which the related property, plant and equipment belong.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the management considers that the
recoverable amount of the relevant CGU is determined on the basis of the value in
use calculation which is higher than its fair value less costs to sell. The value in use
calculations use cash flow projections based on the latest financial budgets approved
by the Company’s management covering a period of next 5 years representing the
remaining useful life of the property, plant and equipment at a discount rate of 15.3%
at a zero growth rate. During the year ended 31 March 2021, impairment loss of
HK$8,177,000 was recognised in the profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings, carried at fair value with
remaining lease term are as follows:

(i)

T AREMNIREEIEAER K PEWIEN—1E
iR B MTERR PR REER

AABEERA AR _ZS_TFR2INESR
COVID-19E R R 2RAI = N8 HEEEE D
SEFTAYE -BERRELIRBAENR AL &
ZEMEEVE BEARBFBEBRSES

BAEITRIER IR
MBENEMNS EEEN AR ELES U

Zo el EERTEFEREBEMER  FRE
BEaREQAABEREERAK tHEERABARIIREK
NABEEBEHAMENER A ER B K
BREZE 2GR ERER 2RITHKEBAEME
ARSREEA 3% HIRE RS E R
B BE_T_—F=HA=+— EILtEFE’iWE
Jé‘s?aswmoo/%nEEA?E 5 AR R

REELMAEFTHEEEED GIERTHEE
HEAREIR M :

2021 2020

—T_—% i

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

—Between 10 and 50 years —10ZE505F 96,361 92,833
—Other properties leased for own use, —EEFERENEMYE

carried at depreciated cost RITE A AT BR 3,242 10,194

99,603 103,027
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sR e MR R MIEE

31 March2021 —E2-_—F=H=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS . BICEE
Computer Settlement
software platform Total
SHEME G EHFES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFAT TAT TAT
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(M3 5¥(a)) (M3 5E(b))
CoSsT R
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 A2 —NFHA—H-
and 1 April 2020 “EIZF-RA=+—HkK
—ETEFMWA—H 59,186 59,186
Additions NE 1,364 = 1,364
Exchange adjustments b TSR EE 69 - 69
At 31 March 2021 A _E_—F=ZH=+—H 1,433 59,186 60,619
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT i KR E
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 AZE—NEFEEBE—H
and 1 April 2020 TECEEFE-RAZ4+—HEK
“ZETZFMA—H - 59,186 59,186
Charge for the year FARZ 74 — 74
Exchange adjustments FE S 4 - 4
At 31 March 2021 A B —F=ZH=+—H 78 59,186 59,264
CARRYING VALUES ERTE{E
At 31 March 2021 A B —F=ZH=+—H 1,355 = 1,355

At 31 March 2020

A _ETEF=HA=4+—H

Notes:

(@) Computer software was acquired during the year to assist factory’s manufacturing
production and management. It represents the intellectual property rights which have
finite useful life and are amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life

of 10 years.

(b) The Group entered into an agreement with an independent software company to
assist the Group in developing a settlement platform for connecting with the systems
of the central banks and commercial banks of the countries along the “Belt and Road
Initiative”. During prior years, the sums paid and payable by the Group pursuant to the

agreement was USD7,600,000 (equivalent to HK$59,186,000).

@ MREANBESERRE U IHRNREES
REE HIEAAREAERUTHGERE

FR10EEPY LA B AR A SE BRI SR EE 1 o

() AEBER-FIBIRERFFTILZE > URBIE

EEBAEE

HARBIR RIT KA R IRIT

NEFZHBEZEEFTE - NBEEE ZEER
Bz B KRBT & 88 437,600,0005% 70 (HBE
59,186,0003& 7T) ©

Annual Report 2020/2021 R

179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Note (b): (Continued)

During previously financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recognised a full impairment
loss in relation to settlement platform due to lack of substantive results arising from
memorandums of cooperation and framework agreements, entered into in prior years, signed
with a number of potential cooperative banks and financial institutions. Up to the date of
this consolidated financial statements, there are no revenue generated from this settlement
platform.

15. PREPAYMENT

14. EFEEE @
MizE(b): (&)

RBEE_Z-—NF=-A=+—HLEL-MBEEE AKX
BEFEASFEBEESFRITARERMEBRITNSIE
BHRRERGBEAZBEEMNR  cEEREE TS
HREERERR BERGRAMBREREE ILE
TAREEWA-

15. FA{IT®IE

2021 2020
& TEITEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHET
Prepayment for acquisition of: WL T IEB 2 FA{IRUIA !
— Equipment (Note) — %M (sh) 263,810 213,085
— Software — 8 14,247 =
278,057 213,085

Note:

Since from last fiscal year till 31 March 2021, the Group, as purchaser, entered into a series
of equipment purchase agreements with independent providers. Pursuant to which the
Group agreed to acquire contact lens production line in the PRC at total considerations of
USD37,134,000 and RMB42,601,000 (together equivalent to approximately HK$357,200,000).
The Group has paid USD26,594,000 and RMB33,471,000 (together equivalent to approximately
HK$263,810,000) during the year ended 31 March 2021 and the remaining of approximately
HK$93,390,000 will be payable upon the completion of installation of equipment.
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sR e MR R MIEE

31 March2021 —E2-_—F=H=+—H

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. REIE AT ZH=
2021 2020
e —ETEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Cost of interest in associates REZE QB 2R Z A 56,648 56,648

Share of post-acquisition loss and other FE(L BB BB R E 2 E A

comprehensive income (56,648) (56,648)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, Fastmind Investments Limited and Acme  EZE

“E-RFE-RA=+—HLEE FERSE

Day Limited (“Mining Group”) made a loss due to (a) pre-operating loss: the Mining AR AT RERAER AT (REER)) 155
Group incurred expenses for preparing for commercial operations which will start 8> B (a) & ERTE 1R | RBEEMEB T ER

after successful completion of the exploration and evaluation stages: and (b) IhSEAlBE IR RIZIRMEER B RRIAE
impairment loss on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, amounting
to approximately HK$24,236,000, mainly due to decrease in metals market prices by
comparing to previous year. Interests in associates was fully impaired as at 31 March

EEEEEZEEL
2R ROEEZHRBBEEFEEBHIHER
THRERZETLEERYFE BERREZRHE

E5184924,236,0008 L - M _E—HF=B=+—

2015 and no further share of loss of the associates is recognised by the Group in both B> IREE AT 2 HEH O REURE > AL KAEH
AR T —FERCECEENEE D HBEL

2021 and 2020 accordingly.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group had interests in the following associates

through a non-wholly owned subsidiary:

BERAT ZER-

BT —ERITETTZFZRA=+—RH &

HEE—FEIFEENBATEAUTHERTN

1w
Effective
equity interest
Place of Issued and attributable to
incorporation/ fully paid up the Company
establishment/ share capital/ as at 31 March
Name of associates operation registered capital 2021and 2020 Principal activities Legal form
ARAR
TR
“BTEF
SRR B BETREYARE =A=+-H
NGk =i B/ GMER BEERRAEE FEER EELR
Fastmind Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 27%  Investment holding of Private limited liability company
HRREERAR S 100 7T mining operation MABRAR
RREB 2 REER
Acme Day Limited Hong Kong HK$100 27%  Investment holding of Private limited liability company
ERERAE B8 100875 mining operation HABRRAT

BREBZREZR

During the year, the Group’s shareholding in Fastmind Investments Limited and FR > ZEBRIFEREER AT RERERA
Acme Day Limited had been pledged for a bank loan borrowed by Mining Group’s BIFTiT 2 RIECEARBEERENB AT 2 —EIR

£ £

subsidiary company. TERZEH
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES

17. BIRE®H

2021 2020
T T FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loan receivables B E= 139,843 130,876
Interest receivables EWF B 7,278 6,782
147,121 137,658
Less: Loss allowance (note(b)) B s REHE (IEE(D)

Stage 1 — 4R (35) (131)
Stage 2 4R - -
Stage 3 = (129,454) (64,357)
Carrying amount of loan receivables ENEEREE 17,632 73,170
Current portion included under current assets FFARBIE E 2 BVERER Y (17,632) (31,470)

Amounts due after one year included under FFAJEREEE —FREIHRIA
non-current assets - 41,700

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, all loan receivables were secured by collaterals.

The customers are obliged to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in
relevant contracts. Interest rates are offered based on the assessment of a number of
factors including the borrowers™ creditworthiness and repayment ability, collaterals
as well as the general economic trends. The Group’s loan principals charged interests
at contract rate ranging from approximately 6% to 15% (2020: 6% to 15%) per
annum.

The Group’s management considers that the fair values of loan receivables are not
materially different from their carrying amounts.

(@) Ageing analysis
Ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the loan drawdown date before loss
allowance, at the end of reporting period is as follows:

B —FRIFIERF-HA=+—HF&E
P B R LUE R iR

ERARBHEBENEINNEREERRERIE
MEDREHSBRENTEHETS  8FEETA
HNEEREREN VIEHRREREEBS &
SENERASEREFENFHO%EY (CTEZE
F D 6%E15%) AT EWEF E o

FEEEEERS BRERNAAERERE
BUEERER-

(a) BRESDHR
RE|BEHR ERGREFNNERRIRE ZE
WERZERE DM

2021 2020
—B_—F —EBCEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Over 1 year BiE—F 147,121 137,658
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31 March2021 —E2-_—F=H=+—H

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) Movement in impairment losses
Loss allowance for loan receivables during the year was recognised as follows:

RUWER @
(b) RERSIEEE)
FREWEMHEBIREERRNT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
—ik & =4
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
TEEE EEE
BB RER
12{@ B faH8 2 HATERA 2 HATEHA
88518 58518 58518 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2019 R-_B—h&EMA—H 211 6,825 - 7,036
Transfer to lifetime ECL credit-impaired BEEEEFEEREN
2 HATREAE S8 - (6,825) 6,825 -
Impairment loss charged to profit or loss RiBmPINBRIRESE (70) = 58,297 58,227
Exchange adjustments ERRE (10) - (765) (775)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 A_EERE-B=1+—H&K
“ETEFMA—H 131 - 64,357 64,488
Impairment loss charged to profit or loss KB PINRRI R ERE (101) = 57,498 57,397
Exchange adjustments E Rz 5 = 7,599 7,604
At 31 March 2021 RIBZ—H=A=+—H 35 - 129,454 129,489

For the year ended 31 March 2021, an increase of loss allowance of approximately
HK$57,397,000 (2020: HK$58,227,000) was charged to profit or loss as an
impairment.

Loan receivables bear no credit term. The Group’s formal credit policy in place is to
monitor the Group’s exposure to credit risk through regular reviews of receivables
and follow-up actions taken on overdue accounts. Credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group recognised
impairment loss based on the accounting policy stated in note 4.

BHE_ZS_—F=HB=+—HIFE BEEH
B IN4957,397,00078 7T (— & —F 4 © 58,227,00078
7o) RBEE A REIN bR

BRERETAERAR - ~EEEFEEXER
KR BB TENEERUERIE T T8 AR B R
RETHEEAEBNEERRMO - AEEY
PREER—EERABENTRETERNMG -2
PEMSsE4PT I & SHECR > AR B R ERE °
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31 March 2021 —&E_—F=F=+—H
18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18. BEMIBEEE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and movements thereon MU FARAEE KIBEFEECHEDEEIELERIE
during the current and prior years: BEMNRERES .
Profit sharing
from land
development
LAT expenditure Others Total
TR
]
THIEETR ikl ad s Hih 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET FHERT
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(B5E() (T 5E(0))
At 1 April 2019 RIZ—-hEMA—H 5,803 33,159 1,922 40,884
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A (0kRB) Ba@ 5,804 (11,618) (1,855) (7,669)
Exchange adjustments T (319) (1,479) (67) (1,865)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RIZIZF=-B=+—Hk
_EZFWA—H 11,288 20,062 = 31,350
Credited to profit or loss ST AT 1,437 3,277 = 4,714
Exchange adjustments R R 897 1,631 = 2,528
At 31 March 2021 A _E_—F=A=+—H 13,622 24,970 - 38,592
Notes: M5k -

Balance represents taxable temporary difference arising from provision of LAT.

Starting from 2010, HIMNEFEEEEZEEBMBIRAE] (Liuzhou Zhenghe Huagui
Real Estate Group Company Limited®, “Liuzhou Zhenghe”) has been engaged in land
development project and in previous years before Liuzhou Zhenghe was acquired
by the Group, 4 parcels of land developed by Liuzhou Zhenghe were put on public
auction and acquired by Liuzhou Zhenghe itself for property development purpose.
Liuzhou Zhenghe shared the related profit with join developer and paid tax on the
shared profit. On the Group’s consolidation, this shared profit element was included in
properties held for sale and eliminated. The related tax paid on this shared profit was
treated as deferred tax assets and will be released when the related properties are sold.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s deferred tax assets arising from profit sharing of the
primary land development project amounting to approximately HK$24,970,000 (2020:
HK$20,062,000).

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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[ U BB A0 LE RO A R > MDY IE A BR B2 M9 U iR &
AR ABIIRE > AR EM A S RS EY 253
R o N IE A 2Bt & BR 2 7 o AR ARRA R T
WD RENZAMRIE R AEB RS ARE
Jttﬁmz;ﬁuﬁm%ﬂ\’ EY % BT LUK o wilE

DREENZAZABEREBEREAELERES
E BRI EE LRGN _ 2 _—F=
B=+—H x&EBz— KT MBEHEEEND
ARESE Z B IEE E 4 7324,970,0008 T (ZF
T E|AE 120,062,000 7T) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MR R MIEE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET TFHET
Completed properties held for sale EENTEYE 1,340,353 1,035,763
Properties under development for sale FEHEZEPYZE 636,366 559,502
1,976,719 1,595,265
Carrying amount of properties under development for ~ FBEIER 2 FIEHELXRBPYIFE 2
sale expected to be completed: BREE -
— within one year ——&R 636,366 559,502

As at 31 March 2021, certain properties held for sale with carrying amount of
approximately HK$146,246,000 (2020: HK$626,787,000) were pledged to secure
certain borrowings granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, there is no impairment loss
recognised as the net realisable value is higher than carrying amount.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

WZZEZZ—F=ZA=Z=+—H REEY
146,246,000/ 7T (ZZEZZ4F | 626,787,00087T) Z
ETHEMECSTRT FAXEERNEETE
MR

BE S —ER_ETHFE-A=+—HIHEF
JERNSEIF ‘ﬂﬁlﬂémﬁ"ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Ml E AR SR RE
518 o

FEUL B 2 ARIA F H {th FE UL AR IR

2021 2020
kbt S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables FEW E 5 BR1E 1,387 4310
Less: Loss allowance B ESIEEE (82) (206)
1,305 4,104

Other receivables and prepayments: HuhEURERIB R FA{I=IE
Other deposits Hihize 7,365 1,079
Prepayments for construction work BETREZFANRIE - 22,065
Other tax prepayment HhRISTAI IE 5,993 12,210
Other receivables HihpEUREIRIE 6,856 12,977
Other prepayments HhiamIE 3,300 4,234
24,819 56,669
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31 March2021 ZE=-—F=B=+—H

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables for property sales, debts are due on the dates of delivery of
properties but settlements are made by agreements on time allowed for collections.
The Group’s formal credit policy in place is to monitor the Group’s exposure to credit
risk through regular reviews of receivables and follow-up actions taken on overdue
accounts. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. The Group and the Company recognised impairment loss based on
the accounting policy stated in note 4.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables after loss allowance of the Group, presented
based on the date of delivery of properties or goods to the customers, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

. BREZRERHEMEUARTE @
¢@¥§¢JE BHEZBWEZRERYEINES
ZUER > BRE DR MEEE I P BB el
FAEEEHEEXNEAER BREHREERIK
IRIRI B AR B SRR ETE R E AR E V(S
EREMO - AEBERHMARR—EERYE
R R EITE AT - BN W4 & 5T R
KEBRA QB RERE

RESHR AEEGEREFRRZBKEZRE

ZIRE DI BRERXMMENEMEER) 27
mr

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFHET

91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,305 1,690
181 days to one year 181E—4F - 2,414
1,305 4,104

Movement in loss allowance of trade and other receivables of the Group during the

year are as follows:

BEEHWT

FRAERRWEZRBEREMBWREZ BE

2021 2020

—E-—% BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FHET

At 1 April RHB—H 2,045 232
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables ENE ZERB R HEWRIEZ

BIERE 78 1,870

Reversal of impairment loss previously recognised BB RSB RERE (771) 33)

Exchange adjustments fE AT (6) (24)

At 31 March R=B=+—H 1,346 2,045

The balances of other deposits and other receivables are not past due. The Group’s
management considers that the credit risk associated with these receivables is
minimal but a general provision for impairment loss is provided for as in the
aforesaid.
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31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

21. FACTORING RECEIVABLES

21. FRURIERRIA

2021 2020
=% - Y.
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Factoring receivables e RIETRIE 69,484 124,479
Interest receivables FEUF B 2,495 4370
71,979 128,849

Less: Loss allowance (note (b)) B BB REHE (UEE(D)
Stage 1 —#R - -
Stage 2 R - -
Stage 3 =% (71,979) (128,849)

Current portion included under current assets

STAREN B E Z BIHRER

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, all factoring receivables were secured by accounts
receivable of the debtors with interest rate of 6.5% (2020: 6.5%). The Group has
recourse right on the debts in the event of default. However, the collaterals are not

permitted to sell or re-pledge by the Group.

(@) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis of factoring receivables based on the loan drawdown date and

before loss allowance at the end of reporting period is as follows:

RIE_—ER-_ZE-_FEF=RB=+—H &
FEWRIBFRIE S U FE R E TS A BRRVEIR I8 > £ 7
A% (CTTE 1 6.5%) oWHIREL K&
EHESEEERE - R EIRR A EHEE
EHESNEMIKTF

(a) BRESDHF
R|ERR ENERRENARBEEBRZE
WRIEBRIBZ BRECDATWT :

2021 2020
—E—F ZEIERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Over one year tBiE—F 71,979 128,849
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31 March 2021 —E_-_—F=H=+—H

21. FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BRFIERIE @)
(b)) Movement in impairment losses (b) R{ERSIEEE
Loss allowance for factoring receivables during the year was recognised as follows: FREKFRERIEZ BIERERDUT !
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
— & ot =%
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

TEEE BEE

HER HAER

12ERTEH  2HRE  ZHES
FEER FEGE (FE6R wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET

At 1 April 2019 ﬁ(‘: Z—hFHA—H 28 = 96,446 96,474
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment RiBm PR
loss charged to profit or loss (R{E#D) REHE 27) = 36,996 36,969
Exchange adjustments b 2SR EE ) = (4,593) (4,594)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R_E-EF=/F=+—HK
—_E_ZFMA—H - - 128,849 128,849
Derecognised ”\JJ:EE - - (63,110) (63,110)
Exchange adjustments & uﬁ?é = - 6,240 6,240
At 31 March 2021 B —F=ZA=+—H = = 71,979 71,979

Factoring receivables bear no credit term. The Group’s formal credit policy in placeis ~ FEWRIBTIBEF S B - AEEDHITER

to monitor the Group’s exposure to credit risk through regular reviews of receivables {5 FEEER » B 418 T B = E R UERTE W #t A1 HAER B

and follow-up actions taken on overdue accounts. Credit evaluations are performed — FREVIREITHISLIEAEBNEERAKH Z'r‘%

on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group recognised EHFFEER—EERYUENTRETER

impairment loss based on the accounting policy stated in note 4. o BB SH4FR 2L F 5K » A& EE%@HTEE?
o
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31 March 2021 —&_——

22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Restricted bank deposits

Restricted bank deposits amounting to approximately HK$351,000 as at 31 March
2021 (2020: HK$345,000) mainly represent the proceeds from pre-sale of properties
with the restriction of use for settlement of construction costs for relevant property
project, which will be released upon the completion of the relevant project.

The Group’s restricted bank deposits carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.3% to 0.35% per annum as at 31 March 2021 (2020: 0.3% to 0.35% per
annum).

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2021, bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits which carry variable interest rates ranging from 0.01% to
2.20% (2020: 0.01% to 2.09%) per annum with an original maturity of three months
or less.

At the end of the reporting period, included in the bank balances and cash are

22. ZRFIERIT
ZIRBIRITER
RIEZ—F=A=+—8 > ZRHERTERY
351,0005 70 (T = Z4F : 345,000/ 7T) » T 2578
EVMENFBRIE REARZ I ERYEIEE
WEBEMZA > RN ERMIER L TEMARK-

FRROTEERRE

A TE - —F=-B=+—H ' AEEZRHIRIT
FRRNATF03%ZE035% (CE-ZFF  FHENF
03%ZE0.35%) = IBITHIREF| Rt E o

RITHEERIRE

RIS —F=ZR=+—R RTEFKIEEE
EAREEFMFEEZREMRERHHA=EAN
MU 3B FEMENF0.01%E220% (Z2EZE
1 0.01%%E2.09%) 518 2 FRHARITEM

RBEEHR BOTEFERREEETIUZER

following amount denominated in currency other than the functional currency of BEEZIHAES MU S HEZ FUE ©
the respective group entity:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
HKD I 148,536 196,511
United Stated Dollars (‘USD”) =7t (M3=T)) 403,007 409,958
Euro (“EUR") Bt (TR Ty) 9,879 7,504
561,422 613,973
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31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EHEZRBEREMEIIRIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EmomE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables (Note (a)) FETE 8RB (FI5E(@)) 1,870 417
Accrued construction cost to contractors R A SR EHEEM A 376,495 197,408
Interest payables EAFIE 91,698 73,178
Amounts due to third parties NS =HHE 10 745
Other payables (Note (b)) HAFE(TERIE (HI5E(Db)) 122,492 68,957
Other tax payables HENRIE 121,596 107,994
714,161 448,699

Notes:

(@)

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, presented based on
the date of materials received, at the end of the reporting period:

PI5E

(@)

REIREHAR > BN ESWEME B2 A E BN
BERBEZREDTEIMT ¢

2021 2020

=2=—4F —EEHE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

0 to 90 days 0Z£90H 363 M7
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,507 -
1,870 417
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During the year, IBM (China) Co., Ltd (“IBM China”), a company who provides computer
software engineering services to the Group to develop the platform for Next Generation
Settlement Network (“NGSN”) in international business settlement segment, filed
an arbitral claim against a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group for payment of
outstanding service fees of USD2,983,000 (approximately HK$22,619,000) plus interest
due to late payments and related legal fee. The disputes was caused by disagreement of
acceptance of works between IBM (China) and the Group over the phase completion on
NGSN platform.

Having reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received, the
directors of the Company are of the view that the litigations have no significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and its operating result for the year ended 31 March
2021 as all the above payable amounts have already been recorded in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 March 2021. Up to the date of this report, the litigation is
still in progress.
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31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

24. BORROWINGS

24. B

2021 2020
=% - Y.
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FHEx
Bank borrowings, secured (note (a)) BIERIRETER (H5EQ) 198,180 136,471
Other borrowings, secured (note (a)) BIERFEMER H:EQ) 139,118 476,302
Other borrowings, unsecured (note (b)) IR EAMER (b)) 454,227 7,703
791,525 620,476
Carrying amount of borrowings repayable: BB REENERREE !

Within one year —FRN 636,369 546,412
More than one year, but not exceeding two years BE—F BRrEBEWE 61,098 1,166
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BEmE BrBBRE 94,058 72,898
791,525 620,476
Less: amounts shown under current liabilities B RBIBRE TN FIE (636,369) (546,412)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ERBERBIE NIRZIIE 155,156 74,064

All borrowings were denominated in RMB during both years. PREEER FIEEBFHEUAREEHE
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24. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s fixed-rate borrowings are as

24.

& (@

ERASEREBEEMREBRZBERMNEZEEN

follows: T s
2021 2020
- —g-Es
Effective interest rates B RF= 3% — 18% 5% — 18%
Notes: 5T

(@) The followings show the carrying amounts of assets pledged to secure the bank and

other borrowings provided to the Group:

RAEEBMZ BT RAMERFERZBBFEE
POSREEHIIMT

Carrying amounts of assets pledged for

FTFFIRE BRI E ERIRE (A

Bank Other
borrowings borrowings Total
IRITIER HAth &R st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET

(note (i)

At 31 March 2021 RZE_—H=ZHA=+—H (P =EG))
Property, plant and equipment (note 13) W BB RS (HiE3) 179,465 68,800 248,265
Properties held for sale (note 19) HFEWE (H:19) 146,246 - 146,246
325,711 68,800 394,511

Carrying amounts of assets pledged for
FTYIERBIEREENREE

Bank Other
borrowings borrowings Total
RITIER HAt g3 wet
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET

(note (i),(ii)

At 31 March 2020 RIZE-_ZE=ZA=+—H (BFE() ~ (i)
Property, plant and equipment (note 13) W BB R (MiE13) 92,833 41,707 134,540
Properties held for sale (note 19) HEWE (H:19) = 626,787 626,787
92,833 668,494 761,327

(i) As at 31 March 2021, hotel rooms of HK$68,800,000 (2020: HK$41,707,000) are
pledged as security for one of the Group’s other borrowings of HK$139,118,000 (2020:

HK$129,642,000) at a fixed rate of 6.5% per annum.

(ii) As at 31 March 2020, property held for sale of HK$626,787,000 are pledged as security
for one of the Group’s other borrowings of HK$346,660,000 at a fixed rate of 18% per

annum.
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31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

24. BORROWINGS (Continued) 24. &R @)

Notes: (Continued) MisE (8

(b)  Asat 31 March 2021, the Group’s unsecured other borrowings included: b) MRIE_—F=B=+—H &EEEEHFEM
fERREIE -

i) Unsecured borrowings of HK$8,266,000 (2020: HK$7,703,000) provided by 0] E%I%_Ekfﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%f% 266,000
independent third parties with interest at a fixed rate of 18% per annum; B (T2 TEE 1 7,703,000087T) ° EEE

2 2518%;

(i) Unsecured borrowings of HK$23,944,000 (2020:nil) provided by a related party of (i) HARBWEAEIFZERES ABREA
non-controlling owner of the Company’s subsidiary with interest at a fixed rate TR HEEIEFE 23,944,008 7T (T
of 3% per annum; and TR ) BEENERN; &

(i) Unsecured borrowings of HK$422,017,000 (2020:nil) provided by & 75 [EFIE iy AMAEALANBXEEESRELDT WMNIE
HEMARAT (Guangxi Zhenghe Industrial Co., Ltd*), the former related MZa BB AL) RENEEFER
party of Liuzhou Zhenghe with interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum. 422,017,00087c (CE-ZF 8 EEF

RZEA12%0
*  The English name is for identification purpose only
25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 25. FAERALIRE
(a) Name and relationship of related parties (a) FEABALTZRTBRER
Name Relationship with the Company
Sy L0 /N= L E
Long Grand Limited Ultimate holding company
EBERAE RALER AT
Liuzhou Huagui Property Development Co., Ltd Non-controlling owner of the Liuzhou Zhenghe

(“Liuzhou Huagui”)

NEEEMEREARAT (TNELE) W IEAM Z JFERRHER A

Unicon Optical Co., Limited (“Taiwan Unicon”) Non-controlling owner of Hong Kong Unicon Optical Co., Limited

BIREAZRHEBRAT (T6EEIME) BERBMEARBRADZIFEREEA
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31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(b) Amounts due to non-controlling interests

25. FAEEANLIREE @
(b) FE(IIEIERHIEmRIA

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free FEE S 1HR IR B E R
and repayable on demand BT EREE
Liuzhou Huagui PN EE A 58,737 53,949
Non-trade related, unsecured, interest bearing FEE SIHR I 5T E R
and repayable on demand BIZEREE
Taiwan Unicon (note) aEEMmE () 23,960 22,328
82,697 76,277
Note: The amount subject to floating rate interest per annum. MisE | ZARIBRFE TN TR
=144 e pRLN =] = 2k
() Amount due to ultimate holding company (0 ERREERATZMIA
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
Non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free FEE SHHR IR R E K
and repayable on demand BEIZEREE
Long Grand Limited RBERAR 1,666 1,675

194

International Business Settlement Holdings Limited El@E2EEZERARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sRE TS ERERMIGE

31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d) Related parties transactions

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other member of key management of the
Company during the year were as follows:

25. FREEANLIREE (&

(d) FABALRS

TEEEARZHH
FAREERTIBEEABZHMMEERNZH
BT :

2021 2020

—E-—= kSt 75

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Short-term benefits G ERREA 5,260 5,893
Retirement benefit scheme contribution BIREFIFTEHRR 53 68
5,313 5,961

The remuneration of key management is determined having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Considerations in respect of properties sold are received in accordance with the
terms of the related sales and purchase agreements, certain portion are received on
or before the date of delivery of the properties to customers which is recorded as
contract liabilities.

TEBEABZHMD2EEINA LT ZER KT
GEBEE-

26. SHNREE
EEMEZABREBBBEE M Z RRUER
ETHBORBELZMWERRHZAIUE A
RIFENEaR-

2021 2020
T % T FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Contract liabilities arising from property MERBEFEELEZSNERE
development business 891,651 807,890
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 6. aNEaR®
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2020 ATETEFNE—H 807,890
Revenue recognised for the balances included in the contract Mt AFEF SN EE 2 EERESIB A
liabilities at the beginning of the year (75,733)
Increase for the cash received for the balances where revenue is  FLE P9 18 R HESB U A 2 &5 fF B W ER B ER = 18 10
not yet recognised during the year 99,260
Exchange adjustments bE A% 60,234
At 31 March 2021 RW_B_—F=B=+—H 891,651

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the amount of sales deposits received expected tobe R _E_—F K _ZFE_ZTF=-H=+—H B

recognised as revenue after one year is nil. BN —FREBANANEREBEHERERE
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&E
2021 2020
—E-—& —g-%s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
At 1 April REE—H 10,447 6,424
Additions NE 5,037 8,677
Interest expense A ERS 999 503
Lease payments HEN® (6,542) (5,092)
Exchange adjustments bE BT 520 (65)
At 31 March R=B=+—H 10,461 10,447
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRBAEMRZFHBEROT -
Minimum Future Present value
lease interest of lease
payments expenses liabilities
RIEMEMNTR KERAUSHE HEEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31 March 2021 RZE-_—-%=A=+—H THT THT FERT
Within one year —FR 7,062 (790) 6,272
After one year but within two years —FBEMENRN 4,233 (222) 4,011
After two years but within five years MEBRBHRER 182 4) 178
11,477 (1,016) 10,461
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. HEEBE®
Minimum Future Present
lease interest value of lease
payments expenses liabilities
REEEMNR REMNEHRE:T HEEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2020 R_E-RF=R=+—H TAT TET TAT
Within one year —ERN 5,186 (782) 4,404
After one year but within two years —FREMERN 3,654 (543) 3111
After two years but within five years MEREBHRER 3,092 (160) 2,932
11,932 (1,485) 10,447
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. &
Number of
shares Amount
P EE ok
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each SREE001E T EER
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 A ZE—NFNA—B-
“ETEF-A=1+—HK
I S 498,000,000,000 498,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares FRE{E0.00178 T2
of HK$0.001 each BREEOTIRRELR
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 A ZE-NFMA—H-
“EEFE-A=+—HK
“E-—F=ZRA=+—H 2,000,000,000 2,000
500,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each SREE0.0018 T BER
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 S ZE—NFMA—A-
—ECEF-A=+—HK
BT -F=ZHB=+—H 20,319,072,320 20,319
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29. CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares and share premium of the then holding company and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the group reorganisation on 25
May 1993, together with the amounts transferred from share capital and share
premium account as a result of the capital reduction taken place in August 2001, less
dividends paid, amounts utilised on redemption of shares and amount eliminated
against accumulated losses.

30. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

29. BERZR
AEETEABBASRKIERATZRHEMER
B RBEAATERR—AA=EREA_+EH
EESEMRTROZEEZZE BEEER
=)\ BHIRRAHB AR RS BEREE
2RI B IR AT AR B ~ BE B AR 15 FT B SR TE Bl
SR ESI8 Y HIE

30. RERFAERMEE
MEEHELEZBEHIR:

Amount
Amounts due to
due to ultimate
Interest non-controlling holding Amount due to Lease
Borrowings payables interests company third parties liabilities
FET R4%
FEfT3RER) ERAT FEft
fam FEfIHIS REmE RE B=HRE HERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET TET THT TET TET FET
At 1 April 2020 RIZZZENA—H 620,476 73,178 76,277 1,675 745 10,447
Changes from cash flows: RenEgE) .
New borrowings raised HEERT 73,198 = = = = =
Interest paid BAFIE - (17912) - - - (999)
Payment of principal portion of SREEEEAEEHD
the lease liabilities - - - - - (5,543)
Advance B3R - - 804 = = =
Repayments B (34,582) = = 9 (752) =
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEEREHE 2 ZEHE%E 38,616 (17912) 804 9 (752) (6,542)
Interest incurred FEsHHI & = 79,619 = = = 999
Additions RE - - - - - 5,037
Transferred from other payables B E e iR 32,324 = = = = =
Transferred from interest payables BE(IH S8 49,879 (49,879) = = = =
Exchange adjustments R 50,230 6,692 5,616 - 17 520
At 31 March 2021 RZBZ-F=A=1+-H 791,525 91,698 82,697 1,666 10 10,461
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30. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (Continued)

F=A=1+—H

30. IFERERERMETE @

MEESEEZAREHR: @

Amount
Amounts due to
due to ultimate
Interest non-controlling holding Amount due to Lease
Borrowings payables interests company third parties liahilities
FEfT R A&
DL ERAT FEfT
fam FEFIR fEmME ME B=HRE HEaRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TAT FTAT TAT FAT
At 31 March 2019, R ZE-NE=A=1—
as previously reported (Qﬂf‘ﬁﬁuﬁﬁfiﬁ) 605,917 2,635 59,511 1,775 782 =
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16 ?ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁkiﬁiﬁﬁu
1657 FER 2 - - - - = 6,424
At 1 April 2019, represented RZZ—hEMA—H
(EEMET) 605,917 2,635 59,511 1,775 782 6,424
Changes from cash flows: ReEnsgs .
New borrowings raised HEERER 74,064 - - - - -
Interest paid BAFE = (17 461) = = = (503)
Payment of principal portion of ?ZTTHHEEEZ'K%%B%
the lease liabilities - - - - - (4,589)
Advance B3 - - 22,500 - - -
Repayments BT (30,528) = = (100) = =
Total changes from financing cash flows BEIR & &2 BF4E5E 43536 (17,461) 22,500 (100) = (5,092)
Interest incurred FEEHH 8 = 95,257 = = = 503
Additions RE - - - - - 8,677
Exchange adjustments [ERAE (28,977) (7,253) (5,734) - (37) (65)
At 31 March 2020 AZEE
=ZA=+-H 620476 73178 76,277 1,675 745 10447
31. COMMITMENTS 31. KIE
2021 2020
—g-—F TEIERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Commitments contracted for: BEETAYRIE
— construction for properties held for sale —BEFEEYE - 157,283
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment — WL BBYZE IR e sk 93,390 213,788
93,390 371,071
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

32. {AEE

2021 2020
B & TEITHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted i1 FAREEYES H 2 IZBmE
to purchasers of the Group’s properties EIRITIRE 2 ER 489,776 1,074,002

Note:

The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the Group’s properties.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together with
accrued interests thereon and any penalty owed by the defaulted purchaser to banks, the
Group is then entitled to take over the legal title of the related properties. The guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends after the buyer
obtained the individual property ownership certificate.

The Group’s management, with its assessment of the current and outlook of the market,
perceives that the possibility of default in mortgage loans by home buyers is remote and, in
the event of default, the liabilities caused to the Group will be minimal as the loss will be
adequately mitigated by the proceeds recovered from the sales of the repossessed properties.
Accordingly, no provision is made in the accounts for the guarantees.

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the general meeting, the Company announced a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive to the
employee or other individuals of the Group (the “Participants”) and the Scheme will
be expired on 4 September 2024. Under the Scheme, the Directors is authorised to
grant options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to the Participants the Directors
may determine in its absolute discretion, has made valuable contribution to the
Group, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The maximum number of shares which may be issuable under the Scheme cannot
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each eligible Participants
(including both exercised and outstanding options under the Scheme), within
12-month period cannot exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the proposed date on which the option is being granted unless prior shareholders
approval obtained.
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33. HBRRHESTE

A_E-—MEABRR BEAATRERKRE
AR BB EEABR  AADSH—IEER
REEHE) (T5H21) > AR EBENES REMEA
(rBEE)) BAUEE S BBR -2 - MEAS
A E o IR B BRI RRE O ER R
BTzREAESI2RNEET BHAEE
EHEABSBNSEESHERE LRERA

BIRRAR ©
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BB EITIRAN Z30%
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days from the date
the offer together with the payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 per option by
the grantee.

The exercisable period of the option is determinable by the Directors at their
discretion. The expiry date of the option may be determined by the Directors which
shall not be later than the last day of the ten year period from the grant date.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Directors and shall be at least the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the grant date; (b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the grant date; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

No option has been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under control of a trustee. The Group
contributes lower of 5% of relevant payroll costs or HK$1,500 per month per person
to the MPF Scheme, which is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC Government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to
make the required contributions under the schemes.

hﬁ ﬁ%ﬁz’%% ’9775°k£ B HEAFEST308 A R A
AN T EnBREIEBTZRERE

AR AT 8P R A IB AR T o P AR 2
MEEEE BIEAGEEH QPR EEE
B%—He

THEEHESEERFAEERUTRSE (@)
REBMRPISAREEMBZROETE;
bR EEFEHHAA A EE XA IS HRE
Bk 2 FHERMIRHE; ROERBRMDEE-

BRI BRIt R o

34 R REF s R
KEBRFAESECEREER AT ATE

518 (MaBRstEl)) - RBEFAEZEERE
%lzﬁfé PR MHZEAEEZESR
BoREBIZARMBERAZ%TEAETF1,500
BZzBEEARESHEELEHE mEETR
BIEHREEREEZ MR

FEEZTEEESTEBARIIZEKEERR
IRREF 58I Z a8 - PRI B A B AR R KRR
StEfFHGFEE TAD L ZHA (FRRHERE
MzEE RESTEFHREHRRSETEREHIE
Hstg|zE—5Fe
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes borrowings
as disclosed in note 24, offset by bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. In managing
the Group’s capital structure, the management will also monitor the utilisation of
bank and other borrowings to ensure compliance with financial covenants.

. EZTRAMER

AEMEBEES UREAEERN S BREAE
HUFBECE ARG E AR ABEREES
BT ERET THMNARESREABR 4
£ MEBREESIRMI RS BEFER o

FEBEAERORERET TR (HPEEWE
244X T 2 MER WIRTT T RIS UKkER
AHEANEEED (BREHTRERER 5
EEAEEZENEE BEEETREERTK
H e 2 R IBR AR IRE TR 32k -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET TFAT

Borrowings LR 791,525 620,476

Bank balances and cash IRTTEEREE (632,707) (710,845)

Net borrowings/(cash) B8/ (R&) 35 158,818 (90,369)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KATEE AEEER 774,334 896,495
Net debts to equity FEHER 20.51% N/A 78 FB

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the new shares issues and share buy-back as well
as the issuance of new debt.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. £RITAH
(a) Categories of financial instruments () ERTEIER
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets EMEE
Assets measured at amortised cost/loans and receivables & IHAtENEE B K
(including bank balances and cash) FEWRIE (BIEIR1THEE MIRE) 670,992 802,520
Financial liabilities E =Nl
Liabilities measured at amortised cost BBRIER At ENEE 966,107 778,994
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) E=REABEEBRERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include factoring receivables, loan AHEEZFTELERT EOIEERRENRIE  FEI
receivables, trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash, restricted bank B FEWEB ZEEBEREMEWIEIE \IR1T6ET
deposits, trade and other payables, lease liabilities, amount due to non-controlling  K&IR~ SIRHIIRITEN BN E ZRIB R Hfth

interests, amount due to an ultimate holding company and borrowings. Details of ~ FE{TBRIE THE & 15 « FE(TIEITHIfE %%
BRERABFELRER - ILESMT AFED

these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

=N

AR BN S EA T o
The Directors monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the operations of é% FRAE AR BREEMEEZEBEDN
the Group through internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by degree JE[& > BiER R EIRE AL FE LS EBR Z G FE R

and magnitude of risks. The risks included market risk (including currency risks and [ 5255 B\ & B FE T 5 A (15 & 1 R 8 KR F=
BoRENE S AR o T SCEHURIE
risks are set out below. The Directors manage and monitor these exposures to ensure  ZERGEZ B R -BEEEIB KB IEZL AR L

interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these ~ E[&) 5 5 R E

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. EREER LA

R EREE & R ©
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

()  Foreign currency risk management

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk in relation to HKD, EUR and
USD arising from foreign currency bank balance and cash.

The carrying amount of the Group’s material foreign currency denominated
monetary assets/liabilities and inter-group foreign currency balances at the end of
respective reporting periods are as follow:

36. ERIT A (@

(b)) THEAMBEEBERBE @

(i) SMEEEER
AEETEEBIIMNESRTEERRESFRSINEY
BT BT R ETZ NS R B o

AEBNTEINESHBEZEREE BERER
BISMBERRN SR EMARZREEDT -

2021 2020
g5 2
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Assets BE
HKD BT 148,536 196,511
EUR BRI 9,879 7,504
usD E7T 403,007 409,958

The Group currently does not enter into any derivative contracts to minimise the
currency risk exposure. However, the Directors will consider hedging significant
currency risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in HKD, EUR and USD
against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2020: 5%) increase and
decrease in the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2020: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used in directors” assessment of the possible reasonably change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes the Group’s outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items as well as inter-group foreign
currency halances and adjusts their translation at the year ended for a 5% (2020: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A negative number indicates an increase in loss
for the year where the RMB strengthens against the relevant currencies. For a 5%
weakening of the RMB against the relevant currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on loss for the year.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
()  Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

36. ERIT A (@

b) ERAKREEBERBE @
i) SMERBERE @
HREDIT ()

2021 2020
—T—F —RCEHE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT FET

HKD against RMB BTRARE (7,427) (9,826)
EUR against RMB BT R AR (494) (375)
USD against RMB ETRARE (20,150) (20,498)

(i)  Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank and
other borrowings (note 24).

As the bank balances and restricted bank deposit interest rates have limited
fluctuation over the year, management of the Group are of the opinion that the
Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is minimal. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented on bank balances and restricted bank deposits.

(iii)  Credit risk management

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECL for factoring receivables, loan receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables and other deposits as at 31 March 2021. The average expected loss rate
is derived from the gross carrying amount and loss allowance as at 31 March 2021
after taken into accounting of the collaterals, historical default rate and forward
looking information.

(i) FMEEEEE
AEEBARZTHRABERN XIRITREMBENR (5T
24) ZAAREFERE

RER ARRTEFERZRERITERIERK
HER AEREEERATERAZZHER
FMEREARBREBRE AL WARZFEREIRITHE
FRERGRITERZERED

i) EEEAREE
TERHEMAEER S —F=A=+—0
PR IBEIE PR R R S AEIE  HAth
FUEIER iR S MAS 2 SRR REHE
BEETER 5 RIER S IR NERA
EHER THERBERRER S =
B=+— B @EEEREBEEEN
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. EMTA @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (b) ERIAMEBIZFEEEREE @
(iii) EEERMEIRE (@&

(iii)  Credit risk management (Continued)

Average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FIFEHARSIRER HERRE(E R R
HK$’000 HK$’000
As at 31 March 2021 AZEZ—H=A=+—H FTHET THET
Factoring receivables FEWRIZRIE 100% 71,979 71,979
Loan receivables FEWER 5.89% — 88% 147,121 129,489
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RB 6% 1,387 82
Other receivables HthEERIE 10.5% 7,659 803
Other deposits Hihigs 5.9% 7,826 461
235,972 202,814

Average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR EEX AREREE BEkRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZEF=RA=+—H TERT FERT
Factoring receivables fEWRIETRIE 100% 128,849 128,849
Loan receivables P E R 2.82% — 48.4% 137,658 64,468
Trade receivables FEU B FBRTE 3% — 6% 4310 206
Other receivables HAhEWEIRIE 12% 14,747 1,770
Other deposits Hitigs 6% 1,148 69
286,712 195,382
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(iii)  Credit risk management (Continued)

The changes of the ECL rate is mainly taken the following factors into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly subsequently:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the marco-economic
environment;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligation;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse changes in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligation.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the factoring receivables, loan
receivables and trade and other receivables. Management has performed in-
depth due diligence reviews of the financial background and creditability of the
counterparties who owe debts to the Group.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise bank balances
and cash and restricted bank deposits, arises from possible default of the
counterparty is low. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has placed these
deposits with banks and financial institutions of high credit.

Management has a formal credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored through regular reviews of receivables and follow-up enquires on
overdue accounts. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's different customer bases.

36. £ERIT A (®

(b)) ETHEAMRSTEBERBE @

(iii) EEERMEIRE (@&
ENGEEARETREBEEEER  BRES

BREXEHTEEELUTHEE

- ZREEEREZERIFEHRREREL,
- EB - MBREEBR LFEANHERAR
BHRAENEFAEEGHNENES

TR

- GEHEACERRZERIBHESERLE K

- EHEANEE -CEAKMRREHERNE

HNEARFFZE EREBABERESD
FENRRE T

A& B H R 2R B B RIERIE B E M KRB
B REREMBURENEERR EEREE
HEXRFTEREBENHFHIHMTERREEE
TRABHES-

FEBHEMEREE (BEBRTEFREEZUR
RRHETER NEERARREHFHENN
FIREMRE -NBRERR  AEEERZEER

FERGEERSNIRITRER/EE-

EEBHET EANEERR IBATHEDS
FEWCERIE R i FAAR B MR E TR EIEEER
o HBERBBA—TEBEEEENFERTAE
TIERsHE

FEEUFANEAEREEEENSRERE
BREEERWEZRENGEER BARNAE
EELEESERERTARATEEFENE
BEAFEREEZE  RILBERARRENEE
BREASE—TSENEERNTRZEFE-
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31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. EMTA @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (b) ERIAMEBIZFEEEREE @
(iii) Credit risk management (Continued) (iii) EEERMEIRE (@&
Trade receivables Viie=27)35
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TERARS IR = HEREE E51E i
% HK$’000 HK$’000
As at 31 March 2021 RIEZ—H#=H=+—H T#ET T#T
3 — 6 months past due BERE6EA 6% 1,387 82
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHRRES 1B = MAREE E5 1R R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZEF=A=+—H TFHET TFHET
3 — 6 months past due AHEREER 3% 1,742 52
More than 6 months but less than 1 year #1HAB3B61E 2 B/ FM1E
past due 6% 2,568 154
4,310 206
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31 March 2021 —&_——

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(iii)  Credit risk management (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believed that no loss allowance was necessary in respect
of these balances as there had been no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Loan receivables

Collaterals are obtained in respect of the Group’s loan receivable which made up to
approximately 81% (2020: 120%) of the total loan receivables before impairment as
at 31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2021, the fair value of collaterals for the Group’s
loan receivables which are machineries, biological assets and elevator based on
their prevailing market prices or valuation by market approach amounted to
approximately HK$130,892,000 (2020: HK$162,320,000).

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to obtain loans from the Group
are subject to management review. In the event of default or failure to repay any
outstanding loan amounts by the customers, the Group will proceed with the sale
of collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the Group’s
average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to ensure the recoverability of the
outstanding loan amount. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s exposures
under unexpired loan contracts were secured by the pledged assets of the customers
as follows, at fair value or net assets value:

36. ERIT A (@

(b)) ETHEAMRSTEBERBE @
(iii) EEERMEIRE (@&

FEWE ZARIE (45)

SRIBUER T SR I (2 O FE Uit BR T B Y R e
MBRLERER-

I RREC E%

EEEEHRREZBIERERRSERERER
RSz BUTREM 2N BELER
MR EEERLEEREE  MAERNRERT

2O E EBERARAMZESEGERERN
iR o
FEWE
MAEEERERREERG GRS 2—F
—R=+—HREKRERRERLEN% (T2
TE120%) - RIEBEZ—F=F=1+—H &&E

EEE R BIE - Y E E R TR ERH
FREAMEEBRIEHTEAAHENERRAR
{B4975130,892,00058 70 (C—E —F4F : 162,320,0007
7T) °©

FEBNBERAAEREEFAERERZERY
AERZEENE - NEPEXIREEBEEMFR
BENZERESR AEERFHEERR BER
EE RN IERKT  RERTE %#%%’EHEA
50%A T > LU RIREIRE N 2 BT ER
T—ERTETEFZRA=+—H BARENR
BEFESH AEBARRIPZERGHOER
BERZIIREENT ¢

\—7

2021 2020
—E—F TFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ExT FHET

Biological assets TYEE 130,892 149,707
Machineries A - 9,819
Elevator T P& 1 = 2,794
130,892 162,320
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31 March 2021 —=_"—

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b)
(i)

Factoring receivables

Credit risk management (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has a high concentration of credit risk

as all receivables were due from six parties as at 31 March 2021. In order to minimise

the credit risk, the Group obtained guarantees from related companies of the third

parties, who agreed to provide guarantees of the factoring receivables to the Group

in case of default. The directors consider that both the third parties and its related

companies have sufficient financial capacity to repay the factoring receivables.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the collaterals under unexpired factoring contracts

are not permitted to sell or re-pledge by the Group in the event of default by the

debtors.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of loan receivables, factoring

receivables, trade and other receivables during the years is as follows:

36. RIT A @&

(b) EHEAMREEBERBER @)
(i) EEEKRER (@
JEWIRIBEIE

RIE-_—F=ZRA=+—H " ATHREGEER
B AEEREFTABWIREEIRB/NBEIKAM
AESEETNEERR A TRESERRE
FEBRF=ZDZEABRADESER FAEETE
MEER TR RERED A EFRHER-
EERABZ I REBBMARER BRAMFBFEN
EIE R RIETRIR

RIE - —FRZEFEF=-F=+—H 1R
B AR RES 7’1§%%A&,‘\9H%T\ﬁa¢$%
HENBIRPZIEFRC

BEEWER  BRFARERE - BREZRER
HMEWARTE A FEE BB HEREEFHUOT ¢

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 April 2019 ATE-NEFENE—H 103,742
Impairment losses recognised during the year KEFEEERRDBERE 97,163
Reversal of impairment loss recognised before B OIBERRRERE (130)
Exchange adjustments b R EE (5,393) 91,640
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE2EZEF=A=+—HkK
—_ZFHFMA—H 195,382
Impairment losses recognised during the year REEEHEBRERIE 57,484
Reversal of impairment loss recognised before BEBFRERI R ERE 771)
Derecognised RIEFESR (63,110)
Exchange adjustments PE R 13,829 7.432
At 31 March 2021 N ZE—F=HB=+—H 202,314
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F=A=+—H

31 March 2021 —&_——

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

(iii)  Credit risk management (Continued)

Contingent liabilities

For properties held for sale which are subject to pre-sales agreements, the Group
typically provides guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing
of mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up
to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the term of guarantee, the bank holding the
mortgage may demand the Group to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and
any accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain
the customer’s purchase deposit and sell the property to recover any amounts paid
by the Group to the bank. In this regard, the directors considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

(iv) Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of bank balances and cash deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The Group relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2021, the Group has bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$791,525,000
(Note 24) (2020: HK$620,476,000).

36. TR T A @
(b) EHEAMREEBERBER @)
(i) FEEHEREE (@

HAEE

MRBEBRROIZFENEMS > AEE—R
MR SBEYEMETREMFHZIZBEMR
ZEREIRITRMEER EREERSA/YEE
BEEZ7%  HE S REFRABREEERS
PO RRARBZRTAEZERAEREERER
ZERKREABBAESME - RZFBERT &
EEFRBEFZBERES RHEYE  DUKE
FEBRRTXNZEAREBE -RIEMS  EF
AR AEEZEERREHERLD

(iV) /}ngﬁﬁﬂmmiE

AEERSESRB I AEEGEERERE
EERARHZRITEGFRIAEKTE  UBLRE
ErEERHETRREREEMEGZEE-B
BEBZRTERZERER BNERETE
E A

AREBKRBEREARDERZEERF R
R —FE=-F=+—H> XEBZRITREME
A #A791,525,0008 7T (F5E24) (Z2EZEF .
620,476,005 7T) ©
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. RIT A @&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) (b) HFREMREEBERBEK (@&
(iv) Liquidity risk management (Continued) (ivy WEEEREER (@&
Liquidity table BB ER

TRFVNEAEBRFTESRERZBR TEHNF
HeZRNIREBEAEBNAREREESHMER
ZRFPEAPZEMBERATRRERERER

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.

Weighted On
average demand Total
interest or within 1t02 2t05 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1year years years 5 years cash flows amount
g RERS KRR E
As at 31 March 2021 RZE--£ZA=1+-H Fi9I= 1EHR 1526 2555 SENE RERE RAEfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR TR TAT THET
Non-derivative financial Liabilities: FrEemaE:
Trade and other payables BN B RERAMENERE - 79,758 - - - 79,758 79,758
Amount due to ultimate holding company B REERARNE - 1,666 - - - 1,666 1,666
Amount due to non-controlling interests IR EE - 82,697 - - - 82,697 82,697
Borrowings, fixed rate & BEEH X 10.54% 636,369 77,451 106,495 = 820315 791,525
Lease liabilties REEE 10.00% 7,062 4233 182 - 11477 10,461
807,552 81,684 106,677 - 995,913 966,107
Financial guarantee contracts: HBEREH .
Maximum amount guaranteed (Note 32) RRANEALE (1:32) 489,776 - - = 439,776 =
Weighted On
average demand Total
interest or within 1t02 2105 Over  undiscounted (arrying
rate 1 year years years 5 years cash flows amount
i3 BRERY, FTRRE
Asat 31 March 2020 RZE_FE=A=1+-H THR= TELA 122F E5F SENE e RAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEn TER TiEn TR TR
Non-derivative financial Liabilities: FTEERaE !
Trade and other payables B S RER HMERIRE = 70,119 = = = 70,119 70,119
Amount due to ultimate holding company ERAERATHE = 1675 = = = 1,675 1,675
Amount due to non-controlling interests e IEREIERTE = 76277 = = = 76277 76277
Borrowings, fixed rate a0 BEEFE 10.36% 546412 8839 2.2 = 637472 620476
Lease liabilities HEaE 10.00% 5,186 3,654 3,092 - 11,932 10,447
699,669 12493 85313 - 797475 778,994
Financial guarantee contracts: HBEREN.
Maximum amount guaranteed (Note 32) ERAEVTASE (F32) 1,074,002 = = = 1,074,002 =

The above liquidity table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES tlj’E B 8 22 5
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered into agreement with one ﬁ “EF-H=-+—BItFE ~EEHA

of the non-controlling interest, Liuzhou Huagui, to dispose of its entire interest in ~ EH— %3F?’“%JV“ (MPNZESE) BT theg > U
Property Management Group, which engaged in provision of property management UEBLHEYXEEER (HFTENSREEYES
service in PRC, at zero consideration. The disposal was completed in December IEFRFS) WEHEFE ZHEFTENR _E—N4E
2019 and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately — + — B 5ea% > AE B E M B A BRI =AY
HK$4,345,000. 4,345,00078 7T ©

The fair value of net liabilities at the date of completion of the disposal are as HPHESBEEHNERNBEBEAABUT !
follows:

HK$'000

FET
Property, plant and equipment L EN Y 22
Other receivables HpEWERTE 283
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEERRS 1,433
Other payables HhFE(JERIE (6,083)
Less: Fair value of consideration in cash B IRENENARE -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB QBN E (4,345)

An analysis of net cash outflow of bank balances and cash in respect of disposal of HREIHERBATMNIETEEZLESMNHEESRE

subsidiaries is as follows: FESMAT
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration BERE _
Less: bank balances and cash disposed B BHERTEERRE (1,433)
Net cash outflow of bank balances and cash IRITEERRENIRERHFRE (1,433)

Annual Report 2020/2021 R 21 3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

38. AT ZMHBRARK B

COMPANY

2021 2020
g5 “BITHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZKE 89,319 89,819
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB R R B 2,768 1,750
Amount due from subsidiaries NI E O E| 164,289 136,097
256,876 227,666

Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables FE X & 57 BR I8 K H fth FE UK BR 18 1,111 2,055
Bank balances and cash IRITEFERIEE 546,610 588,513
547,721 590,568
Current liabilities mENEE

Trade and other payables FET B 7 BRIE K E fth FE (S AR IE 2,174 2,519
Lease liabilities HEa®E 2,511 1,842
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET I B AR FIE 1,068 1,068
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE R AR YRR A BIFUIA 1,666 1,675
7,419 7,104
Net current assets MBEERE 540,302 583,464

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HESRE 220 —
Net assets BEEZFE 796,958 811,130

Capital and reserves B A e (5
Share capital (Note 28) B& 7R (BI5%28) 20,319 20,319
Reserves G 776,639 790,811
Total equity s 796,958 811,130

On behalf of the board of directors

Yuen Leong
==
RuT

Director

EE
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31 March2021 — &2 - —F=H=+—H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

38. AT ZMBRARRFE @

COMPANY (Continued)
Reserves B4
Capital
Share Share redemption Accumulated
(apital premium reserve losses Total
R RHEE BERELHE REE1E ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2019 RZZ2—-hEME—H 20319 9,009,799 3,781 (7,932,047) 1,101,852
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREREAIHREES
£165% - - - (384) (384)
At 1 April 2019 (represented) RZZ2—hEME—H
(REHZ25) 20319 9,009,799 3,781 (7,932,431) 1,101,468
Loss and total comprehensive income FREEREEWRALLE
for the year - - - (290,338) (290,338)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R_E_EF=F=+—H
RZZZZEMA—H 20,319 9,009,799 3,781 (8,222,769) 811,130
Loss and total comprehensive income FREERZEWRALE
for the year - - - (14172) (14,172)
At 31 March 2021 RZE_—F=B=1+—H 20,319 9,009,799 3,781 (8,236,941) 796,958
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sRa AT ERERMIGE

31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP
(@) Subsidiaries of the Company
Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

AT ZHBAE

TATZMBABFEAT

39. AEEFEMBATZHE

Place of Issued/registered
incorporation/ and paid-up Attributable equity interests
Name operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities Legal form
B3 A BE1T/ MK
Eag e B FATRRARMGRE TEREH EERTR
2021 2020
—E_-& CTEBCEF
Directly held
ERFE
Surplus Rich Investments Limited The BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Management service to Private limited liability
EBRUBE/ (ES group companies company
& RERATREMR MABRRA
BERHE
Chaoyue Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
BHEEZERERAR Hong Kong 18T REER company
&8/ B8 MABRRAA
Successtime Limited The BVI/ US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
BHRERAR Hong Kong 1E7T REZR company
EREUHE/ MABRRAR
&E
Longday International Limited The BVI/ US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
AHERERAE Hong Kong 1E7T KREER company
HEBELHE/ MABRRAR
B
IBS Investment Limited Hong Kong/ HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
B EEEEREERAT Hong Kong 10087T REER company
&8/ EE MWABRATE
LEMBRERERRAR The PRC/ RMB225,063,500 100% 100%  Finance leasing PRC wholly-foreign-
(Shanghai Jiajin Financing Lease Co. Ltd*) The PRC B #§225,063,5007T MERE owned enterprise with
FE/HE limited liability
HESNEEE
BRAH
Rising Vast Limited The BVI/ Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
EBBRAR Hong Kong 1% REER Company
HBRUEE/ MABRRAA
&
Besting Capital Limited The BVI/ US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
BEEXBRAT Hong Kong (S REER Company
HBRUEE/ MABRRAA
&
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31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP

(Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

(@) FRTZMBAE @

39 XEFFEWMELABTZHE (@)

Place of Issued/registered
incorporation/ and paid-up Attributable equity interests
Name operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities Legal form
B3 A BE1T/ MK
Eap e B FARRARMGRE TEEH EERT
2021 2020
—EC-f T ER
Indirectly held
BERE
Pride Delight Limited The BVI/ US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
HRBRAT Hong Kong ES REZR company
EBEUEE/ MWABRAT
&E
Eagle Mountain Holdings Limited The BVI/ US$100 90% 90%  Investment holding Private limited liability
EBBZERERAR Hong Kong 100%7s REER company
EBELHE/ MWABRATF
&E
B (BE) CEEEBRRAR The PRC/ RMB12,500,000 60% 60%  Consultancy service and Domestic company with
(United (Fujian) Enterprise Management The PRC AE12,500,0007T trading of goods limited liability
Company Limited*) HhE /PE BERERERE S BRERRAE
MNERMEEEXEEBRAR The PRC/ RMB200,000,000 70% 70%  Property development Domestic company with
(Liuzhou Zhenghe Huagui Real Estate The PRC AR #200,000,0007T MEEE limited liability
Group Company Limited*) HE/HE EBRNERAT
INEMEEEZEBBRA The PRC/ N/A 70% 70%  Hotel service Branch of domestic
R ERTEREE D AR The PRC TEH IR R company with limited
(Liuzhou Zhenghe Huagui Zhiye Group Co, Ltd HE/HE liahility
Wyndham Hotel branch) BAERATZ
AE
EREERERRAT The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 70% 70%  Property development Domestic company with
(Guangxi Changhua Investment Co. Ltd*) The PRC AE10,000,0007T MEERE limited liability
FE/ E BABRATE
BEREREERERAT The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 70% 70%  Property development Domestic company with
(Guang Yizheng Trading Co. Ltd*) The PRC A E#10,000,0007% MEEE limited liability
FE,/ RE BAERAT
Jiahe Investment Management Co. Limited Hong Kong/ HK$100 100% 100%  Money lending Private limited liability
MAREEERRAT Hong Kong 100 7T BE company
BB/ BE MABRRAR
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP

(Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

(@) FARFTZMBAE @

39, XEFFEWELABTZHE (@)

Place of Issued/registered
incorporation/ and paid-up Attributable equity interests
Name operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities Legal form
B3 A BE1T/ MK
Eag ek B FARRARMGRE TEREH EERTR
2021 2020
—EC-F T Ef
Indirectly held (Continued)
B E (@)
International Business Settlement Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% 100%  IBS service Private limited liability
BEREEEEERAE The PRC 10,000387T B EEERY company
&%/ HE MABRRAA
Hong Kong Unicon Optical Co., Limited Hong Kong/ HK$234,000,010 70% 70%  Investment holding Private limited liability
ERBMEARERAT Hong Kong 234,000,010/ 7T BREER company
B8/ E% MABRRAE
Fujian Unicon Optical Co.,Ltd The PRC/ USD 30,000,000 70% 70%  Contact lens business PRC wholly-foreign-
BEEBHEAZERAR The PRC 30,000,000 7T B RGER owned enterprise with
HE/HE limited liability
FESMEEE
BRAR
Chongging Globehill Company Limited The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  IBS service Domestic Company
REEBLEERY (EB) ERAR The PRC AR 10,000,0007T B E AR R liability company
FE,/ E BABRAT
“Globebill” Limited Liability Company Kyrgyzstan/ KGS 1,000,000 100% 100%  IBS service Private limited liability
' Globebill J Limited Liability Company Kyrgyzstan 1,000,000% 18 B EEEERY company
ERERE/ MABRRAA
ELEL L !
IBS Kazakhstan Limited Liability Partnership Kazakhstan/ KZT 1,000,000 100% 100%  IBS service Private limited liability
Kazakhstan 1,000,000 % B2 £ E SR company
MR ATE MABRRAA
IRfE s a8
UAB “IBS” Lithuania Lithuania/ EUR 2,000,000 100% 100%  IBS service Private limited liability
UABTIBS | Lithuania Lithuania 2,000,0008% 75 ER £ EE R company
uk5E,/ ka5 MABRRAE
Kwok Tin Enterprises Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
BEXREEERAR &8/ 58 187 REER company
MABRRA
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP

(Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

(@) FRTZMBAE @

30. ZEBTEMBARTZFHE (8

Place of Issued/registered
incorporation/ and paid-up Attributable equity interests
Name operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities Legal form
MM B#17/ Mk
218 el BRERE ERAREREERE TEEE EER R
2021 2020
—EC-f T ER

Indirectly held (Continued)

BRHFE &)

BINEXRGEERBRAR The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding Domestic company with
(Fuzhou Guotian Enterprises Management The PRC A E11,000,0007T REZR limited liability
Company Limited*) HE/HE BABRAT

BNE—-GEEBERAT The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding Domestic company with
(Fuzhou Guoyi Enterprises Management The PRC A E#1,000,0007T REER limited liability
Company Limited*) HE,/HE BAERAT

IBST Technology Co., Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding Private limited liability

VEREEMERAR Hong Kong 10,000387T REZR company

B/ &5 BABRAR

BiE4E bR HEERAT The PRC/ RMB10,000,000/ 100% - IBSservice Domestic company with
(Yibosiging (Beijing) Technology The PRC RMB Nil BB EEERYE limited liability
Company Limited*) HE,/F AE110000,00075,/ BABRAT

N =

*  The English name is for identification purpose only
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31 March2021 &2 —F=H=+—H

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP
(Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group as at

31 March 2021 and 2020 that have material non-controlling interests.

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of Liuzhou Zhenghe
and its wholly owned subsidiaries and Hong Kong Unicon Optical Co., Limited and
its wholly owned subsidiary, which have material non-controlling interests are set

39, XEFFEWELABTZHE (@)

(b) BEEEAEEZEFEEZZIIEZERBA

CiEEH
TREYNEBEE_ S —_—FER_TE_TEFE=H
=+ —HAERBESEAFEFIER ZIFREN
B AT

INEMRE2ENB AR UREBEMELE
BERRABREEZENBARER EAIFERIE
m R e HBENBAN T - UTREMBE

out below. The summarised consolidated financial information below represented

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

i EEEERN AR BHHNEE-

Ownership
interests and Total comprehensive
Place of incorporation/ rights held by income allocated to Accumulated
Names of subsidiaries operation non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
IR NEEFEEREZ
WM AE L SRR S HEEEDREN ZEKALE BEtIFERIEE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—S-—§ CTEIZF B CTITHF IBI-F CBTEZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T
Liuzhou Zhenghe and its subsidiaries The PRC/The PRC
IMEMRERBAR FE,/FE
30% 30% (12,815) 9,09) (282) 12,533
Hong Kong Unicon Optical Co., Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong
and its subsidiary and the PRC
ERBNEARERARDRANKB AR B/ EEhTE 30% 30% (2,692) (687) 66,821 69,513
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
ERBAEAMERFEEGZHEAR (157) (102) 628 785
(15,664) (9,881) 67,167 82,831
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31 March2021 —EBE-—F=H=+—H

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP 9. "EFFENRBLATIZERE (@)

(Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non- (b)) HEEEKFEZEHEZZIIEZEMREL
controlling interests (Continued) S @

Liuzhou Zhenghe and its wholly owned subsidiaries:

HINEMREZERBAT :

2021 2020
—E_—F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
For the year ended 31 March BE=B=1+—HLEE
Revenue A 75,733 386,487
Loss for the year FERNEE (11,757) (31,601)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEERARLE (42,717 (30,307)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests DEEEIEEHIER Z EE (3,527) (9,480)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BENIEEF#DZRE - -
Cash generated from operating activities KETHMERE 51,874 18,166
Cash (used in)/generated from investing activities REEE FrR) FriiRsE (4,415) 5,327
Cash used in financing activities RhEEENFTA Iﬁ% (47,654) (32,585)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 91 B B R 55 5 30 4,240
Net cash outflows REmHFER (165) (4,852)
As at 31 March W=B=+—8
Current assets MENEE 1,988,807 1,639,973
Non-current assets ERMEE 245,981 220,072
Current liabilities VIEIR=NE (2,235,729) (1,818,266)
Non-current liabilities EREERE = =
Net (liabilities)/assets BB EERE (941) 41,779
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEEFIRR (282) 12,533
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP 39 XEFFEMBAT 2518 (&)

(Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non- (b)) EBEEAIEIZHEZZIEEZEHWEA
controlling interests (Continued) asEE (@
Hong Kong Unicon Optical Co., Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary: ERABHRENABERAGREZEREBAR :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETFg
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
For the year/period ended 31 March HE-ZA=1+—HILEE 8
Revenue A 1,829 =
Loss for the year FERNEE (13,708) (3,761)
Total comprehensive income 2HEUWALELE (8,973) (2,290)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests DEEEIEEHIER Z EE 4,112) (1,128)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BEfIEEF#DZRE - -
Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities KESEBIFTE (FrA) IR 19,774 (3,138)
Cash used in investing activities KEEEMMARSE (111,777) (308,779)
Cash generated from financing activities REEEHFEIRE 91,960 332,126
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXREEF T & 1,963 3,080
Net cash inflows WERAFEE 1,920 23,289
As at 31 March W=B=+—H
Current assets MENEE 30,999 23,431
Non-current assets ERBEE 447,159 306,434
Current liabilities VIEIR=N (100,267) (24,091)
Non-current liabilities ERBER (155,156) (74,064)
Net assets BEFE 222,735 231,710
Accumulated non-controlling interests et IETH R E 66,821 69,513
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F=A=+—H

31 March 2021 —&_——

40. MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts

of significance to which the Company’s subsidiary or joint venture was a party and

in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a director had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the

financial year.

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14 May 2021, the Board resolved to dispose of 90% equity of Eagle Mountain
Holdings Limited (“Eagle Mountain”). Eagle Mountain and its 30% held associates,
Fastmind Investments Limited, and, Acme Day Limited, are principally engaged
in investment holding of a mining company, Tunlin Limited Liability Company.
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Seller”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Vintage Gold Management Limited (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Seller agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase
the 90% equity of Eagle Mountain at a total consideration of USD3,000,000
(approximately HK$23,400,000). The details of this transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 14 May 2021. The disposal was completed on 20
May 2021.

42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board on
25 June 2021.

40. EFNRFG RHASHPRZEKX
Wzt
Brim & M AR M 25T IR & S MU B
WEZEX’EE#ZIK’ATW}%@T (EERXEE
WEERTOTHNERGH TEARATDNEENR
HESAREZERERNEENAETEREX
BB AREL -

. REHEREE

® :’;:—Eﬁﬁ +HOA EEgRAEHEER
ZERBREAT (TEIE)) %k - ERRESR
FAWEmNEE AR BIFEEERRAR K
EHRBRRE) HEERER —MEIEZEA B Tunlin
Limited Liability CompanyfJi & B - AN T2 E
WEAR (Bh)) HeBEEBERRE (B
%Tj%'if‘ém%% Bl -BrRAEHEMBERRAR

#2X83,000,0003= 7T (£923,400,00078 70) B E &
m%go%ﬁﬂ& cRIERZNEBHNARTDHEAS
TE I FAATHEN A -ZEEERIZE
Z—HFHBZ+HER-

42. HUEMBRE
ZHBRERENR B —F A_+HAKES
BHERIBRE o
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R FIBHE

RESULTS E¥
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
g8 IZEZF “2-hAF 2 N\E Z—+tfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(restated)
(E5)
Revenue WA 85,521 393,536 827,848 543,333 537,064
Loss for the year attributable to L AEERE
Owners of the Company RABEBA (132,284) (175,491) (217,980) (67,640) (78,467)
Non-controlling interests FEEHIE R (7,766) (9,347) 6,368 2,470 (7,374)
(140,050) (184,838) 211,612) (65,170) (85,841)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEI-f ZEIEF I2-NE % N\F IZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FET
Total assets BEEE 3,363,492 2,973,927 3,317,118 4,541,320 4,381,338
Total liabilities BEREE (2,521,991 (1,994,601) (2,214,816) (3,210,644) (3,006,736)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 841,501 979,326 1,102,302 1,330,676 1,374,602
Equity attributable to owners KABEHER ANEMD
of the Company b 774,334 896,495 1,079,790 1,314,039 1,362,680
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR = 67,167 82,831 22,512 16,637 11,922
TOTAL EQUITY TERAEER 841,501 979,326 1,102,302 1,330,676 1,374,602
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